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IEREREEBHRRAN

The board of directors (“Board”) of Eminence
Enterprise Limited (“Company”) is pleased to
announce the audited annual results of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2017 together with comparative
figures. These annual results have been reviewed by
the Company’s audit committee.

FINAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group
recorded a revenue of HK$36,518,000, representing
a decrease of HK$66,921,000 or 64.7% from
HK$103,439,000 for the year 2016.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2017 amounted to
HK$26,627,000 (2016: loss of HK$69,268,000). The
decrease in loss is because of the decrease of
HK$20,607,000 in loss on changes in fair value of
investment properties during the year, and without
the write-down of properties held for development
for sale during the year as compared to last year of
HK$15,511,000.

The basic and diluted loss per share for the year
ended 31 March 2017 was HK$0.02 (2016: basic and
diluted loss per share was HK$0.14).

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2017 (2016: nil).

4 Eminence Enterprise Limited 2016/17 Annual Report
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Ana
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND EEEBWRRDN
ANALYSIS

E e
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FRMHEERENR)  DRER &5
RENERRER °

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the Group was principally engaged
in the property investment, comprising the ownership
and rental of investment properties, property
development, investment in securities and loan
financing business.

EEEHEE DN

RER - RENEMS2HEWAKE
URES FTMERPEARKNE

Geographical Analysis of Turnover

During the year, rental income from the investment
properties were derived from properties located in

Hong Kong, Singapore and the People’s Republic of ([#El]) Z#% -
China (“PRC’).
(i) Property Investment (i) MERE

HZE2017F3A31BILFE - MEKRE

Revenue from the property investment

segment increased by 23.5% to HK$29,384,000
for the year ended 31 March 2017 (2016:
HK$23,786,000). The increase in turnover
is primarily attributed to the addition of the
investment properties, the effect of tenancy
renewal, periodic rental adjustments under the
clauses of the existing tenancy agreements and
new tenants.

The Group has 9 blocks of factory premises and
4 blocks of dormitories with a total gross floor
areas of approximately 94,351 sq.m. in Huzhou,
PRC.

DE 7 & EE 1 1N23.5% 229,384,000
7 7T (20164F : 23,786,000/ JT) ° &
EEMNTEMPNERIREYE B
M BEREHERRERMIENE
MR A N TR 2 -

AR BB BN RO IR 5 24
EEE RERIEEELRM4351F
TR e
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Chaifrhan’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
FEREREEENRR DM

(ii) Property Development

(i) M=%R

Project Matheson

The Company had filed an application to the
Lands Tribunal in December 2015 for an order
to sell all the undivided shares in a building
located at Nos. 11 and 13 Matheson Street,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong aimed at to acquire
the last unit (“Remaining Unit”) of the building
for redevelopment purpose. A court order was
received in January 2017 relating to the trial of
Project Matheson for 8 days in early July 2017.

Project Inverness

The Project Inverness is a residential property
development project located at No. 14, 16, 18 and
20 Inverness Road, Kowloon Tong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong. The construction of the superstructure is in
progress and is expected to launch of the sale in
year 2018.

(iii) Securities Investment

The Group has maintained a securities portfolio
with a strategy of diversification to reduce effects
of price fluctuation of any securities.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group
held trading securities in the amount of
HK$4,505,000 as compared to HK$5,944,000
as at 31 March 2016, representing a 24.2%
decrease. It was derived from (1) purchase of
trading securities of HK$935,000 during the
year; and (2) net decrease in market value in
the amount of HK$2,374,000 of the trading
securities. This segment recorded a loss of
HK$14,705,000 during the year (2016: loss of
HK$11,354,000).

(iv) Loan Financing

For the year ended 31 March 2017, this segment
recorded a revenue of HK$6,939,000 (2016:
HK$4,445,000) representing 56.1% increase
comparing with the year 2016.
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IEREREEETRARDN

FINANCIAL REVIEW B 75 B B8

Year ended 31 March
BZ3A31MHLEE
2017 2016 Change
29
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET

Revenue XM 36,518 103,439 (66,921)
Gross profit EX 36,347 36,438 (91)
Gross profit margin EHE 99.5% 35.2% 64.3%
Distribution and selling expenses AL SEAK AR (13) (1,762) 1,749
Administrative expenses THRX (32,911)  (30,429) (2,482)
Finance costs BhE A A (19,213)  (15,099) (4,114)
Loss before taxation BRELATE 1B (29,592) (61,238) 31,646
Taxation I8 2,965 (8,030) 10,995
Loss for the year and attributable 74~ 5] RREG
to owners of the Company KEEEE (26,627) (69,268) 42,641

Net loss margin FEEX (72.9%)  (67.0%) (5.9%)

Basic and diluted loss per share #BREAR#EEE (HK$0.02) (HK$0.14) HKS$0.12

Revenue = 1]

Group revenue for the year ended 31 March 2017 & £2017F3A31HILFE  A&EZ
reduced by 64.7% to HK$36,518,000 compared > # % % F il £64.7%%36,518,000/&
with last year. The decrease in revenue was largely 7T ° AR B B EREE K O K
caused by the gradually cessation of garment X*MBNHCETIFILEE

sourcing and export business segment.

SILEEERAR 2016/17 F& 7
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Gross Profit/Margin

Gross profit for this year was HK$36,347,000, a
slight decrease of HK$91,000 or 0.2% compared to
the HK$36,438,000 in last year. Gross profit margin
for this year increased from 35.2% to 99.5%.

Loss before Taxation

Loss before taxation for the year ended 31 March
2017 was HK$29,592,000, as compared with last
year loss before taxation of HK$61,238,000.

Distribution and selling expenses declined from
HK$1,762,000 to HK$13,000, a decrease of
99.3% compared with the last year. It was mainly
attributable to the reduction of revenue of garment
sourcing and export business segment.

Administrative expenses were HK$32,911,000,
a slight increase of 8.2% over last year of
HK$30,429,000.

During the year under review, there was a decrease
of 61.7% in the loss on changes in fair value of
investment properties amounting to HK$12,792,000
(2016: loss of HK$33,399,000).

Finance costs was HK$19,213,000, increased
by HK$4,114,000 or 27.2% for the year from
HK$15,099,000 in 2016, of which HK$11,050,000
(2016: HK$8,290,000) is the effective interest
expense on convertible notes.

8 Eminence Enterprise Limited 2016/17 Annual Report
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and An‘élysis

Loss Attributable to Shareholders and Loss per
Share

Loss attributable to shareholders of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2017 was HK$26,627,000,
as compared to last year loss of HK$69,268,000. Net
loss margin is increased to 72.9% as compared to
net loss margin last year of 67.0%.

For this year, the taxation credit was HK$2,965,000
whilst last year was taxation charges for
HK$8,030,000.

Basic and diluted loss per share for the year 31
March 2017 were HK$0.02 as compared to basic and
diluted loss per share HK$0.14 in last year.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2017, total assets of the
Group amounted to HK$3,407,650,000 (2016:
HK$2,574,086,000). In terms of financial resources
as at 31 March 2017, the Group’s total bank balances
and cash was HK$513,490,000 (including bank
deposits with original maturity of more than three
months).

As at 31 March 2017, the capital base has been
strengthened because an aggregate net proceeds of
HK$145,2 million was raised from the placing of new
shares and issuing of a convertible note during the
year.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group has total
bank borrowings of HK$779,700,000 (2016:
HK$100,087,000). The Group’s gearing ratio, which
is calculated as a ratio of total bank borrowings to
shareholders’ equity, was approximately 0.32 (2016:
0.04). As at 31 March 2017, the Group’s current ratio
was 3.4 (2016: 9.1).

ITRBEEREERENWR DM

BREEBERSRER

HZE2017F3A31B IEFE A2 AR
B {5 &5 18 526,627,000 T 0 MHELE
F B 18 469,268,000/ JT ° (R E51E R i
£72.9% ' B EFFEEEE67.0% o

REEZHIBEL L 52,965,0008 7T @ iE
FERIB H 28,030,000/ T °

HZE2017F3A31IB L EE  §REK
RESEEER A0.028 T BEEFER
BEARREEEIEA0.148TT °

RBEERUBER

R2017F3H31H  AEE EERBE R
3,407,650,000/5 T (20164F : 2,574,086,000
BIL) e BB E R A ®E - R2017F3A8
31 AEEZRITEHREBECLEE
513,490,000/ 7T (& 18R 1717 3318 A
A FREIER) o

7201763 A31H - EARERE R T 0
58 R PA P15 FUR 3 88 A ££145,200,0007%
TR EARNFEBIREHRMD T 8
BRE S

R2017F3A318 REE 2 R 17 E
& 42 % &779,700,000/8 JT (20164 :
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
FEREREEENRR DM

The Group financed its operation primarily with
recurring cash flow generated from its operation,

proceeds raised from the capital market and bank

financing.

Fund Raising

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the
following corporate actions had taken with the aim
to strengthen the Group’s financial position and
prospects, hence, enhance the shareholders’ value:

(i)

(i)

10

On 1 March 2017, the Company entered
into a subscription agreement with Goodco
Development Limited as subscriber, a substantial
shareholder of the Company, to subscribe the
2017 convertible note (“2017CB”) issued by
the Company for a principal amount of HK$16
million. The 2017CB is a 3% per annum coupon
interest for 5 years with the conversion price
of HK$0.16 per share. The transaction was
approved by the independent shareholders of
the Company on 26 April 2017 and the 2017CB
certificate was issued on 11 May 2017. The net
proceeds is approximately HK$15.5 million which
is intended to be applied for general working
capital of the Group. As at the date of this report,
all the net proceeds have not been utilised yet.

On 3 January 2017, the Company entered into
a placing agreement with a placing agent,
pursuant to which the Company has agreed
to allot and issue under the specific mandate,
and the placing agent has agreed to place
350,000,000 placing shares to independent
investors at a placing price of HK$0.16 per
share under a specific mandate and it was
approved by the independent shareholders
of the Company on 13 February 2017. The
placing was completed on 27 February 2017
and the entire 350,000,000 placing shares have
been successfully placed. The net proceeds is
approximately HK$55,440,000 is intended to be
applied for the acquisition of the remaining units
of the Fung Wah Factorial Building. As at the
date of this report, all the net proceeds have not
been utilised yet.

Eminence Enterprise Limited 2016/17 Annual Report
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and An‘alysis

(iii) On 13 October 2016, the Company entered into

an underwriting agreement with an underwriter
and proposed to raise not less than HK$435.6
million and not more than HK$598.3 million by
way of the rights issue by issuing not less than
4,685,496,177 rights shares and not more than
5,808,955,200 rights shares at a subscription
price of HK$0.103 per rights share on the basis
of 3 rights shares for every one share held on
the record date. However, the resolution was not
passed by the independent shareholders on 15
December 2016 and the proposed rights issue
was lapsed.

(iv) On 8 September 2016, the Company entered

into a placing agreement with a placing agent,
pursuant to which the Company has agreed
to allot and issue under the general mandate,
and the placing agent has agreed to place
223,000,000 placing shares to independent
investors at a placing price of HK$0.18 per
share. The placing was completed on 22
September 2016 and the entire 223,000,000
placing shares have been successfully placed.
The aggregate net proceeds amounted to
approximately HK$39.7 million and intended
to be applied towards appropriate acquisition
and investment opportunities of the Group and
the considerations thereof and general working
capital of the Group. As at the date of this report,
all the net proceeds have been fully utilised
according to the intended use of which (i) HK$1.0
million for loan financing business; (i) HK$1.5
million for payment of operating expenses;
and (iii) HK$7.0 million for the acquisition of
subsidiary; and the balance of HK$30.2 million
for the acquisition of property units of Fung Wah
Factorial Building.

ITRBEEREERENWR DM
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FRBEREEBNRR DN

(v) On 13 July 2016, the Company entered into

a subscription agreement with Able Merchant
Limited as subscriber, an independent third
party, to subscribe the 2016 convertible
note (“2016CB”) issued by the Company for
a principal amount of HK$50 million. The
2016CB is a 2% per annum coupon interest
for 3 years with the conversion price of
HK$0.225. The issuance was completed on 27
July 2016. The net proceeds is approximately
HK$50 million which is intended to be
applied towards appropriate acquisition and
investment opportunities of the Group and the
considerations thereof and general working
capital of the Group. As at the date of this
report, the net proceeds have been fully utilised
according to the intended use of which (i) HK$3.4
million for payment of operating expenses; (ii)
HK$10.0 million for loan financing business;
and (iii) HK$36.6 million for the acquisition of
property units of Fung Wah Factorial Building.

NEW SHARES ISSUED

As at 31 March 2017, the total number of issued
ordinary shares of the Company was 1,911,832,059
shares (31 March 2016: 1,116,609,837 shares). A
total of 795,222,222 new shares were issued during
the year.

(i)

(i)

12

On 22 September 2016, 223,000,000 new shares
were issued at the price of HK$0.18 per share
pursuant to the placing agreement entered
into with the placing agent on 8 September
2016. Details of the placing agreement are set
out in the Company’s announcement dated 8
September 2016.

On 27 February 2017, 350,000,000 new shares
were issued at the price of HK$0.16 per share
pursuant to the placing agreement entered into
with the placing agent on 3 January 2017. Details
of the placing agreement are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 3 January 2017.

Eminence Enterprise Limited 2016/17 Annual Report
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Ana

(iii) During the year, 222,222,222 new shares were
issued pursuant to the exercise of conversion

rights of 2016CB.

DETAILS OF 2016CB AND 2017CB

Details of 2016CB

Particulars of the 2016CB are
summarized as follows:

Holder of the 2016CB
2016 F A MR EHEIFEA

Principal amount

Issue date
%17HH

Maturity date
IS

Conversion price

HH(E

All the conversion rights attached to 2016CB have

been fully exercised by 7 November 2016.

ITRBEEREERENWR DM

(i) RER - BIEITF2016F A2 ATE
B2 N RE T 31T T 222,222,2220%
T o

2016 F A IR BB R2017F o/ B
B #EE

2016 F TR RIEF15

2016 F Al R EHBFF BT -
Able Merchant Limited
HK$50,000,000

50,000,000/ 7T

27 July 2016
201647 A27H

26 July 2019
20197 H26H

HK$0.225 (subject to adjustments)
0.225/8 7T (A] THE)
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Details of 2017CB

On 1 March 2017, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement with Goodco Development
Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company,
to subscribe the 2017CB issued by the Company for
a principal amount of HK$16 million. The 2017CB
is a 3% per annum coupon interest for 5 years
with the conversion price of HK$0.16 per share.
The transaction was approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company on 26 April 2017 and
the convertible note certificate was issued on 11 May
2017.

Particulars of the 2017CB
summarized as follows:

Holder of the 2017CB
2017F AR EBFAE A

Principal amount
VNG

Issue date
217HH

Maturity date
FIEAH

Conversion price
ARE

As at the date of this report, no exercise of the
conversion rights was made since the issue date.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had bank
loans amounting to HK$779,700,000 (2016:
HK$100,087,000) which were secured by the Group’s
investment properties and properties held for
development for sale with an aggregate net book
value of HK$785,873,000 and HK$597,868,000
respectively (2016: HK$208,196,000 and nil).
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2017FE AR EBFHIE
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BERAGB (RARMEERR) R T
ABHZEEALER L AL S5
16,000,000/ 7T #9201 7 Al A IR Z 4% -
AH5E - F R A3% MBREBEA
0168 L ° It R B E R2017F4F26H
EBIRRBBLITR2017F5A411H
BITTARBREERFE -

2017 F R AR B BHA T -

Goodco Development Limited
EExERARRAT

HK$16,000,000
16,000,000/%5 7T

11 May 2017
2017%5A108

11 May 2022
202245 10H

HK$0.16 (subject to adjustments)
0.16/8 7T (7] T3H%)

RAREEH  BHTHBERETE
(ERCIBTE: L

EERA

P2017F3A318 - REE ZBITIEE A
779,700,000/ 7T (20164 : 100,087,000
BIL) DAAEBE 2R EYE RIFE
HEXRWEZERLFES A
785,873,000/ JT 597,868,000/ IT
(20164 : 208,196,000/ 7T & ) {E A&
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

Material Acquisitions and Disposals
1st Acquisition of FW Building

On 13 June 2016 and 20 June 2016, Skill Master
Investments Limited (“Skill Master”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, as purchaser,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement and a
supplemental agreement with an independent third
party to acquire an investment holding company
known as Treasure Arts International Limited for a
consideration of HK$51,981,900. Its sole assets are
having 20 property purchase agreements with the
owners of 20 units of Fung Wah Factorial Building of
Nos. 646, 648 and 648A Castle Peak Road, Kowloon,
Hong Kong (“FW Building”). The acquisition shall
pave way for the Group to acquire the remaining 14
property units and then to redevelop the site of the
FW Building. Details of the acquisition are set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 13 June 2016
and 13 July 2016. The transaction was approved by
shareholders of the Company on 1 August 2016.

2nd Acquisition of FW Building

On 3 August 2016, Skill Master as purchaser
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
an independent third party to acquire an investment
holding company known as Daily Leader Limited
for a consideration of HK$64,525,000. It sole
assets are having 5 property purchase agreements
with the owners of 5 units of FW Building. The
acquisition shall pave way for the Group to acquire
the remaining 9 property units and then to redevelop
the site of the FW Building. Details of the acquisition
are set out in the Company’s announcement dated
3 August 2016. The transaction was approved by the
shareholders of the Company on 7 October 2016.

ITRBEEREERENWR DM

BERUBREE
F-AUBEEAE

720166 A13H2016%F6 A20H -

ERERAZALNGIEEREZENB A A
Skill Master Investments Limited ([ Skill
Master)) BB F=H 7 EHFIVEE
WM T - LAK(E51,981,900E 7T
WEREERARGAEEBHBERA
Al E—MEERBMUNREANES I
/B646 ' 648 B648AT0ME EET ¥ AE
([BEAE]) NEFTRTN0MWEEE
Wk o W AREEWEL T R14EY)
EBMERLENEIET £ - WEY
HIEHN AR AR201656 8130 %2016
F7A13B IR RS - ZRHER2016
F8A1HEARBIRE RSB -

FEZAUBEEAE

7201648 A3H * Skill MasterfE & &
FTEEABYE =ZHAZEHFNEE
W& DAUEE I B 15 i & 7] % BDaily
Leader Limited © X (& A&64,525,000/%
e EE—MEERESELEAENE
THBOMEEE R -  2WEAAE
BWEHRTHEYXELMEREEX
EET & - WENFBENARRR
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EFRBEREEENWR DM

Acquisition of WK Building

On 28 March 2017, Wealth Plan Development
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, as purchaser entered into 17 property
purchase agreement with the owners of 18 units
and the car parking areas of Wing Cheong Industrial
Building (“WK Building”) of No. 121 King Lam
Street, Kowloon. Hong Kong for a consideration
of HK$226,053,000. The acquisition shall pave
way for the Group to acquire the remaining 6
property units and then to redevelop the site of WK
Building. Details of the acquisition are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 29 March 2017. A
special general meeting of the Company was held
on 5 June 2017 and such acquisition was approved
by shareholders of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries or
associated companies for the year ended 31 March
2017.

Exposure on Foreign Exchange Fluctuations

Most of the Group’s revenues and payments are in
United States dollars, Hong Kong dollars, Singapore
dollars and Renminbi. During the year, the Group
did not have significant exposure to the fluctuation
in exchange rates and thus, no financial instrument
for hedging purposes was employed. The directors
considered the risk of exposure to the currency
fluctuation to be minimal.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities as at 31 March 2017 (2016: nil).
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and An\élysis

Capital Expenditure and Capital Commitments
Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group
invested HK$3,558,000 (2016: HK$90,000) in the
purchase of property, plant and equipment, and
spent HK$14,779,000 (2016: HK$214,936,000) on
addition of investment properties. These capital
expenditures were financed from internal resources
and funds from previous fund raising activities of the
Company.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had capital
commitments in respect of capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided in respect of
investment properties of HK$9,842,000 (2016:
HK$5,241,000).

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had 42 employees
(2016: 40). Staff costs (including directors’
emoluments) amounted to HK$15,264,000 for the
year under review (2016: HK$16,501,000). The
Group remunerates its employees based on their
performance, experience and prevailing industry
practice. The Group has set out the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme for the Hong Kong’s
employees and has made contributions to the state-
sponsored pension scheme operated by the PRC
government for the PRC employees. The Group
has a share option scheme to motivate valued
employees.
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PROSPECTS

The Group will continue focusing its efforts in the
development of its exiting principal businesses: (1)
property investment; (2) property development; (3)
securities investment; (4) loan financing business
and other potential projects with a view to providing
steady returns for its shareholders and bring fruitful
growth to the Group.

In Hong Kong, despite additional measures imposed
by the government to cool the housing market,
the impact on the property market was only short-
lived. With the prevailing low interest rates and the
record of high transacted land prices in the recent
land auctions, sentiment in the primary property
market has been holding up well, with home buyers’
confidence remaining generally strong.

In addition, the Group will further extend its principal
business and direct its resources to loan financing
services and it is expected that such business will
continue to be part of the main income stream
of the Group. Meanwhile, we will also maintain a
stringent financial policy and a prudent cash flow
management to ensure reasonable liquidity for the
Group’s operations as well as for its existing and
future investments.

We believe that, in such a volatile economic
environment, these operation strategies will
enable the Group to maintain its competitiveness
and mitigate risks, thereby ensuring the Group
sustainable growth.
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my
sincere gratitude to our staff and fellow directors
for their contribution to the Group’s development
and cordial thanks to the continuing support of
our customers, suppliers, business associates and
shareholders.

Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 18 May 2017
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MR. KWONG JIMMY CHEUNG TIM
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Kwong, aged 74, is an executive director,
chairman, chief executive officer and authorised
representative of the Company and chairman of
the Executive Committee. He is also an executive
director, president, chief executive officer and
authorised representative, and chairman of the
Executive Committee of Easyknit International
Holdings Limited (“Easyknit International”) until his
resignation from the Board and all of his duties on 18
April 2017. Mr. Kwong graduated from The University
of Hong Kong in 1965 and was admitted as Barrister-
at-Law in the United Kingdom in 1970 and in Hong
Kong in 1973 respectively. He has over 30 years of
experience in the legal field. He serves as director
of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Kwong
was appointed to the Board as an independent non-
executive director in 2003, and was subsequently re-
designated as an executive director in 2007. In 2007,
Mr. Kwong was appointed as chairman and chief
executive officer of the Company.

MS. LUI YUK CHU
Deputy Chairman

Ms. Lui, aged 59, is an executive director and
deputy chairman of the Company and a member of
the Executive Committee. She is also an executive
director and vice president, and a member of the
Executive Committee of Easyknit International. Ms.
Lui has been involved in the textiles industry for over
30 years and has extensive experience in design,
manufacturing, marketing and distribution of apparel.
She serves as director of various subsidiaries of
the Company and Easyknit International. Ms. Lui
was appointed to the Board as an executive director
in 2003 and was appointed as deputy chairman in
2006.
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MR. KAN KA HON

Mr. Kan, aged 66, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 2003. He is also
a member and chairman of the Audit Committee,
a member of the Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee. He holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Science from The University of Hong
Kong and is a fellow member of The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has over 30 years of experience
in accounting and finance. Mr. Kan is also an
independent non-executive director of Victory City
International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 539).

MR. LAU SIN MING

Mr. Lau, aged 55, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 2004. He is also
a member and chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee. He is a fellow member of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He has over 30 years
of experience in accounting and auditing and is now
working as a tax consultant.

MR. FOO TAK CHING

Mr. Foo, aged 83, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 2007. He is also a
member and chairman of the Nomination Committee,
a member of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee. He is currently a Partner of Messrs. Liu,
Choi & Chan, a firm of solicitors and notaries in
Hong Kong and has been practising in the legal field
for more than 30 years. He obtained his LLB from the
University of London in the United Kingdom in 1968
and a diploma in Chinese Laws from the University
of East Asia in Macau in 1987. Mr. Foo was admitted
as a solicitor in England and Wales in 1972 and in
Hong Kong in 1973 and admitted as a barrister and
solicitor in the State of Victoria, Australia in 1982. He
is a Notary Public and a China Appointed Attesting
Officer.
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MR. WU KOON YIN WELLY

Mr. Wu, aged 31, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 1 January
2017. He is also a member of Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee. Mr. Wu holds a Master in Finance degree
from the University of Essex and a Bachelor of
Commerce degree in the University of Sydney. Mr.
Wu is the Vice President of Sales in Orchid Hill
Consulting Limited which is a member of FXCM
Inc. FXCM Inc. is a listed company on the New
York Stock Exchange (NASDAQ: FXCM) which is
an online provider of foreign exchange trading and
services to retail and institutional customers. Mr. Wu
has over 9 years of experience in Forex broking and
client servicing.

MS. KOON HO YAN CANDY
(resigned on 18 April 2017)

Ms. Koon, aged 32, is an executive director and
authorised representative of the Company and
is a member of the Executive Committee since
2010. She is also an executive director, authorized
representative and a member of the Executive
Committee of Easyknit International. Ms. Koon
obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics
and Politics from the University of Durham, England
in 2007. She also received her Bachelor of Laws
degree and Legal Practice Course qualification in
2009 from the College of Law, England. Ms. Koon is
the daughter of Ms. Lui, the deputy chairman of the
Company. She is also the niece of Mr. Lai Law Kau,
the non-executive director of the Company.
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MR. TSE WING CHIU RICKY
(resigned on 18 April 2017)

Mr. Tse, aged 59, is a non-executive director of the
Company. He is also a non-executive director of
Easyknit International. Mr. Tse obtained a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from Adam
Smith University of America in the United States in
1996. He has more than 30 years of experience in
garment manufacturing and merchandising. Mr. Tse
was appointed to the Board as an executive director
and vice chairman in 2005, and was subsequently
re-designated from vice chairman to chairman and
appointed as chief executive officer in 2006. In 2007,
Mr. Tse was re-designated from an executive director
to a non-executive director of the Company and
resigned as chairman and chief executive officer.

MR. LAI LAW KAU
(resigned on 18 April 2017)

Mr. Lai, aged 56, is a non-executive director of the
Company since 2013. He has been involved in the
textiles industry over 20 years and has extensive
experience in design, manufacturing, marketing
and distribution of apparel. He is also a non-
executive director of Easyknit International. Mr. Lai
is a paternal brother-in-law of Ms. Lui, the deputy
chairman of the Company, and he is also an uncle of
Ms. Koon, an executive director of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report

EEERKRE

The Board of directors (“Directors”) of the Company
is committed to achieving high standards of
corporate governance by emphasizing transparency,
independence, accountability, responsibility and
fairness. The Board strives to ensure that effective
self-regulatory practices exist to protect the interests
of the shareholders of the Company and to enhance
long-term shareholders’ value.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

During the year, the Company has complied with
most of the code provisions and where appropriate,
adopted some of the recommended best practices
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (“CG Code”). Set out
below are the details of the deviation from the code
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”):

CG Code Provision A.2.1 requires that the roles
of chairman and chief executive should be
separate and should not be performed by the
same individual

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim is the chairman of
the Board and is holding the office of chief executive
officer of the Company. While this is a deviation from
CG Code Provision A.2.1, dual role leadership has
been in practice by the Company for decades and
has withstood the test of time. The Board considers
this arrangement to be appropriate for the Company
as it can preserve the consistent leadership culture
of the Company and allow efficient discharge of the
executive functions of the chief executive. The Board
believes that a balance of power and authority is
adequately ensured by the operations of the Board
which comprises experienced and high caliber
individuals including two non-executive Directors
and three independent non-executive Directors.
Meanwhile, the day-to-day management and
operation of the Group are delegated to divisional
management under the leadership and supervision
of Mr. Kwong in the role of chief executive officer
who is supported by the executive Directors and
senior management.
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THE BOARD
Board Composition

The Board currently comprises 6 Directors, with 2
executive Directors and 4 independent non-executive
Directors (“INEDs”). The Board has in its composition
a balance of skills and experience necessary for
decision making and fulfilling its business needs. The
participation of non-executive Directors in the Board
bring independent judgment on issues relating to the
Group’s strategy, performance, risk management,
conflicts of interest and management process to
ensure that the interests of all shareholders of the
Company have been duly considered.

Each of the non-executive Directors has entered
into a service contract for a term of 3 years and is
subject to termination by either party giving not less
than one month’s prior written notice to the other.

The Board considers that all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent and has
received from each of them the annual confirmations
of independence in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

The composition of the Board during the year and up
to date of this report is set out as follows:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim
— Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu — Deputy Chairman
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy (resigned on 18 April 2017)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky (resigned on 18 April 2017)
Mr. Lai Law Kau (resigned on 18 April 2017)
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Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Kan Ka Hon

Mr. Lau Sin Ming

Mr. Foo Tak Ching

Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly
(appointed on 1 January 2017)

The Board is responsible for the approval and
monitoring of the Group’s overall strategies and
policies, approval of business plans, evaluating
the performance of the Group and oversight of
management. It is also responsible for promoting
the success of the Company and its businesses by
directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.

The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies
with particular attention paid to the growth and
financial performance of the Group.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the
Group to executive Directors and senior management
of every business segment, while reserving certain
key matters for its approval. Decisions of the Board
are communicated to the management through
executive Directors who have attended Board
meetings.

The Company had arranged for appropriate
liability insurance for the directors of the Group
for indemnifying their liabilities arising from the
corporate activities.

All Directors have been provided, on a monthly
basis, with the Group’s management information
updates to give them aware of the Group’s affairs
and facilitates them to discharge their duties under
the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules.
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Professional Development

The Company provides regular updates on the
business development of the Group. The Directors
are regularly briefed on the latest development
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
statutory requirements to ensure compliance and
upkeep of good corporate governance practices.
In addition, the Company has been encouraging
the Directors to enroll in professional development
courses and seminars relating to the Listing Rules,
companies ordinance and corporate governance
practices organized by professional bodies or
chambers in Hong Kong. All Directors are requested
to provide the Company with their respective training
records pursuant to the Code.

All Directors, namely, Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung
Tim, Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, Mr.
Tse Wing Chiu Ricky, Mr. Lai Law Kau, Mr. Kan Ka
Hon, Mr. Lau Sin Ming, Mr. Foo Tak Ching and Mr.
Wu Koon Yin Welly, have participated in appropriate
continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills during the year.
Such professional development was completed either
by way of attending briefings, conference, forum,
courses and seminars and self-reading which are
relevant to the business or directors’ duties.
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Attendance of Directors at Various Meetings EENEEBZLEE

Details of the attendance of individual Directors #;Z201743F31H [t FE  ARE=
at Board meetings, committee meetings and REZCE€Z ZECeZMRERE
shareholder meetings held during the year ended 31 ZHEBRFBAOT ¢

March 2017 are as follows:

Attendance record of Directors and Committee Members in 2016/17
201617 EEREZREZEEHENERLE

2016 General Audit Remuneration  Nomination
AGM  meetings Board  Commitiee ~ Committee  Committee
20165
RrBErE  KFEAE 3¢ EHZEe FMzEe RaZse
Number of meetings ganY 1 4 5 2 2 2
Executive Directors UEs
Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tm ~ B&/F ll 44 5/5 - 202 202
Lui Yuk Chu R 0/t 0/4 5/5 - - -
Koon Ho Yan Candy B 0 0/4 5/5 - - -
(resigned on 18 April 2017)  (F201764 518684
Non-executive Directors ~ 3#i178%
Tse Wing Chiu Ricky ki 11 44 505 - - -
(resigned on 18 April 2017)  (R201764 518584
Lai Law Kau RER il 44 5/5 - - -
(resigned on 18 April 2017)  (F201764 518684
Independent BUuTEs
Non-executive Directors

Kan Ka Hon i N 4/4 515 22 22 22
Lau Sin Ming 855 i 414 /5 212 202 212
Foo Tak Ching FfEt 1 44 505 12 202 202
Wu Koon Kin Welly RUE o 114 25 012 02 02

(appointed on 1 January 2017)  (Ko01741 715 EELE)
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the following
corporate governance duties:

(a)

to develop and review the Company policies and
practices on corporate governance, monitoring
of the corporate governance practices and
procedures; and maintenance of appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control
systems of the Group to ensure compliance with
applicable rules and regulations;

to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management of the Group;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and Directors; and

to review the Company’s compliance with
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules (Corporate
Governance Code and the Corporate
Governance Report).

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Board
had performed the above-mentioned corporate
governance functions by reviewing the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance and
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD
Board Committees

The Board has delegated authority to 4 standing
Committees with specific roles and responsibilities.
Their terms of reference and composition are
reviewed and updated regularly to ensure that they
remain appropriate and reflect changes in good
practice and governance. The terms of reference
of each of the Committees are available on the
Company’s website. The attendance record of the
Committee members is shown on page 28 of this
Annual Report.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, comprising 4 INEDs, namely
Mr. Kan Ka Hon (chairman of the Audit Committee),
Mr. Lau Sin Ming, Mr. Foo Tak Ching and Mr. Wu
Koon Yin Welly, held 2 meetings for the year ended
31 March 2017.

The principal functions of Audit Committee include:
— to oversee the relationship with the Auditor;

— to review the interim and annual financial
statements before publication;

— to oversee the Group’s financial reporting system
and internal control procedures; and

— to review of the internal control and risk
management framework.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Audit
Committee (i) reviewed the reports from the Auditor,
accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group, management representation letters,
and management’s response in relation to the
annual results for the year ended 31 March 2016
and the interim results for the six months ended
30 September 2016; and (ii) reviewed the financial
reports for the year ended 31 March 2016 and
for the six months ended 30 September 2016
and recommended the same to the Board for
approval; and (iii) reviewed the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control.
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Auditor’s Remuneration

The fees in relation to the audit service provided
by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the external auditor
of the Company, for the year ended 31 March 2017
amounted to HK$2,366,000 (2016: HK$2,080,000),
and those in relation to non-audit services amounted
to HK$623,000 (2016: HK$724,000).

Review of 2016/17 Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Audit Committee reviewed the 2016/17
consolidated financial statements in conjunction
with the external auditor of the Company. Based on
this review and discussions with management, the
Audit Committee was satisfied that the consolidated
financial statements were prepared in accordance
with applicable accounting standards, and fairly
present the Group’s financial position and results for
the year ended 31 March 2017.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee, comprising 5
members, including Mr. Lau Sin Ming (chairman of
the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Kan Ka Hon, Mr.
Foo Tak Ching and Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly who are
INEDs, and Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim who is
an executive Director, held 2 meetings for the year
ended 31 March 2017.

The principal functions of the Remuneration
Committee include:

— to recommend to the Board on the Company’s
policies and structure for the remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Group;

— to recommend to the Board on the remuneration
package of all executive Directors and senior
management of the Group; and

— to review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to
corporate goals and objectives by the Board from
time to time.
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The primary objective of the Company’s
remuneration policy is to attract, retain and motivate
the personnels by providing fair reward for their
contributions to the Group’s performance. In this
context, the remuneration policy is to set the overall
remuneration package at a competitive level and
in a form that permits additional remuneration to
be earned for high performance over a sustained
period. The remuneration packages are determined
with reference to the time commitment and
responsibilities of each individual, the Company’s
performance and the prevailing market conditions.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the
Remuneration Committee reviewed the remuneration
policies and structure for the Directors and senior
management of the Group.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee, comprising 4 members,
including Mr. Foo Tak Ching (chairman of the
Nomination Committee), Mr. Kan Ka Hon, Mr. Lau Sin
Ming and Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly who are INEDs and
Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim who is an executive
Director, held 2 meetings for the year ended 31
March 2017.

The principal functions of the Nomination Committee
include:

— to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board;

— to identify and nominate suitable candidates of
directors for the Board’s consideration; and

— to assess the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors.
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The Board adopted a nomination policy which set
out the approach to achieving board diversity in the
Company in order to enhance the effectiveness of
the Board and its corporate governance standard.
The Company recognizes the importance of having
a diverse team of board members, which is an
essential element in maintaining a competitive
advantage. The Nomination Committee has been
delegated the authority to review and assess the
diversity of the Board and its skills and experience
by way of consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to, gender, age, cultural
and educational background, and professional
experience. The Nomination Committee will give
consideration to the policy when identifying and
selecting suitably qualified candidates. The Policy
will be reviewed on a regular basis.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the
Nomination Committee (i) reviewed the structure,
size, composition and diversity of the Board;
(ii) assessed the independence of independent
non-executive Directors; and (iii) discuss the
resolution on appointment of Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly
as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee currently comprises all
the executive Directors, namely Mr. Kwong Jimmy
Cheung Tim (chairman of the Executive Committee)
and Ms. Lui Yuk Chu.

It meets as and when required between regular
Board meetings of the Company, and operates as
a general management committee under the direct
authority of the Board. Within the parameters of
authority delegated by the Board, the Executive
Committee is committed to the implementation of
the Group’s strategy set by the Board, monitors
the Group’s investment and trading performance,
funding and financing requirements, and reviews the
management performance.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary assists the Board by
ensuring good information flow within the Board and
that the Board policy and procedures are followed.
Mr. Lee Po Wing, the company secretary of the
Company, has taken not less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training during the year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board leads and maintains effective controls
over the Group’s activities, with executive
responsibility for the running of the Group’s
business being delegated to management. The
management provides all members of the Board
with monthly updates in order to give a balanced
and understandable assessment of the Group’s
performance, position and prospects to enable them
to discharge their duties.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks
and it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives and ensuring that the Group
establishes and maintains appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control
systems and reviewing their effectiveness. The
Board is also responsible for overseeing the
design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems. The
risk management and internal control systems are
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss and
to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in
operating systems or in achievement of the Group’s
business objectives.
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The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducts
a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems by
requiring all department managers to undergo
a detailed self-risk assessment process using a
common risk management framework. It covers all
material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls, on an annual basis. It
also considers the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programs
and budget of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting function.

Under the enterprise risk management framework,
policies and procedures are in place to identify,
assess, manage, control and report risks. Such risks
include strategic, credit, operational (administrative,
system, human resources, reputation), market,
liquidity, legal and regulatory risks. Exposure to
these risks is continuously monitored by the Board
through the Audit Committee.

The internal control system includes a defined
management structure with specified limits of
authority. The Board has clearly defined the
authorities and key responsibilities of each division
to ensure adequate checks and balances. The
internal control system has been designed to
safeguard the Group’s assets against authorized
use of disposition, to ensure the maintenance of
proper accounting records for producing reliable
financial information, and to ensure compliance with
applicable laws, regulations and industry standard.
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The Group does not have an internal audit function.
During the year under review, the Board has
reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Group and there were no major issue
but areas for improvement have been identified by
the Audit Committee and appropriate measures
taken. The Board is of the view that the enterprise
risk management and internal control systems in
place for the year and up to the date of issuance
of the annual report is effective and adequate. In
addition, the Board is currently of the view that
there is no immediate need to set up an internal
audit function within the Group in light of the size,
nature and complexity of the Group’s business. The
situation will be reviewed from time to time.

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
keeping proper accounting records and preparing
financial statements for each financial year/period
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group as at the end of the financial year/
period and of the profit and loss for the year/period.
In preparing the financial statements, the Directors
have adopted all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards in all material respects,
selected appropriate accounting policies and then
applied them consistently, made judgements and
estimates that are fair and reasonable. The Directors
use the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements unless this is inappropriate.

The Company recognises that a clear, balanced
and timely presentation of financial report is crucial
in maintaining the confidence of stakeholders.
Reasonable disclosure of Company’s financial
position and prospects are provided in the report.
Annual and interim results are published within
three and two months after the end of the relevant
financial year period respectively.
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A statement of the Company’s external auditor about
their reporting responsibilities is included in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 67 to 73 of
the Annual Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE OF THE
LISTING RULES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company was
not aware of any non-compliance with the required
standard as set out in the Model Code regarding
securities transactions by Directors throughout the
year ended 31 March 2017.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group
entered into certain transactions with “related
parties” as defined under the applicable accounting
standards. Details of the material related party
transactions are disclosed in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements of this Annual
Report.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Convening a special general meeting

Special general meetings may be convened upon
receipt of the written request submitted by any
shareholder(s) of the Company not less than one-
tenth of the share capital of the Company carrying
the rights of voting at general meetings of the
Company. Such written requisition must state
the purposes of the meeting, and signed by the
requisitionist(s) and deposited at the principal place
of business of the Company at Block A, 7th Floor,
Hong Kong Spinners Building, Phase 6, 481-483
Castle Peak Road, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong
Kong (for the attention of the Company Secretary).
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Putting enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board by addressing them to the Company
Secretary and deposit at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong or by e-mail to
info@eminencehk.com.

Putting forward proposal at general meeting

Shareholders can submit a written requisition to
move a resolution at the general meeting. The
number of shareholders shall represent not less
than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all the
shareholders having at the date of the requisition a
right to vote at the general meeting, or shall not less
than one hundred shareholders.

The written requisition must state the resolution,
accompanied by a statement with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at the general meeting.
It must also be signed by all of the shareholders
concerned and be deposited at Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong for the attention of
the Company Secretary.

The shareholders concerned must deposit a sum of
money reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
expenses giving the notice of the resolution
and circulating the statement submitted by the
shareholders concerned under applicable laws and
rules.

SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The Company has adopted a Shareholders’
Communication Policy in March 2012 reflecting
mostly the current practices of the Company for the
communication with its shareholders. Information will
be communicated to shareholders through:

— continuous disclosure to the Stock Exchange of
all material information;

38 Eminence Enterprise Limited 2016/17 Annual Report

AEESEHEN

BRAIBBRIARMEFTEITGHEETAND
A7 EETELE MBS B XERE
info@eminencehk.comfAEE&€EHE
N AR o

RERAERZRER

BRRARLEAFRNBRAEG LBH
RER - RRABAENRL B KA H
BRENBRAE EREZHMARR 24
BREETIN -+ —2ZBR - &AD
R—BBIRR

BRAZSEFRANRAEHMRER  ER
— B ARABEAMERRESR

R EEIRERRAG LRECE
o %EHRKTEAZBABBRE
Z URAXRRAREATBEEEM
B RERAEARAMEW

BRABRRATE - EREREHNE
FRASCAS A2 AR I8 38 A D) K A8 Bl 3
HRERBANEHAERRRER CE
AFTHR 2B °

RERE%

ANATIR2012FE3 A RN —IBR R FRE
ROEFERBADRIEEEKERED
miu AARBERBATEERRE

HiEE S

\|

3

S

N

a

il

- MBXAFEREMBEENESR



— periodic disclosure through the annual and
interim reports;

— notices of meetings and explanatory materials;

— the annual general meetings and other general
meetings; and

— the Company’s website at
www.eminence-enterprise.com

The Board endeavours to maintain an on-going
dialogue and meetings with shareholders. The Board
is grateful to Shareholders for their views, and
welcomes their questions and concerns raised in
relation to the management and governance of the
Group.

2016 Annual General Meeting

The Board and the management are committed to
the constructive use of the AGM as a forum to meet
with Shareholders and to hear their view and answer
their questions about the Group and its business.

The Chairman and a majority of other Directors
along with key executives and the external auditor
attended the 2016 AGM and addressed concerns
raised by Shareholders about the resolutions being
proposed and the Company’s business.

At the 2016 AGM, the Company continued its
practice of proposing separate resolutions on each
substantially separate issue. All resolutions were
passed by way of poll verified by the registrar
scrutineer. The poll voting results are available on
the Company’s website.

Matters resolved at the 2016 AGM
— received the audited financial statements for

the year ended 31 March 2016 together with the
Reports of the Directors and the Auditor
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— re-election of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, Ms. Koon Ho Yan
Candy and Mr. Foo Tak Ching as Directors

— re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
Auditor of the Company and authorization to the
Directors to fix the Auditor’s remuneration

— approval of a general mandate for the Directors
to buy back shares of an amount not exceeding
10% of the total number of the Company’s issued
shares as at the date of 2016 AGM

— approval of a general mandate for the Directors
to allot and issue of new shares of an amount
not exceeding 20% of the total number of the
Company’s issued share as at the date of 2016
AGM

2017 Annual General Meeting

All Shareholders are encouraged to attend the 2017
AGM and exercise their rights to vote. They are
invited to ask questions related to the business of
the meeting, and will have an opportunity to meet
with the Directors following the conclusion of the
meeting.

Apart from normal business at the 2017 AGM, the
Board has proposed general mandates for the buy
back of Company’s shares and the issue of the
Company’s shares. Further details of business to
be conducted at the 2017 AGM will be set out in the
circular to Shareholders to be sent together with
this Annual Report and posted on the Company’s
website.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the
Company has not made any changes to its Bye-
Laws. A consolidated version of the Memorandum
of Association and Bye-Laws of the Company is
available on the website of the Company.

40 Eminence Enterprise Limited 2016/17 Annual Report

- BEREULL  BAMXLLER
BEERES

- BRRD -BERIEHMITAAR
i%%%’ﬁﬁ%%%%i&%%%

N

- WERESRL-KREE TEEAL
BEADTN2016FRRBFARE
%Hﬂﬁﬁ$ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%m%mﬁ
7

- PERMEERL—REE TRER
BIOITNHBARRGR2016F KRR A
FALEHERTARARMHEH
20%HFT AL 15

2017ERRBEXRE

PTE R R AGE B L H FE2017F IR BF
RERTEERERE - FEAAMNEH
CTZEHNEE ReETHEBNAR
SHEZSMH -

BRAR2I7TERREFAS LN —REB
I EEGEERATHELRETAA
AR ) — R - BE2017FRER
FREBETHEENE - TFBBH
REAFR—HFELRRBRIHD - I
BB R R T 4G o

X fF

REE2017F3A3MHILEFER » AR
Al EEE RN A MBI ELEMEDR - K
NEZHBERRNA R ARIAA 2 5F]
FRAA AR BB E R -

¢
it

7

i



CHANGES AFTER CLOSURE OF FINANCIAL
YEAR

This report takes into account the changes that have
occurred since 1 April 2017 to the date of approval of
this report.
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This is the Group’s first Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (“report”). It discloses the
Group’s sustainability performance over the period
from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017.

REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The report follows the framework of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide set out
in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules on the Stock
Exchange.

Unless otherwise stated, this report focuses on our
Hong Kong operations which represent the core
businesses of the Group.

The Group believes in environmental protection and
cares for the community through engaging in various
charitable initiatives to make positive contributions to
society.

During the year under review, the Group committed
to a reasonable standard of corporate social
responsibility and strictly complied with relevant laws
and regulations reporting. The two key subject areas
for reporting are:

(1) Environmental; and
(2) Social.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Re

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
Emissions

The major source of our carbon emissions is the
use of energy. We have implemented various
energy-saving measures to help reduce our carbon
emissions.

Green Workplace

The Group has introduced a green policy to enhance
the awareness of environmental protection among
staff with aim of saving energy, fully utilizing
resources and recycling wastes in daily office
operation.

The Group has undertaken measures to encourage
three main areas of environmental friendly practice
in the office — paper saving, water saving and
electricity saving.

Paper saving

* Double sided printing

* Encourage use of electronic communication and
electronic copy of documents

Water saving

* Reminders to switch off water tap after use in
pantry and washroom

* Regular check on water pipe and tap to prevent
leakage
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Electricity saving

* replaced the lighting basins in our offices with
energy efficient lightings

» office equipment carries Energy Label issued
by the Electrical and Mechanical Services
Department which would further decrease
energy consumption in our office

e fan-coils in the commercial and industrial
buildings are turned off after 8:00 p.m.

* maintain proper temperature of air conditioning
SOCIAL COMMITMENT
Employment

To attract, develop and retain qualified employees,
the Group is committed to offering professional
development opportunities and a healthy working
environment for all employees.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group has a total
of approximately 42 full-time employees, with
approximately 22 in Hong Kong, 20 in Mainland
China.

The Group reviews its compensation and benefits
programs annually to ensure its compensation and
benefits packages remain competitive. In addition,
the Group continues to conduct annual review of its
pay and benefits packages of employees including
medical schemes and retirement benefits to align
them with prevailing offers in the market.

Health and Occupational Safety
The Group is committed to providing a safe and
healthy working environment to all employees. We

conduct regular monitoring of the work environment
and staff facilities.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Re

Development and Training

The Group aims to create an environment of
continuous learning to facilitate their staff in
developing careers and equipping the knowledge and
skills to better fulfil their roles and responsibilities.
External courses and seminars are provided on an
ongoing basis throughout the year.

Labour Standards

The Group hires employees in accordance with the
minimum working age with valid citizen identity in
strict compliance with the requirements of the local
employment law.

Community

The Group has dedicated itself to take up its
corporate social responsibility for the communities
where it is present. It strives to repay society by
participating in charitable sponsorship in education.
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The Directors present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries
are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2017 are set out in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
page 74.

SHARE CAPITAL

The details of movements in the Company’s share
capital during the year are set out in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group spent HK$3,558,000
on acquisition of property, plant and equipment.
The details of movements in property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out
in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties were revalued
as at 31 March 2017 by independent professional
property valuers and the loss arising on changes
in fair value of investment properties, which had
be charged directly to profit or loss, amounted to
HK$12,792,000. Details of these are set out in note
14 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
as at 31 March 2017 are set out in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the
Company and the Group during the year are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves for the distribution to
shareholders at 31 March 2017 were as follows:

MA R

Under the laws in Bermuda, the contributed surplus
account of a company is available for distribution.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus, if:

Contributed surplus

(a) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to
pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realizable value of its assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and
its issued share capital and share premium
accounts.
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Directors’ Report
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up
to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu (Deputy Chairman)
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy (resigned on 18 April 2017)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky (resigned on 18 April 2017)
Mr. Lai Law Kau (resigned on 18 April 2017)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Kan Ka Hon

Mr. Lau Sin Ming

Mr. Foo Tak Ching

Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly (appointed on 1 January 2017)

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-Law 99, Mr.
Lau Sin Ming will retire from office at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company by rotation
and, being eligible, has offered himself for re-election.

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-Law 102(B), as Mr.
Wu Koon Yin Welly was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 1 January 2017 and he will
hold office as a Director until the forthcoming 2017
AGM of the Company and subject to re-election.
Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly, being eligible, has offered
himself for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations
from each of the independent non-executive
Directors as regards their independence to
the Company and considers that each of the
independent non-executive Directors is independent
to the Company.
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No Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has an
unexpired service contract which is not determinable
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one
year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE
LISTING RULES

In accordance with Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules, the changes of information required to be
disclosed by Directors are set out below.

Pursuant to the Company’s policies and practices
and in consideration of the increasing level of duties
and responsibilities as well as the market conditions,
the remuneration package of the following Directors
were reviewed and revised with effect from 1 April
2016, details of the breakdown are in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements:

(1) Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim - annual
emoluments was revised from HK$900,000 to
HK$1,128,000;

(2) Mr. Lui Yuk Chu - annual emoluments was
revised from HK$1,578,000 to HK$2,232,000;

(3) Mr. Koon Ho Yan - annual emoluments was
revised from HK$328,000 to HK$713,000; and

(4) The annual director’s fees for all non-executive
Directors was revised from HK$130,000 to
HK$140,000 per annum.

In addition, Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company with effect from 1 January 2017.
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ectors’ Report
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Save as disclosed above, there has been no change
in directors’ information that is required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on
pages 20 to 23 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transaction’] there was no contract of
significance, to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director
of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisting at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the sections headed
“Continuing Connected Transaction’, there was no
contract of significance between the Company or any
of its subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries subsisting during or at the end
of the year, and there was no contract of significance
for the provision of services to the Company or any
of its subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder or any
of its subsidiaries.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2017, the interests or short positions
of the Directors and the chief executives of the
Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”))
which were required to notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which
were required, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing
Rules”) on the Stock Exchange, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Number
of ordinary
shares held

Name of Director Capacity (long position)
REEER
kH#E
EL a4 (#8)
Lui Yuk Chu Beneficiary of a trust 457,330,692
(notes i)
EY EEXBA (W)
Koon Ho Yan Candy Beneficiary of a trust 457330,692
(resigned on 18 April 2017)  (note i)
E A fBRERRA (Hiti)
(R201754/718A8F)

Directors’ Re
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EERTETRAEREKS - HEAK
DRERRE 2 E®

R2017F3A31H  KARFRIEERTE
THABRAR B ETMBE LR (T
EABSFLBERA((BRERBER
Bl1) EXVER) MG, - BERD RERE
ERHEAREESMBEEFIEXVIEE
TR E8D EIE A E RN A M B BB
ERXRGMBRAR ([BRF]) AERK
KR (BRESREESRBEERD2Z
FBRNEERBEEIRRIAE) » i
H N AR FIEEF K IBE KD E352(578
FEZERMANBERIARE - HIRE
BREES LA (T EWmRA) Mk
THHZ TR TAESTETESRR S
SR ([EESFA ) BHNEARRE
MR ERSOABINT ¢

Number of Approximate
underlying percentage
shares held Total of interest
BEER ERBH
RGHE #st Bat
23,480,281 480,810,973 25.15%
12,180,281 469,510,973 24.56%
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Notes:

(i) These shares are respectively registered in the name of and
are beneficially owned by Landmark Profits Limited and Goodco
Development Limited (“Goodco”), both are wholly-owned
subsidiaries of Easyknit International Holdings Limited (“Easyknit
International”). Sea Rejoice Limited is interested in approximately
21.95% of the issued share capital of Easyknit International and
it is wholly-owned by Ms. Lui Yuk Chu. Magical Profits Limited
(“Magical Profits”) is interested in approximately 36.74% of the
issued share capital of Easyknit International. Magical Profits is
wholly-owned by Accumulate More Profits Limited which in turn
is wholly-owned by The Winterbothom Trust Company Limited
(“Winterbothom Trust”) as trustee of The Magical 2000 Trust
(the beneficiaries of which include Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and her family
members other than her spouse). For the 23,480,281 underlying
shares, of which 880,281 are the underlying shares of 2014CB
held by Goodco and the remaining 22,600,000 underlying shares
of the share options granted to Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and Mr. Koon
Wing Yee (the spouse of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu) on 14 October 2016.

(i)  Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, the daughter of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and
a director of the Company, is deemed to be interested in the
shares by virtue of her capacity as one of the beneficiaries of
The Magical 2000 Trust. For the 12,180,281 underlying shares, of
which 11,300,000 underlying Shares of the share options granted
to Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy on 14 October 2016.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017,
none of the Directors or the chief executive of the
Company had any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and/or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
would have to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which
were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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([Magical Profits]) A k& BB E #/TRA S
7 #136.74% 2 # 7 M E A Accumulate More
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Profits Limitedfl|f3{EAThe Magical 2000 Trust
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HAESREH2014F a0 A8 2 1% 2 880,281 1% 48
RANR D - &k T22,600,0000% B8 A% # 48 B A% 10 70
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, and none of the directors or any of
their spouses or children under the age of 18, was
granted any right to subscribe for the equity or
debt securities of the Company or any other body
corporate nor had exercised any such right.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2017, the persons (other than the
directors or the chief executives of the Company)
who had an interest or a short position in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO
were as follows:

Directors’ Re

EEERE

EEREROAEEE 2ER

KRR HETEAWNBRRIRAFEERNE
MEERETLEALHE  BEARQF
EENEBEARAISEMEMEAR
BZBOBEEEMES  URTES
ERERBHISHEATZ FRER T
[ REFARBE AR B S ERMEAMEAE
%5%$ﬁ%%%%’ﬁaﬁﬁﬁﬁ%
FEHER| o

FERRRBROREBR G <R

7201793 A31H © NAR 7l i (7 5 48
B P ERRIEES KBS EHIEXV
HE2N FE3D EBAYE B M AR B # 5
SR EN AR AR E S M B E 1555336
BCEGEBEZELMANERIARZA
T (RRBESHTETHAERIN) W0
—F g

Number
of ordinary Number of Approximate
Name of substantial shares held underlying Percentage
shareholder Notes  Capacity (long position)  shares held Total of interest
\ ] FRERR KARE . Bi BN
TERRAR wi &b R&#A (#8) Rt#A st BAt
Koon Wing Yee a Intere:g!/of spouse 457,330,692 23,480,281 480,810,973 25.15%
BkE KBER
Landmark Profits Limited a&b  Beneficial owner 93,549,498 - 93,549,498 4.89%
ERlEA
Goodco Development a&b  Beneficial owner 363,781,194 880,281 364,661,475 19.07%
Linied 405\
EREURERAT
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Name of substantial
shareholder

TERRER

Easyknit International

KEER

Magical Profits

Accumulate More Profits

Limited

Winterbothom Trust

Winterbotham Holdings

Limited

Markson International
Holdings Limited

Christopher Geoffrey
Douglas Hooper

Ivan Geoffery Douglas
Hooper

Madian Star Limited
Lung Chung Chi
Ry

Hu Rong
HES

Able Merchant Limited

ectors’ Report

Notes
Wi
aéb

ade

a&d

d

Capacity
5

Interest of controlled
_ corporation
RN EE E R

Interest of controlled
icorpgratio\nip /
RS AR R

Interest of controlled
_corporation
SR R

Trustee

A

Interest of controlled
_corporation -
R A R

Interest of controlled
4corp9ratio\n »
R Bz R

Interest of controlled
_ corporation
R ER

Interest of controlled
_ corporation
R AR R

Beneﬁcial owner
ERAAA

Beneﬂcial owner
ERAAA

Beneficial owner

EEREA

Beneﬂcial owner
ERAAA

Number

of ordinary
shares held
(long position)
SREER
R&%E (#2)

457,330,692

457,330,692

457,330,692

457,330,692

457,330,692

457,330,692

457,330,692

457,330,692

232,255,000

156,310,000

152,222,222
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Number of
underlying
shares held
KEEE
RGEE

880,281

880,281

880,281

880,281

880,281

880,281

880,281

880,281

260,606,060

Total

it

458,210,973

458,210,973

458,210,973

458,210,973

458,210,973

458,210,973

458,210,973

458,210,973

260,606,060

232,255,000

156,310,000

152,222,222

Approximate
Percentage
of interest
BB
[0

23.97%

23.97%

23.97%

23.97%

23.97%

23.97%

23.97%

23.97%

13.63%

12.15%

8.18%

9.74%



Notes:

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

In the 475,330,692 shares, 93,549,498 shares and 363,781,194
shares are registered in the name of and beneficially owned by
Landmark Profits Limited and Goodco respectively, both are the
wholly-owned subsidiaries of Easyknit International. Goodco
was also interested in 880,281 underlying shares (subject to
adjustment) to be issued upon the full conversion of the 2014
convertible note (“2014CB”). Sea Rejoice Limited is interested
in approximately 21.95% of the issued share capital of Easyknit
International and it is wholly-owned by Ms. Lui Yuk Chu. Magical
Profits is interested in approximately 36.74% of the issued share
capital of Easyknit International. Magical Profits is wholly-owned
by Accumulate More Profits Limited which in turn is wholly-owned
by Winterbotham Trust as trustee of The Magical 2000 Trust (the
beneficiaries of which include Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, a director of
the Company, and her family members other than her spouse).
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, the daughter of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and
a director of the Company, is deemed to be interested in the
shares by virtue of her capacity as one of the beneficiaries of
The Magical 2000 Trust. Mr. Koon Wing Yee, being the spouse of
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, is deemed to be interested in the 457,330,692
shares and 880,281 underlying shares by virtue of the SFO.
For the 23,480,281 underlying shares, of which 880,281 are the
underlying shares of 2014CB held by Goodco and the remaining
22,600,000 underlying shares of the share options granted to Ms.
Lui Yuk Chu and Mr. Koon Wing Yee (the spouse of Ms. Lui Yuk
Chu) on 14 October 2016. Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy resigned as
Director on 18 April 2017.

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim and Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, being
directors of the Company, are also directors of Landmark Profits
Limited, Goodco and Easyknit International. Ms. Koon Ho Yan
Candy, being a director of the Company, is also a director of
Easyknit International.

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, being a director of the Company, is also a
director of Sea Rejoice Limited and Magical Profits.

Winterbotham Trust is the trustee of The Magical 2000 Trust (the
beneficiaries of which include Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and her family
members other than her spouse). Winterbotham Trust is owned
as to 75% by Winterbotham Holdings Limited (“Winterbotham
Holdings”) and 25% by Markson International Holdings Limited
(“Markson”) respectively. Winterbotham Holdings is owned as
to approximately 99.99% by Mr. Christopher Geoffrey Douglas
Hooper. And Markson is owned as to 60% by Mr. Christopher
Geoffrey Douglas Hooper and 40% by Mr. lvan Geoffrey Douglas
Hooper respectively.

the noteholder of a convertible note issued by the Company to
Madian Star Limited on 12 June 2015 in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$86,000,000 for a term of 2 years and conferring
rights to convert shares on the basis of the then conversion price
of HK$0.33 per share. The terms of this convertible note are
revised for a term of 7 years at a conversion price of HK$0.16 per
share with effect from 11 May 2017.

Directors’ Re
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

1457,330,692/% i {7 1 - 93,549,498k % 15
363,781,194 % fiX {7 5 5l LALandmark Profits
Limited R EZ 2 BHRECTHEERER + 25
RARKEER 2 2EMB AR - EZIMK2014
F A R R IR R B H1% A] T 817 ,2.880,281
IRAREAR D (A THAR) REAER - LFARA
AR K E B Z B BITIRA T R £21.95% 2 1
mimEBEE®RZLTE2EHE - Magical Profits
RAKZBERZ B EITRARHEE £36.74% .2 1#
% ° Magical ProfitsfgAccumulate More Profits
Limited® & # & * % A 8 B {E AThe Magical
2000 Trust (HXm ABREARAEZTERKRLK
T REBREBBRIN KEKE) 2 EREAREE
REA2ERE  BOMRAXT (EEHRLZLTHX
FFRANGES) AHAEIEARThe Magical 2000
Trustm A2 —2 510 #RAENKROHPHEE
Em- BRKEXEABTEHRX T 2B RIE
B 75 & I E IR B4R 10 457,330,6920% A {9 K
880,281AX MMM P HE A - BRI LR
201754 18EHEES -

AAREEBRFALCERETIT LR L LA
Landmark Profits Limited * £5 Mok & B 2 &
FE o ARREEEUMEZETMAEXKEREREZES -

ARABEBESFEERATTALFERAAR
Magical Profits 2 &% o

B RE5EBThe Magical 2000 Trust (5
mABEERRAL T RBREIBUINZ KikK
8) 2125t A ° Winterbotham Holdings Limited
(IWinterbotham Holdings|) &Markson
International Holdings Limited ([Markson])
PR B RS 7T 9 B B B 75% M25% 2 #E i e
Christopher Geoffrey Douglas Hooper’t £ 1
Winterbotham Holdings# 5 #199.99% 2 ## % °
MChristopher Geoffrey Douglas Hoopert 4 &
Ivan Geoffrey Douglas Hooper’t £ Markson
2 BIEF60%5%40% 2 #EH

2015664128 AR R ET2FH A ¢ B
86,000,000 7t A] #A% 2 & T 25+ H AMadian
Star Limited * AR {2 ARM - LASAE0.33
Bz RBEAEE - R2017F5811H £
AT HFHE7FER0.16/T 2 HIRE -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, the
Company had not been notified by any persons
(other than Directors or chief executives of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were required to be recorded in the register
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 29 June 2012, a new share option scheme
(“Share Option Scheme”) was adopted and
approved by the shareholders of the Company for
a period of 10 years commencing on the adoption
date. Since the adoption date, the Board, may at its
discretion, grant share options to any eligible person
to subscribe for the shares in the Company subject
to the terms and conditions as stipulated in the
Scheme.

Further details of the Share Option Scheme are

set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Movements of the Share Options granted to the BETER (BEES) cBREEZ2E
Employees (including Directors)

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the details of & £2017F3A318 L FE ' REE
the movements in the share options granted to the [EFEIRTALNEES (BHEEE) 2

Company’s employees (including Directors) under BBRREZSFELT -
the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

Outstanding Grant  Exercised Lapsed Outstanding Exercise
as at during during during as at price
Date of grant  01/04/2016 period  theperiod  the period  31/03/2017 Exercise period per share
R20165 R2017%
4R1H 3A31A
Rk AR BARY  HRAR BRXR HRGE RS SRTEE
(HK$)
(27)
14110/2016 0 113,000,000 0 0 113,000,000 14/10/2016 - 13/10/2019 0.176
Total 0 113,000,000 0 0 113,000,000
aft
Notes: Mat -
(1) Share options were granted under the Share Option Scheme. (1) ARIRMERRAERT BII% H 2 BEARAE -

(2) During the year ended 31 March 2017, 33,900,000 and 79,100,000 (@) EH Z=2017F3A31BLEFE R RAARQAFZ
share options were granted to the Directors and employees of the EERAEHEHME S X H33,900,0000 &
Group respectively. 79,100,0000% FE X & -

(38) During the year ended 31 March 2017, no share option was (3) EZE2017F3H318 FFE @ WEBLEEHEUS
cancelled.

(4) Consideration paid for each grant of share options was HK$1.00. (4) EHERBREANZRER1.00ETT

(5) The vesting period for the share options granted is 36 months  (5) FiX VB R L B B#E 513618 A A AJ 7 1A
from the date of grant. 18 -

(6) The closing price of the shares of the Company on the date of (6) ARAREELBEHZHWHER0.126/E T -
grant is HK$0.126.

SILEEERAR 2016/17 F3k 57



ectors’ Report
EEERE

Movements of the Share Options granted to BRTESCEREZEE
Directors

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the details of & £2017F3A318 L FE ' REE
the movements in the share options granted to the REFEIRTFANAEE (EFFATE
Directors of the Company (some are also substantial FRR) 2 ERESSFE K EHREE
Shareholders) under the Share Option Scheme as 17.07{§ 2R EHELT :

required to be disclosed according to the Rule 17.07

of the Listing Rules are as follows:

Outstanding Grant  Exercised Lapsed Outstanding Exercise
Date of as at during during during asat Exercise price
grant 01/04/2016 period the period  the period  31/03/2017 period per share
Rt A H R2016% R2017% 78
(dd/mmiyyyy)  4A1R 38318 (dd/mm/yyyy)
(B/A/%) HAFE  BakE  BREE BRER HATE (B/R/%) SROEE
(HK$)
(27)
Directors
£
Kwong Jimmy 14/110/2016 0 11,300,000 0 0 11,300,000 14/10/2016 - 0.176
Cheung Tim 13/10/2019
BRA
Lui Yuk Chu 14110/2016 0 11,300,000 0 0 11,300,000 14/10/2016 - 0.176
Bk 13/10/2019
Koon Ho Yan Candy ~ 14/10/2016 0 11,300,000 0 0 11,300,000 14/10/2016 - 0.176
BAM 13/10/2019
Employees 14110/2016 0 79,100,000 0 0 79,100,000 14/10/2016 - 0.176
1| 13/10/2019
(other than
Directors)
(BEHM
Total 0 113,000,000 0 0 113,000,000
it
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 26 August 2015, Easyknit Worldwide Company
Limited (“EWCL” an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) as tenant entered into
a tenancy agreement with Wellmake Investments
Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Easyknit
International which is a substantial shareholder of
the Company) as landlord in relation to the formal
renewal of the tenancy of a premises at Block A,
7th Floor, Hong Kong Spinners Building, Phase
6, 481-483 Castle Peak Road, Cheung Sha Wan,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, including decoration, electrical
appliances, furniture, air conditioning facilities and
a car parking spaces on 4th floor (“Premises”) for a
term of 2 years from 1 September 2015 to 31 August
2017 at a monthly rental of HK$208,000 (“2015
Tenancy”). The annual cap is HK$2,496,000, being
the aggregate annual rental for the Premises based
on the monthly rental of HK$208,000. Details of
the formal agreement are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 26 August 2015.

On 19 October 2016, EWCL received a notification
from Grandcorp Development Limited (“GDL’ a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Easyknit International),
informing that GDL is the new landlord with effect
from 18 October 2016 and mentioning that the
remaining period of the tenancy shall continue to
follow all the terms and conditions as mentioned in
the 2015 Tenancy.

Directors’ Réport
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7201598 26 H + Easyknit Worldwide
Company Limited ([EWCL| * AN
FE2ENBAR) EAHF) HEBER
BBER AR (BAREEZMEKE R
MEEMBLR) EREX) AV HER
Z 0 S A% A208,000% T FEM
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Annual review of the continuing connected
transaction

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transaction
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) ‘“Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 ‘Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued
its unqualified letter containing its findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transaction disclosed by the Group on page 59 of
the Annual Report in accordance with Main Board
Listing Rule 14A.56. A copy of the auditor’s letter
has been provided by the Company to The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the Group’s continuing connected transaction
and the report of the auditor and confirmed that
the continuing connected transaction is (i) in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(ii) either on normal commercial terms or on terms
no less favourable to the Group than terms available
to (or from) independent third parties; and (iii) in
accordance with the agreement governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as
a whole. Announcement was published regarding
the Group’s continuing connected transaction. The
Directors confirm that the Company has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in so far as they
are applicable.

Save as disclosed above, the significant related
party transactions that did not constitute connected
transactions under the Listing Rules made during the
year were disclosed in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules and save as disclosed above,
there were no other transactions which need to be
disclosed as continuing connected transactions in
accordance with the requirements of the Listing
Rules.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the 5 largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for 99.7% of the Group’s purchases and
the largest supplier accounted for approximately
49.6% of the Group’s purchases.

The 5 largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 23.9% of the Group’s revenue and the
largest customer accounted for approximately 6.3%
of the Group’s revenue.

None of the directors, their close associates
and shareholders of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the directors of the Company, own
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) have
an interest in the 5 largest suppliers or customers of
the Group.

PROPERTY VALUATION

Property valuations in respect of the Group’s
investment properties in Hong Kong and PRC have
been carried out by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting
Limited and Knight Frank Petty Limited as at 31
March 2017 and 2016, both are independent qualified
valuers. For the investment property in Singapore,
the valuation as at 31 March 2017 was carried out
by Edmund Tie & Company (SEA) Pte Lid, another
independent qualified professional valuer. Their
valuations were based on residual value approach,
income capitalisation approach and/or direct
comparison method as the valuation methodologies
and were used in preparing 2016/17 final results.
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The Group’s investment properties were valued
at HK$1,320 million (2016: HK$1,333 million), a
decrease over 2016 after adjusted for the exchange
adjustments additions of investment properties.
The decrease in fair value of approximately HK$13
million was recognized in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income for the year. Development
properties and non-investment properties of the
Group were stated at cost less impairment, if any, in
these consolidated financial statements.

The decrease of investment properties of
approximately HK$13 million was mainly attributable
to decrease in fair value of investment properties,
while most of the remaining investment properties
showed a decrease in fair value of properties in
Hong Kong as a result of rental rates of certain retail
business sectors have shown indications of reaching
their peaks.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group is exposed to various risks in its
businesses and operations. Through internal control
systems and procedures, the Company has taken
reasonable steps to ensure that significant risks are
monitored and do not adversely affect the Group’s
operations and performances. The relevant risks are
managed on an ongoing basis. A non-exhaustive list
of principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
is set out below.

Market Risk

The Group’s revenue is principally derived from
Hong Kong and PRC. The conditions of the economy
as a whole and the property market may have
significant impact to the Group’s financial results and
conditions.
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Compliance Risk

The Group’s operations require compliance with
local and oversea laws (including those of PRC,
Bermuda, Singapore and British Virgin Islands) and
regulations, including but not limited to property sale,
management and construction as well as companies
and securities laws. The Group has constantly
monitored its compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Bye-law 178 of the Company’s Bye-laws provides
that, among other, every director and other
officers of the Company shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of
the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they
or any of them shall or may incur sustain by or by
reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in
or about the execution of their duty, or supposed
duty, in their respective offices and related matters
provided that the indemnity shall not extend to any
matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which
may attach to any of them. In this connection, the
Company has arranged directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the directors and officers of
the Company during the year.

ACCOUNT OF KEY RELATIONSHIP

The Group adheres to the standards of business
ethics, this underpins how we conduct business with
our customers, suppliers and contractors.
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ectors’ Report

 EEeHs

Employees

We value our employees who are the Group’s
most important assets. We reward our staff with
competitive remuneration packages and benefits. We
are committed to fostering a conducive, harmonious
and discrimination-free working environment. We
have training budget to subsidize the employees’
continued professional development.

Occupational health and safety is the top priority
across our operations. Safety guidelines are
established to safeguard the employees from any
occupational hazards.

Customers

We strive to provide high quality and reliable
services to our customers. The privacy of our clients’
information is well protected through a privacy policy.
Any complaints from customers are handled and
investigated in a thorough and efficient manner.

Suppliers

We are committed to forging collaborative
partnership with our suppliers and have a database
of approved suppliers and vendors who are assessed
on a regular basis.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year ended 31 March
2017.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group
is set up by the executive directors of the Company
on the basis of their performance, experience and
prevailing industry practice.

The emolument of the directors of the Company is
determined by the Board after recommendation from
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
time commitment and responsibilities of individual
directors, the Company’s performance and the
prevailing market conditions.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme
as an incentive to directors and eligible employees.
Details of the scheme are set out in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s Bye-Laws or the laws in Bermuda
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its directors
as at the date of this report, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as required under
the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 March 2017.
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ectors’ Report
EEERE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee
in accordance with the requirements of the Listing
Rules and the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules. The principal responsibilities
of the Audit Committee is to review and supervise
the financial reporting process and risk management
and internal control systems of the Group. The
Audit Committee comprised of 4 independent non-
executive Directors.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2017.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s Corporate Governance Report is set
out on pages 24 to 41.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant events occurring after the
end of the reporting period are set out in note 37 to
the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR
A resolution will be submitted to the annual general
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche

Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

KWONG JIMMY CHEUNG TIM
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 18 May 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE MEMBERS OF EMINENCE ENTERPRISE LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Eminence
Enterprise Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 74 to 192, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA’)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B B AR S

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPAs Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter

HMRETSR

Valuation of investment properties

REYEZ14E

We identified the valuation of investment properties as
a key audit matter due to the significant judgments and
assumptions made by management of the Group in
determining the fair value.

mY BEEEERERNETATERSRERZ HEHRER
RPBAIRENRZRER—EBRETEFE -

At 31 March 2017, the fair value of investment properties
was approximately HK$1,320 million (consolidated
statement of financial position), with a fair value loss
recognised in profit or loss of approximately HK$13
million (consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income).

R20179F3H31H - RE Y X X F{EX %1,320,000,0007% 7T
(FaBHRRK)  RERERZ A FEERL /13,000,000
BT (Re B REM2EKER) -

The Group’s investment properties are stated at fair value
based on valuations performed by independent firms of
qualified professional property valuers (the “Valuers”).
Details of the valuation techniques and key inputs used in
the valuations are disclosed in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.
BEEERBYEZATENRBEBY A EREEMEMT ([
BRD ) EH 2 RESITR - HEMRAZEETEREEZEHARK
BZFBERER BRI T 14RRKE

Independent Auditor’s Report
BB AR S

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANETNAEERRETEE

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment
properties included:

RAHREMEREEZHERF B

° Obtaining an understanding from the Valuers and
management of the Group about the valuation techniques,
performance of the property markets, significant
assumptions adopted, critical judgmental areas, key
inputs and data used in the valuations;

HhEmk EXEERETREERE DETSRER
FIRAcERRR  FTRHGEE  REMKBZEIERA
K&

. Assessing the integrity of information provided by
management of the Group to the Valuers by comparing
details of rentals to the respective underlying existing
lease agreements;
BRLBHEBRAROCESFHEMN G SEEREEER
fhERMARE 2 ENZ TR

. Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the Valuers; and
AEMEMNER  EHREENL &

. Assessing reasonableness of key inputs used by the
Valuers and management of the Group by comparing with
relevant market information with similar properties.
FRLBRERYEFEATSENMIGGENR E5E
BERERAZIBRAZEZAEN -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B B AR S

Key audit matter

HRETSR

Impairment assessment on loans receivable
ERE 2 RETFIE

We identified the impairment assessment on loans
receivable as a key audit matter due to estimation
uncertainty inherent in the management’s credit risk
assessment process in respect of the collectability of loans
receivable.

RRNEREREKER 2 ATREE 2 EERRTHBREFER
FETE 2 fhat - BT S Azxﬂ@aﬂaz%—%ﬁ%%ﬁ%lﬁ °

The loans are assessed for impairment individually.
In determining the impairment on loans receivable,
management of the Group considers financial background
and creditability of individual borrower.
BEDRENERFE - REETRKERZRER - H5E
EEESERMERBERAZHBES MAISMT -

At 31 March 2017, the carrying amount of loans receivable
was approximately HK$264 million (note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements) and no impairment
allowance on loans receivable was made in the current year
(note 4 to the consolidated financial statements).
2017463 A31H - B E 5 2 BR [ {8 49 /264,000,00078 7T
(A B IRRMT15) RN G E I 5t R & SR s (B
& (A M| AIT4) -

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. YN
The other information comprises the information included in the annual &
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and ~ All#R &

our auditor’s report thereon.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANETNAEERRETEE

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment on loans
receivable included:

RFIHERE S RER 2 HERF B

. Understanding the Group’s policy on granting loans to the
borrowers and the related credit control including ongoing
loan monitoring procedures;

T# BERERLERTERAZBERABRERE
EREFZEEES

. Evaluating the management’s assessment on the credit
quality of the borrowers by examining records including
financial background, current creditworthiness, collateral
and past collection history of the borrowers; and
HEEREAREHERERAMBER RBEE  ER
mEBEERIER AT RERAZEEER &

. Checking the existence and recoverable amount of the
underlying collateral, if applicable.
BEMBEERmz FEREATKESRE  EA -

c A E R BRETER
SR EEYSEAlliok Y ot

D> )mlH

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover HKMYGAMBHRENERAITRERLMES - &M
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance I T¥ZFEMESBRRTAFANER LR

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, #Z&&KMNHKEHBERENEFN  RMNETENE
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, HE {8 @ FEtBIEF - EEHEMES ST EIEER
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with KK HFIFERTBRFABRENIBRFESE KIKHE R
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in EMUFHFHEERERRANEBER - ERHMEHTH
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
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on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B B AR S

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Yen Sau Yin, Emily.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

18 May 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meBmkHMEEKER

For the year ended 31 March 2017
#ZE 2017 F3 A 31 HIEFE

Revenue
Cost of goods sold and services rendered

Other income

Other gains and losses

Other expenses

Distribution and selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Loss on changes in fair value of investment
properties

Impairment loss on available-for-sale
investments

Write-down of properties held for development
for sale

Loss on fair value changes of investments held
for trading

Loss on fair value change of financial assets
designated as at fair value through profit or
loss

Loss on fair value change of bonds

Finance costs

Loss before taxation
Taxation

Loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company

ES
HE R RBE AR

Hft A
Hitolas K& 18
Hitfx
SN
TBRAX
REMEZAVE
Z2HER
ARHEREY
BIEEE
RELERRMEL
BB
REEEREZDF
EZFEHE
BAFEFARRZ
EREEZAYE
2HER
ExZ A HERYER
BERA

FREL A BT R
A

ARBRREN
AERER

74  Eminence Enterprise Limited 2016/17 Annual Report

NOTES
i

14

17

10

11

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE FET
36,518 103,439
(171) (67,001)
36,347 36,438
17,573 12,048
(286) 572
(492) (1,067)
(13) (1,762)
(32,911) (30,429)
(12,792) (33,399)
(14,176) -
= (15,511)
(2,374) (2,540)
(1,255) (8,296)
- (2,193)
(19,213) (15,099)
(29,592) (61,238)
2,965 (8,030)
(26,627) (69,268)




Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

RERBEREMEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2017
#Z 2017 F 3 A 31 HILFE

2017 2016
NOTE HK$’000 HK$'000
Hiet FET FHET
Other comprehensive (expense) income Hth2m (%) WA
Items that may be reclassified subsequently — fEER[GEE R 7452
to profit or loss: Bm KA :
Exchange differences arising on translation of & 8INEEREF TS
financial statements of foreign operations WEZIEREZR (16,038) (6,478)
Change in fair value of available-for-sale AEHEREZ
investments NHEZE 13,995 (10,931)
Reclassification adjustment upon impairment  A[{# H &R E R RER
of available-for-sale investments ZEMDERE 14,176 =
Release upon disposal of available-for-sale HEJHREERER
investments P (5,059) -
Other comprehensive income (expense) for AEZHMEE
the year WA (F%) 7,074 (17,409)
Total comprehensive expense for the year RN BIREREL
attributable to owners of the Company AEEZEMAY
1A% (19,553) (86,677)
Basic and diluted loss per share BIRERKEEEIE 12 (HK$0.02) (HK$0.14)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e BRI R

At 31 March 2017
2017 3 A 31 A

2017 2016
NOTES HK$°000 HK$ 000
HqE FE FET
Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ¥ - BE KRG 13 3,616 531
Investment properties wEY 14 1,320,369 1,333,316
Loans receivable JEE R 15 44,326 57,500
Available-for-sale investments Al ERE 16 158,541 133,034
1,526,852 1,524,381
Current assets MENVEE
Properties held for development for sale BIEHERREME 17 1,035,792 524,000
Deposits and prepayments for acquisition of B ARIEHERE
properties held for development for sale MEZRER
iENEN 12,791 =
Trade and other receivables B 5 REMEWRIE 18 40,171 35,982
Loans receivable e E K 15 220,069 18,500
Investments held for trading FIEEERE 19 4,505 5,944
Other financial assets HEMemEE 20 53,980 =
Bank deposits with original maturity of more BB =18 A%~
than three months BITER 21 103,606 =
Bank balances and cash RITHEHB RS 21 409,884 465,279
1,880,798 1,049,705
Current liabilities mEAE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENRIE 22 48,712 27,108
Tax payable [ ANE 9,430 9,131
Convertible notes RBEEE 23 81,981 74,705
Secured bank borrowings BERRITEE 24 420,400 4,993
560,523 115,937
Net current assets REEESFE 1,320,275 933,768
Total assets less current liabilities BELERRDERE 2,847,127 2,458,149
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Non-current liabilities
Convertible notes
Deferred tax liabilities
Secured bank borrowings

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FRBAME
QESES
ELHRAE
AHEARITE

5
B

BARER
A
G4

NOTES
i

23
25
24

26

mE BRI R

At 31 March 2017
R2017 3 A 31 H

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TRET
13,820 12,379
21,854 26,232
359,300 95,094
394,974 133,705
2,452,153 2,324,444
19,118 11,166
2,433,035 2,313,278
2,452,153 2,324,444

The consolidated financial statements on pages 74 to 192 were

BE2R201745 A 18B I ERRERRETAE1928
ZIRAHBRE YA TIEERERE

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 18
May 2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim
BRI
DIRECTOR
EF

Lui Yuk Chu
DIRECTOR
EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mERBEHR

For the year ended 31 March 2017

EF2017F3 31 HILFE

At 1 April 2015 201554718

Exchange difierences arising on BERINEE
tranlation of financial statements of ~ REEHZE 2
foreign operations EizZE

Change in fair value of avallable-for-sale T HERE 7
investments NTEEY

Loss for the year TEEER

Total comprehensive expense for the  AEE2f
year HYLE
Issue of new shares RIHR
Transaction costs attributable to issue of - {73k 2 X BAE
new shares
Reduction of share capital upon capital A E4E 2 ik

reorganisation LIl

Set-off contributed surplus against BARBEEZH
accumulated losses |

Recognition of equity component of ~ BEZTAREHiE
convertible note %)

Deferred tax liability on recognition of 272
equity component of convertible note

At 31 March 2016 2016537310
Exchange difierences arising on BEREERNIE

translation of financial statements of ~ HZZEZEE

foreign operations
Change in fair value of available-for-sale T HERE 7
investments ATEEY
Reclassification adjustment upon MRIERE
impairment loss on available-forsale  RHEE 2
investments EEpEE
Release upon disposal of available-for- ~ H/ER 1 &
sale investments RERER
Loss for the year TEEER

Total comprehensive (expense) income  AEF2E (%)

for the year WNEE
Issue of new shares REIHR
Transaction costs attributable to issue of  Z{7#ik 2

new shares RHRA

Recognition of equity component of BATARER
convertible note i

Deferred tax liability on recognition of
equity component of convertible note

Issue of shares on conversion of
convertible note

Deferred tax liability released upon
conversion of convertible note

Recognition of equity-settled share-
based payments

At 31 March 2017

H201753A318

Convertible Investment Property Share

Share Share  note equity Capital Contributed ~ Exchange revaluation revaluation options Accumulated

capital premium reserve reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
TAREE REEBfH  WXREH BRE

Re  BRGEE  EERE  RABE 0B EXGR % % % R a3
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
AT T4 A A AT T#r & & & & &
253 1,063,521 7343 53,194 261,126 26,500 (1,273) 40,624 - 1,357 1,562,645
- - - - - (6,478) - - - - (6,478)
- - - - - - (10,931) - - - (10,931)
- - - - - - - - - (69,268) (69,268)
- - - - - (6,478) (10,931) - - (69,268) (86,677)
15,698 823,911 - - - - - - - - 839,609
- (4,971) - - - - - - - - (4,971)
(4,785) - - - 4785 - - - - - -
- - - - (4,785) - - - - 4,785 -
- - 16,573 - - - - - - - 16,573
- - (2,735) - - - - - - - (2,735)
11,166 1,882,461 21,181 53,194 261,126 20,022 (12,204) 40,624 - 46,874 2,324,444
- - - - - (16,038) - - - - (16,038)
- - - - - - 13,995 - - - 13,995
- - - - - - 14,176 - - - 14,176
- - - - - - (5,059) - - - (5,059)
- - - - - - - - - (26,627) (26,627)
- - - - - (16,038) 2,12 - - (26,627) (19,553)
5,730 90,410 - - - - - - - - 96,140
- (961) - - - - - - - - (961)
- - 24,391 - - - - - - - 24,391
- - (4,025) - - - - - - - (4,025)
2,22 47778 (24,391) - - - - - - - 25,609
- - 4,025 - - - - - - - 4,025
- - - - - - - - 2,083 - 2,083
19,118 2,019,688 21,181 53,194 261,126 3,984 10,908 40,624 2,083 20247 2,452,153
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

The capital reserve of the Group represents the credit arising from
the reduction of share capital of the Company in March 2004 and
September 2005 and can be applied in the future for distribution to the
shareholders.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the credit arising
from the reduction of share capital of the Company in February 2003,
October 2009, December 2012, November 2013, October 2014, March
2015 and October 2015, part of which was applied to set off against
accumulated losses of the Company in October 2009, December
2012, November 2013, October 2014, March 2015 and October 2015.
The balance may be utilised by the directors in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws and all applicable laws, including to eliminate the
accumulated losses of the Company.

The property revaluation reserve of the Group represents the gain
on revaluation of certain leasehold properties and prepaid lease
payments of the Group when these leasehold properties and prepaid
lease payments were transferred to investment properties.

REERBER

For the year ended 31 March 2017
#Z2017F3H31AIEFE

REE 7z RAFEEHERKARD T 12004F3 A 220059
REBIBBAMEE 2 ER - ATEBRD IR TR -

AEEZHABBRRADER2003F27 » 2009F
10A 20124127 20134117 + 20144107 -
201553 A ]2 2015510 A Il AR 7 i P 2 4 2 3 B
8D B R2009F10A8 - 20126127 ~ 20135117 -
20145108 201593 A k2015510 A A{EE AL
Rz B EE EZRBALAERMKFAARE
BZEBFAERZES  DEAUBEARAZE
EHEIE

ARBEZNEERRERERASBERLEANERE
MEERAERENEHERE THEDERENHE
ERR 2 s
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RATEREE
For the year ended 31 March 2017
EF2017F3A31HILFE
Operating activities MR
Loss before taxation HATEE
Adjustments for: R
Interest income FEBA
Interest expense FERAXZ
Depreciation ne
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BERRE
equipment B8
Loss on changes in fair value of investment REMEZATEE
properties i
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHEEREZ
investments REEE
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HETHHKERE L
investments Y zs
Write-down of properties held for BIEHERENE L
development for sale BE
Unrealised loss on fair value changes of BEEEREZATE
investments held for trading 2E 7 RKEBREB
Loss on fair value change of bonds BH 2 N FEZHER
Loss on fair value change of financial assets BRAFEFAERZ
designated as at fair value through profit SREEZRATE
or loss 2EEE
Equity-settled share-based payment expense EREE 2 ]A
REMY HRAY
Dividend income from listed investments FHREZBREWMA
Operating cash flows before movements in RTEBESEHRI
working capital Reniang
(Increase) decrease in properties held for BELEREDE
development for sale (&) wD

Increase in deposits and prepayments paid for B AEHERREYE Y
acquisition of properties held for development &4 RIERFIE M
for sale

Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 KA MU ERIRE
Decrease in bills receivable [ERZE R
Increase in loans receivable JEHE T
(Increase) decrease in investments held for BEBEERE
trading (&m) md
Increase (decrease) in trade and B 5 RE A
other payables i O )
Cash (used in) from operations RE (BR) 8EzRE
Income tax paid ERAER
Dividend received from investments RERE ZEWRE
Net cash (used in) from RE (AR) B85xH%2
operating activities ReER
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2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(29,592) (61,238)
(6,421) (4,869)
19,213 15,099
444 179
1 —
12,792 33,399
14,176 =
(5,059) -
- 15,511
2,374 2,540
- 2,193
1,255 8,296
2,083 -
(4,247) (4,115)
7,019 6,995
(393,338) 106,251
(12,791) =
(4,340) (23,559)
- 869
(188,395) (52,360)
(935) 83,073
18,901 (2,047)
(573,879) 119,222
(133) -
4,247 4,115
(569,765) 123,337




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
2Ny =| iﬁ%/)lb;;—%

For the year ended 31 March 2017

Bl F2017F3A31HIEFE
2017 2016
NOTES HK$000 HK$'000
HiEt FET FET
Investing activities REED
Purchase of other finance assets BAHEMBSREE (375,976) (407,638)
Placement of bank deposits with original HigRB=ER T
maturity of more than three months RITIFH (103,606) =
Settlement of debts assigned in acquisition UM B A FEZ
of subsidiaries BRI 2 31 (82,135) -
Purchase of available-for-sale investments 8 A A] it HE &R & (35,900) (55,109)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of assets % :BUrkE HiE 2 T8 A
and liabilities through acquisition of BERABZESRN
subsidiaries REE 31 (34,372) (22,284)
Additions of investment properties REREME (13,778) (214,924)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  BEAY% - BE N &E (3,558) (90)
Proceeds from disposal of other financial HEEMERMEEY
assets Fri§ g 321,767 465,548
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale % AJ it Hj’iﬁiéfz
investments 15 5k 23,133 -
Interest received EHN‘JE 6,567 3,459
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEME Hﬁ)% B2
and equipment FT1S 503 15 -
Purchase of financial assets designated as E\%)\?Tz’&y FFABZEZ
at fair value through profit and loss SREE = (80,000)
Purchase of bonds BAES = (29,125)
Proceeds from disposal of bonds HEBHEHIE = 26,932
Net cash used in investing activities BAREREES RS FE (297,843) (313,231)
Financing activities AL
Bank borrowings raised EEBTIEE 684,595 =
Proceeds from issue of new shares ?Xﬂ%ﬁﬂxZFﬁ@rﬂ 96,140 630,544
Proceeds from issue of convertible note BT RRERZ
FriSIE 50,000 86,000
Interest paid ERFE (10,678) (7,210)
Repayment of bank borrowings BEBITEE (5,027) (193,838)
Transaction costs attributable to issue of BITHR 2 R SA
new shares (961) (4,971)
Net cash from financing activities RERMEGTE 2 E 25 814,069 510,525
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash HekFERReL
equivalents CRd) EinFaE (53,539) 320,631
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the E#7H4RERES
year 465,279 144,628
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNEFEREE) y & (1,856) 20
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year, FERBEREERE -
represented by bank balances and cash IRTTEBERES 409,884 465,279
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2017
#ZE 2017 F3 A 31 HIEFE

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company has been a subsidiary of Easyknit International
Holdings Limited (“Easyknit International”), an exempted
company incorporated in Bermuda with its shares also listed
on the Stock Exchange, and became an associate of Easyknit
International on 12 June 2015. At 31 March 2017, Easyknit
International had 23.92% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$” or “HKD”) which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 36.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
EF 20173 A 31 HIFFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. BAFIEEMBEREEINRE
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG N
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)
Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the REFEBH LR E B BHEERISTE

current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs AEEERAFEENERATI BEESTMA
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants SRMOBEATBERELASEIA

(“HKICPR) for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for acquisitions of BEERBREEIE11HR WEaEEHERS
interests in joint operations (BETA) SRR
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure initiative BEREHRAEIR (BiTA) BEFIH
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of acceptable methods of ERSHENEI6RRES TUBEXNEREE
and HKAS 38 depreciation and amortisation SEERIEI8T (1BFTA) FAEREE
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer plants ERSHENEIRRES BE:£ENED
and HKAS 41 EER S EEACHEN)
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment entities: Applying the ERMBREENEI0% -  REER: ERAH
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 consolidation exception BAMBREERF125 BBIMER
REBEGTERE285%
SEHEN)
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs BEUBREED BB REES
2012 - 2014 cycle ({B3TA) 2012F 220145
BRNFEELE
The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current AEBERRAEBVBREENBIAEAEEE
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial AIRBAFENMBERARMRR /IR ELR
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/ U REROBBETEEAVE -

or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
EF 20173 A 31 HIFFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

ERAFITEEVEREENRE
HEE 2,

BB KL KA H T BB BB EERIR

HES

AL B EIRAER T3 2 MM IE =R LR
FAERBMBRELNRERTAK :

effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments?

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
and the related amendments?

HKFRS 16 Leases®

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 7

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 40

Amendments to HKFRSs

Classification and measurement of
share-based payment transactions?

Applying HKFRS 9 “Financial
instruments” with HKFRS 4
“Insurance contracts”

Sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or
joint venture*

Disclosure initiative'

Recognition of deferred tax assets for
unrealised losses’

Transfers of investment property?

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2014 - 2016 cycle®

EEMBRELNFR SRIA?

EEMBREERFIT  KEZPANNYAR
RAETA

BEMBRELENE 16 HE

L e
(27%)

BAMBREER R4S
(BaIA)

BEMBREENE10%
kBB G ERE28H
(&%)

FRRIENETE (B55)

EEgHRIE Y
(37%)

FERIERIF40R
(37%)

EAMHREER
(&%)

AR AEROLHS
HABRHE?

RERAT RS NS
[RBAN] BREERH
SRAEOH [2RTA:

REEREBENANAL
TRZEANEEHER
YN

BB

FAERBRERNEL
HEEE'

RS e vESY

BEUBEREERN2014F
Z2016FBEMFENES

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to
be determined.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017 or 1 January 2018, as appropriate.

N
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS") (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and

measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general
hedge accounting and impairment requirements for financial
assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group

are:

all recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
Debt instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets, and that have
contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding, are generally measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair value at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in
the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only dividend
income generally recognised in profit or loss.

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
#Z 2017 F 3 A 31 HILFE

ERAFIEEMEREENRE
HEE 2,

BRUBREEREIN [2MT A/

BEMBHREENFIRIACRHEE ERE
& —REAPEFREBURSREERERTN
DB ENHEL

EAEBEENEENKRELENFIRTEE
T

o FAEBAMGREENFOREEANER
M SR E EFRUANE KA AT ER
E-ABME BRAEEBREANEHHRA
MEBMABKBNERERLABNERE
M RAAINAE RAREEREFTELR
FE - RI—RRER G HIRA B HA A
E-RABGIANEHERAMARMNRRA
B WA E R & B & BB O RTINS
FRHMELNRSRNEBEE  LRAMK
XNEERREERSHEENFNE  —K&
REMEERARAFEREE - AR
EBREMRARERER G ARG
AFEFTE © Wi RIEFBH B S £
£ BRAELTAIREMREE KA
ERRARZIIBRARE GEREEER)
HEMQTERES  —RRBaT EERK
BIA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
#ZE 2017 F3 A 31 HIEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS") (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (continued)

o in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to
an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39 “Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement’ The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary
for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk management
policies as at 31 March 2017, the application of HKFRS 9 in the
future may have an impact on the classification and measurement
of the Group’s financial assets. The expected credit loss model
may result in early provision of credit losses which are not yet
incurred in relation to the Group’s financial assets measured
at amortised cost. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 9 until the Group
performs a detailed review.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 “Revenue’
HKAS 11 “Construction contracts” and the related Interpretations
when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach
to revenue recognition:

86 Eminence Enterprise Limited 2016/17 Annual Report

ERAFITEEVEREENRE
HEE 2,

BRUBREEREIN [2MTR(E)

s NeMBENREME  BAVBERSEL
FORBMTRBEAEEREREEN 2F%
S RERFER [EMI A BAKE]
ZTREELFEEBEAER - BHEE
BEEABREBNSREASEESNEE
%ﬁ&%%ﬁ%ﬁ%%%ﬁ“@k%’%&
BREERREIRERURNES - 8T
2 BEASHEESHRERTITERGEE
BB -

IJI

BEASER2017F3A31AMN e T ARER
BRYEK  BREREBIBREERFESR K
SHASENCREEN D ERIEELETE -
BHEEBREX NGB EAS BRI ARG
ENEREEENABENBEATRINEEERE
BRI REE AWM ERAEEETHFART
Al REBMBRELENEIRNTERMSE
CRRIZN-{:3X

BBUBHEEREISH [ KEEFEAHIUA

ERMBHRELERNFEISRRL - AE—HFARA
HEBRBEARKEEFANNKA - REEH
BREENEISFENE - R LEERE
AEFEREI8R WAl FEGTERIE1
B [ZRAH ] RAERBORITRARRES -

BEMBHREENE1SROZORANSERME
RBOPAER A EPEREAEERIRE 2
THIB &%S@i%ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ&iﬁé&i%ﬁw

MEAHNRE - ARME - ZERISI AHERKA
MR ESER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS") (continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”
(continued)

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

. Step 3: Determine the transaction price

. Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies
a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued clarifications to HKFRS 15 in relation
to the identification of performance obligations, principal versus
agent considerations, as well as licensing application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 15 in the future may have an impact on the amounts
reported as the timing of revenue recognition may be affected
and the amounts of revenue recognised are subject to variable
consideration constraints, and more disclosures relating to
revenue is required. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the Group
performs a detailed review.

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
#Z 2017 F 3 A 31 HILFE

ERAFIEEMEREENRE
HEE 2,

BBUBHEERE155 [ KEFEFEHHIUA S
(%)

F15 BRETPIIUNAH

F28 : BRENTHEORS

F3¥ BEERHER

F4¥  DERXSHEBRANTNENERD

F5% : BERR (I3) BT REAEBEER
LN

RERT BN BRELENF155RE - BEN (K
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e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
EF 20173 A 31 HIFFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS") (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting treatments
for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS
17 “Leases” and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the
basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer.
Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed
for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be
recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-term leases
and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability
is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact
of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification of
cash flows, operating lease payments are presented as operating
cash flows. Under HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease
liability will be allocated into a principal and an interest portion
which will be presented as financing cash flows.

Under HKAS 17, the Group shall recognise an asset and a
related finance lease liability for finance lease arrangement and
prepaid lease payments for leasehold lands where the Group is
a lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential
changes in classification of these assets depending on whether
the Group presents right-of-use assets separately or within the
same line item at which the corresponding underlying assets
would be presented if they were owned.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS") (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group as lessee has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$1,084,000 as disclosed
in note 33. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease under HKFRS
16, and hence the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless they
qualify for low value or short-term leases upon the application of
HKFRS 16. In addition, the application of new requirements may
result in changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure
as indicated above. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the financial effect until the directors of
the Company complete a detailed review.

Other than as described above, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of the other new and amendments
to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the amounts
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
#ZE 2017 F3 A 31 HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for investment properties and
certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair values,
at the end of the reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing

the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for

3.

FEEHHE
L LY

FEMBRRNVEBBEQITMASRMZEE
AEREENRE - I KEMBRRBER
RFESF LR REBRRHERPIRE < BRE

Z o

EREE

MTIXZEHBRAE  BRENERETER
TARBERRARFEFEN  KEMBERE
THRE SR ERS o

ELRA—RABRENERB 2 2 FERES
RiZ

AFEENGTEATS2ERERLETEFR ST
HEEEMBMIERREMNZER - &
ZERELIERBEACAEMBET ARG
Ao BB -REERABANAFER  AKHE
EEREFRBZEMHERTERNMSE2E%E
EETEAEIRBERHEEERSRE - %F
GAEMBREAGER /IREMEHOATE
HREZEEETE  HEEYHREEAE2R
(Tﬂxfﬁﬁgﬁ&*im) HEANZARN BERZ T

measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated X5 SEERE17R ((HE]) @R
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for Z%ﬁ%s&%@%ﬁ\\ CREAFEFERLRUCE
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of ZETEEWIEAFE - Al BEB G ELE2R
HKFRS 2 “Share-based payments’ leasing transactions that are (IF8)) 2 B8R ZFEXFTE G ERE36HR
within the scope of HKAS 17 “Leases’ and measurements that (EERME]D 2EREE -

have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in
HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets”

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Basis of preparation (continued)

In addition, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the

degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are

for financial reporting purposes,

observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

* Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
#ZE 2017 F3 A 31 HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEHBE »)
(continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued) REEE (#)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of
an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights
are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the
Group’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power,
including:

e the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the
size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group or other vote
holders;

e rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

. any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that

WEEERBERBER Lt =18 %lmiz TRk
NEHBRES  AEEBEHMFEER
BYR 2RI -

W%

WARERREHARIRERINAZEE - &
BEREARTAKSEERENIETAEER
BHR ALY ARENUTHREHRITRE
BH - EEAKRERREHRIAEREER
NETHENE  XEEZEMARBEELE
n o B

o ARERARERZAE  HEEMORER

RAAMRREEZABRRDHE

s ARERHORERFEAREIEERE
f&

o HMANRHELZEN: R

. Eﬂ%@\\%f‘?&’ﬁ%%ﬁﬂﬁ’\\%%T’Eﬁﬁ%i

the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to direct  AEBERGEERARENAEIEIEEE
the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be @J BERBERRERELCREAA -
made, including voting patterns at previous shareholders’
meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains IREMBARNASERBIZEGNEAFRFHE

control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses

IEGZIKE@%-HW%UWE AL - ABM
5 REARBRHENBRRZBRARMA -

<k

of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are CHAEENSEHZ APEEAREE K EE]
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other MEBARzBHREERAEEREMEEKE
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control =N

until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial WEFZE  WBARZHBHRESELFAE - U

statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group’s accounting policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the
sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related
costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income taxes”
and HKAS 19 “Employee benefits” respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based
payment” at the acquisition date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current assets
held for sale and discontinued operations” are measured in
accordance with that standard.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
EF 20173 A 31 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESFHEE @

(continued)

Business combinations (continued) £xatt(®)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the FENEZERE  WBHR2ETMEERERS

consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed as at acquisition-date. If, after re-assessment, the net
amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a business

When the Group acquires a group of assets that do not constitute
a business, the Group identifies and recognises the individual
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed by allocating
the purchase price first to the financial assets and financial
liabilities at the respective fair values, the remaining balance
of the purchase price is then allocated to the other individual
identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair
values at the date of purchase. Such a transaction does not give
rise to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Sale of goods and properties held for development for sale

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed.

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course of
business is recognised when the respective properties have
been completed and delivered to the purchasers. Deposits and
instalments received from purchasers prior to meeting the above
criteria for revenue recognition are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position under current liabilities.

Dividend and interest income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Rental income

The Group’s policy for recognition of revenue from operating
leases is described in the accounting policy below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
#ZE 2017 F3 A 31 HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEE »
(continued)
Leasing R

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

RERGERE R R BRI DR LA ERE
RABEAZHY OHEBRBERY - FHEEM
HAOLBBEREERD -

FEBEBLHEA

REHROHS WA RBEBEOFHUERLHE
B NHERLEREROREE 2 NREEK
ABMABROEEZ REERRERBBANZFH
DNEAAHER

The Group as lessee FEEEBEABA

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a RERN 2N NEROFHUNEGEZRR AR
straight-line basis over the lease term. X e

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into ERRFIULERNMEI s RBeRA AR

operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction
of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the
end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of the reporting period, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
#ZE 2017 F3 A 31 HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEE »
(continued)
Taxation g

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. When
current or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
#ZE 2017 F3 A 31 HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FERHBE @
(continued)
Property, plant and equipment ¥ BERRE

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent

WE - BERERE TREAAMRER 2 R
ENZFRERRE (WF) REa M BIRRKRT

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if Bk o
any.
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items ME - BEIKEBZNEDREEGAUERSE

of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of the reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation (including properties under development
for such purposes).

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values. All of the
Group’s property interests held under operating leases to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are classified and
account for as investment properties and are measured using
the fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment properties are included in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Investment properties (continued)

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
development are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the
investment properties under development. Investment properties
under development are measured at fair value at the end of the
reporting period. Any difference between the fair value of the
investment properties under development and their carrying
amounts is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as evidenced
by end of owner-occupation, any difference between the carrying
amount and the fair value of that item is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in property revaluation
reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset,
the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to
accumulated profits.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the property is derecognised.

Properties held for development for sale

Properties held for development for sale are classified as current
assets and stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs relating to the development of properties, including
purchase costs of the properties for development and
development costs, are capitalised and included as properties
held for development until such time when they are completed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
#ZE 2017 F3 A 31 HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEE »
(continued)
Financial instruments ¢WMIA

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into three categories
including financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL"), available-for-sale financial assets and loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as
at FVTPL, of which interest income is excluded in net gains or
losses.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
assets is (i) held for trading or (ii) it is designated as at FVTPL
on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near future; or

. on initial recognition it is a part of an identified portfolio of
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
#ZE 2017 F3 A 31 HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may
be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

e the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about the grouping
is provided internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 “Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement” permits the entire combined
contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value with any gains
or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit and loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are

either designated or not classified as (a) loans and receivables,
(b) held-to-maturity investments, or (c) financial assets at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value at
the end of the reporting period. Dividends on available-for-sale
equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the
Group’s right to receive the dividends is established. Changes
in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in investment revaluation reserve, until the financial
asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which
time, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see
accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Loans and receivables (including trade and other
receivables, loans receivable, bank deposits with original maturity
of more than three months and bank balances and cash) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than financial assets at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired when
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost
is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
#ZE 2017 F3 A 31 HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESFHEE @
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) S@MIA (&)
Financial assets (continued) EHEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) EHEENRE (£)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is recognised as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade and other receivables and loans receivable, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When an item of
trade and other receivables or loans receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through
profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an
impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in investment revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity instruments in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
EF 20173 A 31 HIFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESFHEE @
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) S@MIA (&)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued) THEERKITA (&)
Equity instruments RETA

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and
secured bank borrowings) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Convertible notes containing liability and equity components

The component parts of compounds instruments (convertible
notes) issued by the Company are classified separately as
financial liabilities and equity instruments in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument. Conversion option
that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own
equity instruments is an equity instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)

Convertible notes containing liability and equity components
(continued)

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is
estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar
non-convertible instruments. This amount is recorded as a liability
on an amortised cost basis using the effective interest method
until extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument’s maturity
date.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined by
deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair
value of the compound instrument as a whole. This is recognised
and included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not
subsequently remeasured. In addition, the conversion option
classified as equity will remain in equity until the conversion
option is exercised, in which case, the balance recognised in
equity will be transferred to share premium. Where the conversion
option remains unexercised at the maturity date of the convertible
notes, the balance recognised in equity will be transferred to
accumulated profits. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
upon conversion or expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible notes
are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion
to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs
relating to the equity component are charged directly to equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included
in the carrying amount of the liability portion and amortised over
the lives of the convertible notes using the effective interest
method.
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e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
#ZE 2017 F3 A 31 HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESFHEE @
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) S@MIA (&)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued) THEERKITA (&)
Effective interest method BERFE %

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
treated as separate derivatives when they meet the definition of
a derivative, their risks and characteristics are not closely related
to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not
measured at FVTPL.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain
or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Derecognition (continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
EF 20173 A 31 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEHBE »)
(continued)
Impairment (continued) BiE (&)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the state-sponsored pension scheme operated by
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) government or the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered services entitling them
to the contribution.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when
employees rendered the services. All short-term employee
benefits are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an
asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such
as wages and salaries) after deducting any amount already paid.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled
share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity
instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve). At the end of the
reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number of
equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of
the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share options reserve. For share
options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair value
of the share options granted is expensed immediately to profit or
loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share capital and share premium, as appropriate. When the
share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share options reserve will be transferred to accumulated profits.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
EF 20173 A 31 HIFFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors have made in
the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the management has reviewed the
Group’s investment properties portfolios and concluded that
while the Group’s investment properties located in Hong Kong
are depreciable, they are not held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time. Therefore, in
determining the Group’s deferred taxation arising from investment
properties located in Hong Kong, the management determined
that the presumption that investment properties measured using
the fair value model are recovered through sale is not rebutted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
(continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties (continued)

For the Group’s investment properties located in the PRC,
the management concluded that they are depreciable and
are being held under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment properties over time, rather than through sale.
Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred taxation arising
from investment properties located in the PRC, the management
determined that the presumption that investment properties
measured using the fair value model are recovered through sale
is rebutted.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within the next
financial year.

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
EF 20173 A 31 HIFFE

TESHHEBRTEEMTTZE
ERIR 2

ERESHBRRZEIEHE (&)

REYFWECTHRE (&)

RAKENRFREZRENENS EEERR
HAFHERREEHBEEREREMIEEBH
EHRREMEMBENBAE D LENEME
BIRAFE - At - EREARELRPEANK
BYMEMELMELHER  E2BRTERE

ERERARFERAFEZRENEZRRWK
30

TRE M 2 EERR

ATREBARZEIBBR  KWERBEHMR
Hit M EEfEt 2 EBRR - RSB FETRE
BHEMEECREERT —AMBRFELRE
KABZERRER -

SIEEERAR 2016/17 F#& 115



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
EF 20173 A 31 HIFFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 4, TESHHAFTRITEESATZ2E

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Investment properties

Some of the Group’s assets are measured at fair value for
financial reporting purposes. The Group has a designated team
to determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for
fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment properties,
the Group uses market-observable data to the extent they are
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
engages independent firms of qualified property valuers to
perform valuation of the Group’s investment properties. At the
end of the reporting period, the management works closely
with the independent firms of qualified professional property
valuers to establish and determine the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs for fair value measurements. Where there
is a material change in the fair value of the assets, the causes of
the fluctuations will be reported to the directors of the Company.
Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in
determining the fair value of the Group’s investment properties is
disclosed in note 14.

Impairment assessment of loans receivable

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of loans
receivable, which amounted to HK$264,395,000 (2016:
HK$76,000,000) at 31 March 2017. Appropriate impairment loss
for estimated irrecoverable amount is recognised in profit or
loss when there is objective evidence that the amount is not
recoverable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment assessment of loans receivable (continued)

The amount of the impairment of loans receivable is estimated
based on credit reviews of the outstanding balances from
loans receivable and an evaluation of the amounts expected
to be recovered with reference to financial background, current
creditworthiness, collateral and past collection history of the
borrowers. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected or being revised downward due to changes in facts and
circumstances, a material impairment loss/further impairment
loss may arise. No impairment allowance on loans receivable is
made for both years.

Determination of net realisable value of properties held for
development for sale

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of the
Group’s properties held for development for sale, which are
situated in Hong Kong and amounted to HK$1,035,792,000
(2016: HK$524,000,000) at 31 March 2017, with reference to
current market environment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets
may exceed its net realisable value. Appropriate write-down
for estimated irrecoverable amount is recognised in profit
or loss when the net realisable value is below cost. The
estimates of net realisable value are determined based on best
available information and with reference to valuations made by
independent firms of qualified professional property valuers not
connected with the Group. Actual realised amount may differ
from estimates, resulting in a decrease or an increase in the net
realisable value of the properties held for development for sale
and additional write-down or reversal of write-down previously
recognised may be required. During the year ended 31 March
2016, write-down of properties held for development for sale
amounting to HK$15,511,000 (2017: nil) was recognised in profit
or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
EF 20173 A 31 HIFFE

5. REVENUE 5.

Revenue represents the aggregate of the amounts received or
receivable for goods sold, net of discounts, rental income from
property leasing and interest income from loan financing during
the year. An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows:

EXH

EXRBEFANBRTNEcEREE ZCRIE
hefE KedEmELZEeRARKE SR
B2 BN - ARBEZEXEINMT

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Sales of goods EmHE 195 75,208
Rental income HelA 29,384 23,786
Interest income from loan financing REEFRE ZFBWA 6,939 4,445
36,518 103,439

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. 7EER

Information reported to the Group’s chief executive officer, being
the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”), for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on types of goods delivered or services provided. This
is also the basis of organisation, whereby the management has
chosen to organise the Group around differences in products and
services.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments under HKFRS 8
“Operating segments” are: (a) garment sourcing and exporting,
(b) property investment, (c) property development, (d) investment
in securities and (e) loan financing.

118 Eminence Enterprise Limited 2016/17 Annual Report

RERDELDBEAFEME - 2WEAEHE
ZIBREREE [TELERRE]) AR
BBHZERN  DEFRERINRRBREZ
B - W AR ZEE  EEERENLRAE
BARBERNREZER -

REZEMBRESENESHR [KENE] K&
BrREREHRHHR: (RBREOMKK
OIERRE - )PEERE - (EFREK()E



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuea)

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results

by operating and reportable segment:

For the year ended 31 March 2017

Garment
sourcing and

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
#Z 2017 F 3 A 31 HILFE

PEER %)
DEEEER LS

REERERDEOMARE  EXERREN

B F201743H31HIF /&
Investment
Property in Loan

exporting investment development  securities financing Consolidated
FEREORK MEER EHERE EXRRE R
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FET FHT FET FHET
Segment revenue PEEER
External LIPS 195 - - 6,939 36,518
Segment (loss) profit 748 (&18) & FI (662) (6,643) (14,705) 6,774 (4,467)
Other gains and losses H i iz | 518 (286)
Other expenses HitBi% (452)
Finance costs BERAK (19,213)
Unallocated corporate £ /A BJUTA
income 7077
Unallocated corporate 7 A A)F X
expenses (12,251)
Loss before taxation B 71 &5 18 (29,592)
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
EF 20173 A 31 HIFFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.
Segment revenue and results (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Garment
sourcing and Property

PEER %)
PEEEER LS (&)
HZ2016F3H31HIFF/E

Investment
Property in Loan

exporting  investment development  securities financing Consolidated

FBROOKK  MERE
HK$'000  HK$'000

MERER  EHRE SFEE 2
HK$000 ~ HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000

FET FET FET FET FET FET
Segment revenue PERERE
External AN 75,208 23,786 - - 4,445 103,439
Segment (loss) profit 2 (B8) &7 (8,067) (16,257) (15,306) (11,354) 4,324 (46,660)
Other gains and losses Hibla kEE 572
Other expenses Hipfx (985)
Finance costs BEHKA (15,099)
Unallocated corporate income %45 F22 Bl A 7,933
Unallocated corporate ENRARHEY
expenses (6,999)
Loss before taxation R AT E (61,238)

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment profit (loss) represents the result
of each segment without allocation of other gains and losses,
other expenses, finance costs, and unallocated corporate income
and expenses. This is the measure reported to the Group’s
CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.
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e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
#Z 2017 F 3 A 31 HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. ﬁﬁﬁ*ﬂ' (%)
Segment assets and liabilities THMEERER
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities BEEREBIBOINMAREZEERBEN
by operating and reportable segment: T
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Segment assets STWEE
Garment sourcing and exporting RERHOKK 667 1,993
Property investment MERE 1,357,950 1,366,096
Property development MR 1,049,590 524,000
Investment in securities BHERE 163,329 140,021
Loan financing ENRE 265,523 76,513
Total segment assets DEEELTE 2,837,059 2,108,623
Other financial assets Hitn e & E 53,980 -
Bank deposits with original maturity of more than BB =18 A 2| 2 R1THFH
three months 103,606 -
Bank balances and cash SRITHEHBEIRE 409,884 465,279
Others Hh 3,121 184
Consolidated assets RABE 3,407,650 2,574,086
Segment liabilities k- 3=R
Garment sourcing and exporting REREORK 265 620
Property investment MERE 21,095 15,414
Property development MELRE 22,743 6,128
Investment in securities BHIRAE 90 50
Loan financing EXEE 107 85
Total segment liabilities SHaEeE 44,300 22,297
Secured bank borrowings BERRITEE 779,700 100,087
Convertible notes AHRRER 95,801 87,084
Unallocated £ SN 35,696 40,174
Consolidated liabilities meaiE 955,497 249,642
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
EF 20173 A 31 HIFFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. 7HEHR »)
Segment assets and liabilities (continued) THEEREE (£)
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and ROBRAEERBDHRZERDEME

allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating and reportable o KREMeREE BR=EAINBMIRTE
segments other than other financial assets, bank deposits A ROTESRRASRELERERD HHA
with original maturity of more than three months, bank FERZEEN MBEEEEIRERERR
balances and cash and assets used jointly by operating and WO o

reportable segments.

o all liabilities are allocated to operating and reportable o BREEAMRITEE TRREBEEHH K
segments other than secured bank borrowings, liability RERZSMODLERAEZBEN  FTEE
portion of convertible notes and liabilities for which BENEELEREWAE -

operating and reportable segments are jointly liable.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
#Z 2017 F 3 A 31 HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. ﬁjﬁﬁ*ﬂ' (%)

Other segment information Hitn BER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B Z2017F3H31HIFFE

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or EREEFENHBERANDEELELE

segment assets:

Garment Investment
sourcing and Property  Property in Loan
exporting investment development securities  financing Unallocated Total

RBRAKED  WERE  NEBR  BFRE ERRE E7E R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FEx FEx FEx FEX FER FER

Capital additions BARRE 15 15,162 - - - 3,160 18,337
Depreciation FE 66 129 - - - 249 444
Loss on disposal of property, HE#ZE - FER

plant and equipment HEzER - = - - - 1 1
Loss on changes in fair value R&#%¥ 7 A TFE

of investment properties 2EEE - 12,792 - - - - 12,792
Impairment loss on available- A[{tHERE 7

for-sale investments REBE = - - 14,176 - - 14,176
Gain on disposal of available- H &7t HE

for-sale investments RE W - - = 5,059 = = 5,059
Loss on fair value change of #{FEEREZ

investments held for ATEEDEE

trading - - - 2,374 - - 2,374
Loss on fair value change of ZAF(E:A

financial assets designated %7 48

as at FVTPL BEZDVE

2958 - - - 1,255 - - 1,255
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
EF 20173 A 31 HIFFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuea)

Other segment information (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2016

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or

segment assets:

PEER %)

Hitvp BEHR (#)

B F2016F3/31H 1L FE

HESKNBEELEHE

Garment Investment
sourcing and Property Property in Loan
exporting  investment development  securities financing  Unallocated Total
RERRKED  MERE NEER BHRE BERRE BOR &%
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FAT TAT TAL TAL TAL T T
Capital additions BARE 76 447764 - - - - 447840
Depreciation big 71 108 - - - - 179
Loss on changes in fair value & 1% 7 A TE
of investment properties 2EER - 33,399 - - - - 33,399
Write-down of properties BELERENE
held for development for sale 7 /& = - 15,511 - - - 15,511
Loss on fair value change of H{EEERE
investments held for trading AT EZFEE = - - 2,540 = = 2,540
Loss on fair value change ~ EXZ AFEEF
of bonds BE - - - 2,193 - = 2,193
Loss on fair value change of  EAT(E A
financial assets designated  B#&7 &8
as at FVTPL BEZNTE
29EE - = = 8,296 - - 8,296
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuea)
Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, the PRC and
Singapore.

The Group’s revenue from external customers based on the
shipment location of customers for garment sourcing and
exporting segment and location of its customers for other
segments and information about its non-current assets (excluding
financial instruments and loans receivable) by geographical
location of the assets are detailed below:

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
#Z 2017 F 3 A 31 HILFE

6. 7EEHR®
i3 &
REE Y SECNES « DB RIS -
AEEY SEERNREFES  KERRXE
OABRRFERLES - MEBSBANER

FRERE D RIREEREREE D 2 FFRE
BE (TEERSBTAREKES) ERNT :

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
RENREFZEERE ERBEE
2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET
Hong Kong E% 21,831 14,675 914,037 921,694
PRC s 11,406 10,378 267,650 272,187
Singapore EiipI1Ed 3,086 3,179 142,298 139,966
The United States of America X 195 73,732 - -
Europe BUM - 1,379 - -
Mexico =t = 96 - -
36,518 103,439 1,323,985 1,333,847
Information about major customers TERFZER
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing BRAEEHEELTI0%ALZREFZEFER
over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as follows: EHWT
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FT
Customer A ZEA - 67,075

! Revenue from garment sourcing and exporting.

T RERBREAKK L EE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
#ZE 2017 F3 A 31 HIEFE

7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HitlEREE
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TR
Net exchange (loss) gain X (E18) e $8 (286) 572
8. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 8. EXREEZME
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Information regarding directors’ emoluments (a) FHEEMES2ER
Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company for BZE2017F3ABILFEARAIERMHE
the year ended 31 March 2017 are as follows: HIWT -
Non-executive Independent
Executive directors directors non-executive directors
HrEe FUnES BukurEs
Kwong Koon Tse Wu
Jimmy Lui HoYan Wing Chiu Lai Kan Lau Foo  KoonYin

CheungTim  Yuk Chu Candy Ricky LawKau  KaHon  SinMing Tak Ching Welly* Total
BRAF  BE%  EWR WAE  BER MR 0 ¥EW 0 BEE  RRE 2
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000
FiEr T TE7 T FEr FE7 T FAr FiEr T

Fees BT - - - 140 140 140 140 140 35 735
Other emoluments Hthfie
- Salaries and other - #4 R EET
benefts 92 1998 480 - - - - - - 3390
- Equity-settled share-  — J\ER&E
based payment R BEES(H
expense B (Ehiz7)
(see note 27) 216 216 216 - - - = & - 648
- Contributions to - RIMERE
retirement benefits {3
schemes - 18 17 - - - - - - 35
Total directors’ R
emoluments 1,128 2,232 713 140 140 140 140 140 35 4,808

*

Appointed on 1 January 2017 * R2017F1A1BEFE
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
EF 20173 A 31 HIFFE

8. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 8. EEREEZME »
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(a) Information regarding directors’ emoluments (a) BBEEME2EN (£)
(continued)
Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company for #%2016 F3 A31 HILFEARREEMH
the year ended 31 March 2016 are as follows: LHEFIMT
Non-executive Independent
Executive directors directors non-executive directors
I FanEs BUFnEs
Kwong Koon Tse
Jimmy Lui HoYan ~ Wing Chiu Lai Kan Lau Foo

Cheung Tim  Yuk Chu Candy Ricky ~ LawKau KaHon  SinMing  Tak Ching Total
BEE  EIK BAM WKkE  BER BRE® 0 B9 BRW o
HK$000  HK$000  HKSO00  HK$000  HK$000  HKSO000  HKS000  HKSO000  HKS000
At TEr TR TEn TEr TEr TR TEn TEn

Fees Bt = - - 130 130 130 130 130 650
Other emoluments b
- Salaries and other benefits — %4 R E 8127 900 1,560 312 - - - - - 2772
- Contributions to retirement  — iR (RiERIET &/
benefits schemes - 18 16 - - - - - 34
Total directors’ emoluments EElE 900 1,578 328 130 130 130 130 130 3,456
Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim is also the Chief Executive of BERATETARRRIZ BRETRAESIE
the Company and his emoluments disclosed above include BB e aEEIERERBITREZM
those for services rendered by him as the Chief Executive. PRtz BRIE o
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for HIBRZATESHE ARSERERR
their services in connection with the management of the NAIRASEES 2 R -

affairs of the Company and the Group.

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above PBRZFRTEEME RESERERLD
were for their services as directors of the Company and the ARAARIZMBRARIES 2R

Company’s subsidiaries.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments FBR BN TEZNE AR SFER
shown above were for their services as directors of the ARREE 2R o
Company.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
EF 20173 A 31 HIFFE

8. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 8. EEREEZME »
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(b) Information regarding employees’ emoluments (b) EREEMESER
The five highest paid individuals of the Group included three AEERAEaHE ALBIEZS (2016
(2016: two) directors whose emoluments were included F MR EF BERAMEFEZHE
above for both years. The emoluments of the remaining two EEEE XN HetME (20165 : =
(2016: three) highest paid individuals, not being directors, B) WHEF KM ALHIIWT

are as follows:

2017 2016
HK$000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Salaries and other benefits He REMET 2,795 3,302
Equity-settled share-based payment expense  LARERAEE 7 (D AEM
THRAEZ 216 -
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes  R{KIEFIET 2145 39 59
3,050 3,361
Their emoluments were within the following bands: BE7MENF T3 EE -
2017 2016
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
BEAH EEAH
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £2%1,000,000 & 7T 1 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 22,000,000/ 7T -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001%7C22,500,000/% 7T 1 -
2 3
During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group RMEFE AEERAEXNME FTEERHEM
to the directors and the other two (2016: three) highest paid MG (2016F : =&) kmle 2 AL - fEAM
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the AREMARE B 2 BE SRR LB B 2 HE -
Group or as compensation for loss of office. In addition, IS - R EERE R B EEHEERME -

during both periods, no director waived any emoluments.
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e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
EF 20173 A 31 HIFFE

9. BERK

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest on bank borrowings RITIEER B 10,110 6,809
Less: Amount capitalised in the cost of W REBREE KA
qualifying assets =W e x| (1,947) -
8,163 6,809
Effective interest expense on convertible notes I ZE v BERFI S X 11,050 8,290
19,213 15,099
TAXATION 10. %18
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FT
The tax (credit) charge comprises: BIE (Gt A) X B
Current tax: RITHE
Hong Kong BE = 1,940
Other jurisdiction HAth 7% 241 81
241 2,021
Under(over)provision in prior years: BEFETR (M) 4
Hong Kong B8 310 -
Other jurisdiction HihRE (112) -
198 S
Deferred tax (note 25) BEMIE (Hri225) (3,404) 6,009
(2,965) 8,030
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#ZE 2017 F3 A 31 HIEFE

10. TAXATION (continued) 10. B8 ()
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated MEFEEBFNERDRAAERT RN 2
assessable profit for both years. 16.5%5TH °
Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise REPEARENBERMGEEMSIE ([BEM
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the BEE]D) REEMBIEZBREN - RHPEZ
EIT Law, the tax rate of the subsidiaries in the PRC is 25%. B AR ZHER25% o
No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been made as FERB MR MEFEANSEARTIBEBES
the assessable profit is wholly absorbed by tax losses brought B - NSRBI EATE RS -

forward for both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdiction is calculated at the rates Hith A S| 2 TIE YRR BE 2 AT R 5
prevailing in the relevant jurisdiction. o
Tax (credit) charge for the year can be reconciled to the results REFHE GIA) AXEGeEaREMEE
per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other WanRFEZHENT
comprehensive income as follows:
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loss before taxation BRI AT AR (29,592) (61,238)
Tax credit at the applicable rate of 16.5% RIBAHE16.5% (20164 :
(2016: 16.5%) 16.5%) FTE 2 HETA (4,883) (10,104)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BARBBMAZHBSZ
purposes (11,082) (6,551)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax ~ TENFE S 2 BB E
purposes 8,971 11,824
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERREEB HEFE 4,314 14,973
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses previously &) BAF RERHIEEE Y
not recognised HIEF 2 (556) (5,273)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries EEREMREZHBRRZ
operating in other jurisdictions MEER 7 ZE 144 3,180
Underprovision in prior years BAFERETR 198 =
Others Hith (71) (19)
Tax (credit) charge for the year AFEEHE (GTA) X (2,965) 8,030
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
#Z 2017 F 3 A 31 HILFE

11. LOSS FOR THE YEAR N.AFEFHE
2017 2016
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loss for the year has been arrived at after AEEEBEREHR
charging:
Directors’ emoluments (note 8(a)) E=e (47:8(a)) 4,808 3,456
Other staff’s equity-settled share-based HMB T o AEREE 2
payment expense B RERE AR 1,435 -
Other staff costs, including retirement benefits E B TEH - BFERIK
costs BRI A 9,021 13,045
Total staff costs (including directors’ BIkAESE (ARES
emoluments) ) 15,264 16,501
Auditor’s remuneration %R & 2,366 2,080
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense EREAARS 2 FEM AR 171 67,001
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1% « BEMREZITE 444 179
Loss on disposal on property, plant and HEME - BEKREZ
equipment g 1 =
and after crediting to other income: RAREAMBAZA -
Bank and other interest income RITREMF S WA 6,421 4,869
Dividend income from listed investments EFRE 2R EWRA 4,247 4,115
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEJHEERERSE
investments 5,059 -
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EF 20173 A 31 HIFFE

12. BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following

12. BREXARBEFHE

AR FREAE 2 SREA R BERE RS
TAMHE -

data:
2017 2016
HK$000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Loss EE
Loss for the purpose of basic and diluted loss B ERERREEFHIEMS 2
per share B8 (26,627) (69,268)
2017 2016
’000 ‘000
FET FHET
Number of shares BHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ SEREAREEHIEMNS 2
for the purpose of basic and diluted loss per N L @A 2B
share 1,368,624 481,467

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended
31 March 2017 does not assume the exercise of the Company’s
outstanding share options as the exercise would result in a

decrease in loss per share.

Diluted loss per share for both years are the same as basic
loss per share as conversion of the Company’s outstanding

convertible notes would result in a decrease in loss per share.
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#Z 2017 F 3 A 31 HILFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. 9% - BERRE

Furniture,
fixtures and Motor
equipment vehicles Total
&
RERZE RE ECEC]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET
COST 5%
At 1 April 2015 1201554718 791 2,379 3,170
Exchange adjustments ME 5 & (5) (37) (42)
Additions NE 90 - 90
Disposals HE (235) (994) (1,229)
At 31 March 2016 2016F3A31H 641 1,348 1,989
Exchange adjustments 0 3, & (5) (36) (41)
Additions NE 2,992 566 3,558
Disposals HE (30) (319) (349)
At 31 March 2017 R2017%3A31H 3,598 1,559 5,157
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT HERAE
At 1 April 2015 1201554 A1H 555 1,978 2,533
Exchange adjustments M 1 (4) (21) (25)
Provided for the year KEZEE 81 98 179
Eliminated on disposals A E 8 (235) (994) (1,229)
At 31 March 2016 72016434318 397 1,061 1,458
Exchange adjustments M 3, & (4) (24) (28)
Provided for the year NEFZEE 324 120 444
Eliminated on disposals PA L5 R il 8 (30) (303) (333)
At 31 March 2017 R201743831H 687 854 1,541
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 March 2017 ®2017543831R 2,911 705 3,616
At 31 March 2016 7201643 H31H 244 287 531
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EF 20173 A 31 HIFFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the following useful
lives:

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 to 10 years

Motor vehicles 5 years
14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

FAIR VALUE N¥E

At 1 April 2015 72015F4A1H

Exchange adjustments B R

Additions NE

On acquisition of subsidiaries WK B AR

(Decrease) increase in fair value RERERZ X FE OB)
recognised in profit or loss eyl

At 31 March 2016 #2016 3A31H

Exchange adjustments [E 5 A=

Additions NE

(Decrease) increase in fair value RERER 2 2TFE ORd)
recognised in profit or loss &0

Reclassification Eiba ]

At 31 March 2017 72017463 A31H

13. 9% - BERRE @

L BRENE - BERREBEHUEREREAT
A ERERAERE

B RERBE 3ZE10F
nE 5%
14. REY
Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties development Total
EXRRENE BRPRENE ECkC]
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FAET FET
924,510 - 924,510
(5,242) (303) (5,545)
206,593 8,343 214,936
232,814 - 232,814
(55,698) 22,299 (33,399)
1,302,977 30,339 1,333,316
(13,625) (1,309) (14,934)
- 14,779 14,779
(15,219) 2,427 (12,792)
18,221 (18,221) -
1,292,354 28,015 1,320,369
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

All of the Group’s leasehold interests in land held under operating
leases to earn rentals are measured using the fair value model
and are classified and accounted for as investment properties.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at the end
of the reporting periods were arrived at on the basis of valuation
carried out as at these dates by the following independent firms
of qualified professional property valuers not connected with the
Group:

Location of
investment
Name of valuer properties
At 31 March 2017
Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited Hong Kong

Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited PRC

Edmund Tie & Company (SEA) Pte Ltd Singapore
At 31 March 2016
Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited Hong Kong

Knight Frank Petty Limited PRC
DTZ Debenham Tie Leung (SEA) Pte Ltd Singapore

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group completed
the construction of certain investment properties under
development in the PRC and these properties were leased
out immediately for rental income. Hence the directors of the
Company decided to reclassify the relevant properties amounting
to Renminbi (“RMB”)16,000,000 (equivalent to HK$18,221,000)
from investment properties under development to completed
investment properties. There was no reclassification of investment
properties during the year ended 31 March 2016.

The loss arising on changes in fair value of investment properties
of HK$12,792,000 was recognised in profit or loss during the
year ended 31 March 2017 (2016: loss of HK$33,399,000).

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
#Z 2017 F 3 A 31 HILFE

14. BREW &)

AEERANKERNETRIEE 2 L 0EH
BEARFERAFERDIBAREMED
E-E o

AEERNBEPRZREDEAFEIRATE
AEEREBEZBUABREEYEMLEMT
RFRMETHEZEEERT -

m

RENME
EEMT AR 2R

20173 A31H

B EEFGBEEARAR B

BIEEENGBERERAR #

Edmund Tie & Company DI
(SEA) Pte Ltd

720163 A31H

BRI EEFEERERAR B8

FIRETRNIT B R AT H

DTZ Debenham Tie Leung N
(SEA) Pte Ltd

HZE2017F3A31ALF A AEETRHERS
FURFEERPEENELCHENLEZSE
MENRRES KA - Bt - RAREERESE
MoeBERARE (|AK%]) 16,000,0007T
(1H57418,221,000% L) Z BB ERE B H K
EMEZCTREBEENE - BE20165F3A31H
LFEXESHOEREME -

BE2017F3AB UL FEZRENEZAF
1 % &) &5 812,792,000 7T (20164 : & 18
33,399,000/ 7C) BN ERER o
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#ZE 2017 F3 A 31 HIEFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The following table gives information about how the fair values
of the investment properties are determined (in particular, the
valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value
hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorised

o

]

(Levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements is observable.

14.

REWE &)

TRINABEERENEORFHEZER (FRIZH
ERHETERBAZER) URREGAREZA
BREREREINATFESR (FIEEIR) 2 A FE

Investment
properties held Fair value at Fair value Valuation techniques Significant
by the Group 31 March hierarchy and key inputs unobservable inputs Sensitivity
rEEREZ R3A31A
REM=E ZDVE AVHESR RESERIEBAEE EBEATTEEBANE BRE
2017 2016
HK$000 HK$'000
FET TAT
Commercial units in 192,273 208,196 Level 3  Direct comparison Price per square foot, The higher the price per
Hong Kong method - based on using market direct square foot, the higher
£33 market observable comparables and the fair value
WEE Y EL R transactions of similar taking into account

properties and adjusted to
reflect the locations and
conditions of the subject
properties

BERLBE - ARFEY
FIMGUBRER LR
AR IR B IRE 2L
ERMR
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of location and other
individual factors such
as road frontage, size of
property, etc., which is
ranged from HK$82,002
to HK$302,298

(2016: HK$40,000 to
HK$721,333) per square
foot

BYHREE  HATS
ERALBMRERMNE
WA R B A A B E & e
BY MEXNNE Y
HRNT82,0028 L%

302,298 7T (20164 :

40,000 £721,333/%
L)

STHRERRE 2
FEaB
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e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
#Z 2017 F 3 A 31 HILFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. REYN=R @)
Investment
properties held Fair value at Fair value Valuation techniques Significant
by the Group 31 March hierarchy and key inputs unobservable inputs Sensitivity
rEEEEZ R3A31A
RENE ZDTE AVEER HEFERIERABE EATUERRAZE BRE
2017 2016
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Commercial units in 593,600 613,160 Level 3  Residual value approach  Price per net saleable The higher the price
Hong Kong — price per net saleable  area per square foot, per net saleable area,
&3 area using market direct the higher the fair
WEE Y LB comparables and taking  value

. — into account of location T o TR
BEA-AHEREEE g other individual tEZRI%ETEE
& factors such as road B - AFERR

frontage, size of property,
etc., which is HK$27,581
(2016: HK$26,200) per
square foot

BYFRALEFERE
B RATGERTLE
MR EBMENREHE
RIRRMREEE - ME
A& - §EFR27,581
7 (20164 : 26,200/ 7T)

— estimated construction  Estimated construction The higher the
and professional costs o and professional costs to  estimated construction

complete complete per square foot, and professional
which is HK$4,201 (2016:  costs to complete per

~HRETHZEERE  HK$4,338) square foot, the lower

N the fair value
EHAERR BT ARE

HREERAKN - HR4201 GHAERKZETH
B (2016%F © 4,3388 REERFERKA
7T) » AFHERE

ot
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
#ZE 2017 F3 A 31 HIEFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. REME #)
Investment
properties held Fair value at Fair value Valuation techniques Significant
by the Group 31 March hierarchy and key inputs unobservable inputs Sensitivity
AEEEEZ R3A31A
RENFE ZDTE AVHESR RESERIEBARE EBEATTEEBANE BRE
2017 2016
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Industrial units in 78,160 56,622 Level 3  Direct comparison Price per square foot, The higher the price
Hong Kong method - based on using market direct per square foot, the
E3 market observable comparables and taking  higher the fair value
REBz T¥EN transactions of similar into account of location

properties and adjusted to

and other individual

reflect the locations and
conditions of the subject

property

EREEE - ERFAEY
FZMSUERZI LR
HEARBRBEYE 2
B RN
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factors such as road ATER
frontage, size of property

etc., which is ranged from

HK$4,202 to HK$5,163

(2016: HK$3,545 to

HK$4,086) per square

foot

BYHREE  HATS
BERALBNREEAL
ENREMENRZNE
HEK  mEX)E -
BEHRNT4,2025T
%5,163% 7T (201645 -
3,545/5 724,086/ T)
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
#Z 2017 F 3 A 31 HILFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. REME #)
Investment
properties held Fair value at Fair value Valuation techniques Significant
by the Group 31 March hierarchy and key inputs unobservable inputs Sensitivity
rEEEEZ R3A31A
RENE ZDTE AVHESR RESERIEBARE EBEATTEEBANE BRE
2017 2016
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Residential units in 46,870 43,510 Level 3  Direct comparison Price per square foot, The higher the price
Hong Kong method - based on using market direct per square foot, the
E3 market observable comparables and higher the fair value
REBZEEERN transactions of similar taking into account of

properties and adjusted to
reflect the locations and
conditions of the subject

property

EREEE - ERFAEY
FZMSUERZI LR
HEARBRBEYE 2
B RN

location, age and other ~ HF¥HR
individual factors, which AR
is ranged from HK$6,708

to HK$18,417 (2016:

HK$6,852 to HK$15,207)

per square foot

BYFRER KAMS

ERTHBAREEN

B - FHUREMERE

% B¥ARNT6,708
BILE18,4175 T (2016

F 1 6,85287L515,207%
L)
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#ZE 2017 F3 A 31 HIEFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. REME #)
Investment
properties held Fair value at Fair value Valuation techniques Significant
by the Group 31 March hierarchy and key inputs unobservable inputs Sensitivity
AEEEEZ R3A31A
RENFE ZDTE AVHESR RESERIEBARE EBEATTEEBANE BRE
2017 2016
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Residential units in 142,298 139,966 Level 3  Direct comparison Price per square foot, The higher the price
Singapore method - based on using market direct per square foot, the
E3 market observable comparables and taking  higher the fair value
P INE 2 (&AL transactions of similar into account of location

properties and adjusted to

reflect the locations and
conditions of the subject

property

ERIEEE - ERAREY
EPAEDIE -3 Rz
HEIARBRBEYE 2
BN
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and other individual
factors such as road
frontage, size of property,

etc., which is ranged from

HK$16,086 to HK$17,055
(2016: HK$16,238 to
HK$16,874) per square
foot

BYHREER  HATS
ERULBMRERME
AR E A BRI A & mERE
BY MEXNNE Y
HRNT 16,0865 L%
17,055/ 7T (20164 :
16,2385 7L 216,874/8 1)
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#Z 2017 F 3 A 31 HILFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. REME #)
Investment
properties held Fair value at Fair value Valuation techniques Significant
by the Group 31 March hierarchy and key inputs unobservable inputs Sensitivity
rEEEEZ R3A31A
RENE ZDTE AVHESR RESERIEBARE EBEATTEEBANE BRE
2017 2016
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Industrial units in the =~ 239,153 241,523  Level 3 Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate, which  The higher the
PRC of net income is 8.5% (2016: 4.91%) per capitalisation rate,
RN with provisions for annum the lower the fair
Rz TEE(N reversionary income value
potential BERE - BF5H8.5%
(20165 : 4.91%) BERERE »F
NG RPN N ERE
AT HEE SR E Monthly rental rate, taking
AHREE into account of market  The higher the

comparables, which is
RMB9 (2016: RMB13) per
square metre

magANE  ZETS
LB §EHFRAA
REE9TT (20165 « AR
1370)
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value
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
#ZE 2017 F3 A 31 HIEFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. REME #)
Investment
properties held Fair value at Fair value Valuation techniques Significant
by the Group 31 March hierarchy and key inputs unobservable inputs Sensitivity
AEEEEZ R3A31A
RENFE ZDTE AVHESR RESERIEBARE EBEATTEEBANE BRE
2017 2016
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Properties under 28,015 30,339 Level 3 Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate, which  The higher the
development in the of net income is 8.5% (2016: 4.91%) per capitalisation rate,
PRC E3m with provisions for annum the lower the fair
reversionary income value
iNaHIE ALk ) S potential BRE  §FR8.5%
(20165 : 4.91%) BRERR 1T
WANFEAEZWABR ERE
AT HEE RN E Monthly rental rate, taking
AHREE into account of direct The higher the
market comparables, monthly rental rate,
which is RMB9 (2016: the higher the fair
RMB13) per square value
metree
mEEARESR
m5BAME  ZRER QATERS

MBALERN  FEHK
BAR®T (201645 : A
RE137T)

1,320,369 1,333,316

In estimating the fair value of the investment properties, the WEEREMEZ NFER NEIBAULZEE
highest and best use of the properties is their current use. ERLERKZEAAR -
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15. LOANS RECEIVABLE

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
#Z 2017 F 3 A 31 HILFE

15. BIKE R

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Fixed-rate loans receivable TFEEWRER 264,395 76,000
Analysed as: oWAE

Current portion mEh IS 220,069 18,500

Non-current portion FERENLH 44,326 57,500

264,395 76,000

At 31 March 2017, the range of interest rate on the Group’s loans
receivable is 4% to 8% per annum (2016: 4% to 5% per annum).

Before granting loans to outsiders, the Group assesses the
potential borrower’s credit quality and defines credit limits granted
to each borrower. The credit limits attributed to the borrowers are
reviewed by the management regularly.

The Group has a policy for assessing the impairment on loans
receivable on an individual basis. The assessment also includes
evaluation of collectability of accounts and management’s
judgment, including the financial background, current
creditworthiness, collateral and past collection history of each
borrower.

In determining the recoverability of loans receivable, the Group
considers any change in the credit quality of the loans receivable
from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date.
This includes assessing the credit history of the borrowers, such
as financial difficulties or default in payments, and current market
conditions.

The management closely monitors the credit quality of loans
receivable and considers loans receivable amounting to
HK$264,395,000 (2016: HK$76,000,000) at 31 March 2017 that
are neither past due nor impaired to be of good credit quality and
no impairment loss was identified. At 31 March 2017 and 2016,
no loans receivable are past due at the end of the reporting
period for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss.

R20176F3A310 - AEEZ BREERTFH X
N T4%E8% (20164 : HF4%ZE5%) ©

ERHERTIHIRER  AREFGEEEERA
ZEEERNEERTEBUEHAZEER &
BETRAERAZERER -

AEERENEEZ BRAEEKERZRIE
ZAHE MRS TR AL HE R B RS
BEFACHBEER  REEE - EH AR
O 2 B2 E 2 HE -

REEREERZAIREMRR - AEEZ ERK
EFERVBEEEEEREAPZEEERL
EARE - ERBEFEERRAZEEESL - W
PR REOER - RRETIGRR -

CEERTENRNERCZEEEEZ RA
R201763A31H 8 B BE KR E < B E &
264,395,000/ 7T (20164 : 76,000,000/ JT)
BERGEEERRIERAERRE - 20178 K
20165F3A31H  AEBERBEMRI BEKE
FpH - MEHRRERS -
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e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
EF 20173 A 31 HIFFE

15.

16.

17.

LOANS RECEIVABLE (continuea)

No ageing analysis is disclosed, as in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, the ageing analysis does not give additional
value in view of the nature of business of loan financing.

All loans receivable are denominated in HKD, functional currency
of the relevant group entity, at the end of the reporting period.

15.

EWER =)
TREEERAN  AAAREERA  REXR
BLEBRMERES  BESFLREEIMEE -

FARKERRBERROUEEEEER Y
REEATIIE -

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 16. I HERE
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, REBLTZ
at market value feARES - HmE 158,541 133,034
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT 17.B{EHLEXEN%E

FOR SALE

The Group’s properties held for development for sale are situated
in Hong Kong.

At 31 March 2017 and 2016, the whole amount of properties held
for development for sale is expected to be completed more than
twelve months after the end of the reporting period.

At 31 March 2017 and 2016, the Group performed assessment
of net realisable value on its properties held for development
for sale with reference to valuations made by independent firms
of qualified professional property valuers not connected with
the Group. The valuations were arriving at by using the residual
method. At 31 March 2016, the estimated net realisable value of
the properties held for development for sale was lower than their
carrying amounts, a write-down amounting to HK$15,511,000 was
recognised during the year ended 31 March 2016. At 31 March
2017, no further write-down is considered necessary.
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e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
#Z 2017 F 3 A 31 HILFE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. EZ R Ht B RRIA
2017 2016
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables B Z NI 1,950 3,179
Prepayments BAFIE 5,177 1,262
Interest receivable FEUFI B 1,398 1,544
Refundable stamp duty (note) JERBIENTER (A7at) 28,463 28,463
Other receivables Hfth FEUFRIR 3,183 1,534
40,171 35,982
Note: In accordance with the provisions of the Hong Kong Stamp Wist : RIBREBEIEBIEAO 2GR - EMHEER
Duty Ordinance, the Group will apply for refund of the EEREMF  REBEHFREEZZMNE
stamp duty paid when the property redevelopment project EB - e HEREEAREEESMBHRA
commences. The amount is included in the Group’s current RN ZRENVE E AN E T8 B ENTEBR 508 2
assets in the consolidated statement of financial position REEZ EEEERBPAWKE -

as it is expected that the refund of stamp duty will be
received within the Group’s normal operating cycle.

The Group did not grant any credit period for their tenants in FEBSBERTRYEREDH 2 HBPRES
property investment segment. The Group allows an average R016FAEBLTERKS B2 EF 2T
credit period of up to 90 days to its customers in garment MRERENEQ0R - R I WERABM L EEH
segment in 2016. The aged analysis of trade receivables, based 5 BIRNFERRERRZERATHOT -

on the invoice date which approximate revenue recognition date,
at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
0 - 60 days 0-60H 1,946 2,930
61— 90 days 61 -90H 4 170
Over 90 days #3890 H - 79
1,950 3,179
The management closely monitors the credit quality of trade and EREERTERESRAMBRFEL FEER
other receivables and considers trade and other receivables that RRAZERARBECE S RAEMERRIER

are neither past due nor impaired to be of good credit quality. ERFEEEZX -
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e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
EF 20173 A 31 HIFFE

18.

19.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balances are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$173,000 (2016:
HK$758,000) which are past due at the reporting date for which
the Group has not provided for allowance. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables which are
past due but not impaired:

Overdue by 1 to 60 days EiBEI1=60H
Overdue by 61 to 90 days BiBHEI61Z=90H
Overdue by over 90 days BB HARA90H

EZRHMEWREE 2

RBERH AREAEEZEFREZELES
BREANZAHLEEE173,0005 7T (20164 :
758,000/ 70) AEBBMASE LB HRERE -
ARBWLERZSERITEEMER -

EBRBERRECESERRE KRS TN
T

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TETL
169 509

4 170

- 79

173 758

The Group’s trade and other receivables that are denominated
in currency other than the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities are set out below:

United States dollars (“USD”) Ex (%1

AEBENEHEBEERNEER NN ZERTIE
2B REMEAFREINMT

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
223 1,342

INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING

The investments held for trading comprise equity securities listed
in Hong Kong and are stated at fair value which are based on the
quoted market bid prices on the Stock Exchange.
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20. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

21.

At 31 March 2017, other financial assets included principal
protected deposits denominated in RMB issued by banks in
the PRC. The principal protected deposits contain embedded
derivative, the interest rate of which is determined with reference
to the exchange rate of USD against HKD and ranges from 1.40%
to 3.48% per annum with original maturity of three months. The
principal protected deposits are designated as at FVTPL at
initial recognition. There was no principal protected deposits of
similar nature at 31 March 2016. The directors of the Company
considered the fair values of the principal protected deposits,
which are measured with reference to the discounted cash flow
approach, approximate to their principal amounts.

BANK DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL
MATURITY OF MORE THAN THREE
MONTHS/BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank deposits with original maturity of more than
three months

At 31 March 2017, the Group placed time deposits amounting to
US$13,351,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$103,606,000)
(2016: nil) with a financial institution in Hong Kong with original
maturity of more than three months. They carry interest at a fixed
rate of 1.28% per annum.

Bank balances and cash

The bank balances and cash held by the Group comprise
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less, at prevailing market interest rates ranging from
0.001% to 3.48% (2016: 0.001% to 4.3%) per annum.

The Group’s bank balances and cash that are denominated in

currency other than the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities are set out below:

usbD

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
EF 20173 A 31 HIFFE

20. At EMEE

21.

R201743A31H - A mEERERPEM
BABTUAREINEZRAER - RATHRE
BREITEEE BEZEBRENSEETLBL
ZHBREEFEAN T1.40%E3.48% % = (A
AEH - REAGEZRVIERENEARAFE
SHABE - R2016F3A31B W EBLIEE 2 {7
AER - ARAIEERALENBEFEZRA
FRAFEREARSTEEL -

BB=EANAZBTER R
THRHERAS

BB=EAZHRTEN

R201763A31A A& B EH —FH R & &
0 & B 58 A 613,351,000 T (BB E R H
103,606,000/ 7T) (20164 : &) v BB =18 A
s EHER - HEEFEXAE1.28% °

BOTEHEES
AEERE 2 RTRBERL BERRGTTS

F &N F0.001%%E3.48% (20164 : 0.001% %
4.3%) 2 =R 2 BB Ei 2 RERSRIT RN ©

AEENEBEBRERIAEE NI Z2EESIE
ZEITRB S EREINMT

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
60,229 83,547
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e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
EF 20173 A 31 HIFFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 2.EZREMENTE

2017 2016

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Trade payables aged within 30 days 2B S EMNFIBEI0R A 7,213 3,314

Retention payable EfRRES 6,233 788
Rental deposits received and rental received  ZUi&ics KBYWHES

in advance 11,712 10,681

Accruals FEREAR 13,598 5,968

Convertible note interest payable AR EE RN TS 3,105 1,385

Other taxes payable HAth FERI IR 5,802 4,639

Other payables Hfth e 5018 1,049 333

48,712 27,108

EHRAFBEZREDN - DRENRFSHRL
ERROHET - BEZVFHREHR30A -

The aged analysis of trade payables is determined, based on
the invoice date, at the end of the reporting period. The average
credit period on purchases of goods is 30 days.

AEENEREBERNEER NI ZERTIE
2B REMBENFTADT

The Group’s trade and other payables that are denominated
in currency other than the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities are set out below:

2017 2016

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FAT

usD e - 19
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e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
#Z 2017 F 3 A 31 HILFE

23. CONVERTIBLE NOTES CONTAINING 23. TR EEEEEERERRD

LIABILITY AND EQUITY COMPONENTS

(a) On 27 March 2014, the Company issued 2% convertible (a) M2014%3R27H ' AR A AR & B

note due 2019 at an aggregate principal amount of
HK$100,000,000 to Easyknit International (the “2014
Convertible Note”).

The 2014 Convertible Note is denominated in HKD and
entitles the holder to convert it into ordinary shares of
the Company at any time between the date of issue of
the 2014 Convertible Note on 27 March 2014 and its
settlement date on 27 March 2019 at a conversion price
of HK$0.68 per conversion share (subject to anti-dilutive
adjustments). On 3 April 2014 and 29 August 2014,
the conversion rights attaching to the 2014 Convertible
Note were partially exercised for HK$20,000,000 and
HK$60,000,000, respectively, and a total of 122,869,707
conversion shares were issued upon conversion. Pursuant
to the adjustment provisions in the terms and conditions of
the 2014 Convertible Note, adjustments have been made
to the conversion price of the 2014 Convertible Note from
HK$0.68 per share to HK$0.66 per share with effect from
18 June 2014 as a result of the completion of the placing of
new shares, further to HK$0.642 per share with effect from
22 August 2014 as a result of the completion of the placing
of new shares, further to HK$2.498 per share with effect
from 25 October 2014 as a result of a capital reorganisation
and the completion of the issue of rights shares, further
to HK$10.65 per share with effect from 31 March 2015 as
a result of a capital reorganisation and the completion of
the issue of rights shares on 22 April 2015, and further to
HK$22.72 per share with effect from 9 October 2015 as
a result of a capital reorganisation and the completion of
the issue of rights shares. On 31 March 2017, the 2014
Convertible Note with principal amount of HK$20,000,000
remained outstanding. Assuming full conversion of the
2014 Convertible Note at an adjusted conversion price of
HK$22.72 at 31 March 2017, the 2014 Convertible Note will
be convertible into 880,281 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each in the share capital of the Company.

100,000,000/ 7T # 1720195 2| i 2 2%
AMERE T KERR ([2014F T RRE
&)

2014F AR EEUBTIERBEAE
BEUBREBRH0.68ETZEEE (F
ERBBEBLE)  K2014F3H27H 2
2014F A R IR BB E1T B R H 7201943
B7TAZ HE A BBz EMERE RRE
BAARNR 2T BIRRG - M2014F4A3
B 201448 A29H + % 3l £20,000,000
75 7T 1260,000,0007% 7T KT #5 142014 4F 7] 42
BEEZHERECEDIIITE - REBRE
B4 17 42 #122,869,707/ X I {7 o BB
2014F AR BB N 2 43 B B IEHI R 2 3
BAEH 0 TREE RN EH014F AT
BEEr HiaEH2014F6 A18HERER
0.68B L HABEFM0.66HT  THEEE
M B A ER2014F8 A22H L # —
SHABEER0.6425 T BABHAR T
AR B 2 4% (B 201410 250 i i —
SREEER2.4988 T - BAEHERTHK
RS B (B 201553 A31H i —
HHEZER10.658T  MAEZARTK
TR E B N BB H2015F 10 A9 i i —
W B EGR2.724 T © R201756F3H31
B 204F R EBENREELSEA
20,000,000/ 7T © & A T R22.72/8 7T 2
RABNIAE - R201743831B 2@k
20144F A AR 248 - 20146 AR =i Al
RBABARAZRANGREEE.ONETT
2.880,281 %47 Z @M D °
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e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
EF 20173 A 31 HIFFE

23. CONVERTIBLE NOTES CONTAINING
LIABILITY AND EQUITY COMPONENTS

(continued)

(a)

(b)

(continued)

Conversion shares will be allotted and issued upon exercise
of the conversion rights. If the 2014 Convertible Note is not
converted during the conversion period up to the maturity
date, it will be redeemed on the maturity date at par with
outstanding accrued interest. Interest of 2% per annum will
be paid semi-annually in arrears up until the settlement
date.

The 2014 Convertible Note contains two components,
liability and equity elements. The equity component is
presented in equity heading “convertible note equity reserve’
The effective interest rate of the liability component of the
2014 Convertible Note is 13.01% per annum at the date of

initial recognition.

On 12 June 2015, the Company issued 2% convertible
note due 2017 at an aggregate principal amount of
HK$86,000,000 to Madian Star Limited (“Madian”), an
independent third party (the “2015 Convertible Note”).
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(%)

(a)

(b)

(&)

RITE BN SR B R BT BB, -
H2014F A ARRER L AR EE 3
AYR A% - BIFRIE AU REEER
MAXMZEFRMNEER - £8%X2%2
MEAEBFEXNHNE  EEREAR
ko

20145 MR ERBEEMERD - BER
B o B IR [ TR B R
] S 20145 TR ERABEX
ARGHER B R 2 ERNER/FRER
13.01% °

M2015F6H128 - AR AL A & B &
86,000,000/ 7T % 17 M20174F F| 8 ~
2%7] # % Z & FMadian Star Limited
(IMadian]) + —&BiE =7 ([2015%F 7]
BIREE]) -
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e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
#Z 2017 F 3 A 31 HILFE

23. CONVERTIBLE NOTES CONTAINING B.AIRREEEEEBERERZRD

LIABILITY AND EQUITY COMPONENTS (&)
(continued)
(b) (continued) (b) (&)

The 2015 Convertible Note is denominated in HKD and
entitles the holder to convert it into ordinary shares of the
Company at any time between the date of issue of the
2015 Convertible Note on 12 June 2015 and its settlement
date on 12 June 2017 at a conversion price of HK$0.85 per
conversion share (subject to anti-dilutive adjustments). The
holder may redeem the 2015 Convertible Note, at any time
three months after the grant date, at 100% of the principal
amount outstanding together with all interest accrued
thereon up to and including the date of redemption. The
Company may redeem the 2015 Convertible Note at its
own discretion on any business day prior to the maturity
date at 100% of the principal amount outstanding together
with all interest accrued thereon up to and including the
date of redemption. Pursuant to the adjustment provisions
in the terms and conditions of the 2015 Convertible Note,
adjustments have been made to the conversion price of the
2015 Convertible Note from HK$0.85 per share to HK$1.81
per share with effect from 9 October 2015 as a result of a
capital reorganisation and the completion of the issue of
rights shares, and further to HK$0.33 per share with effect
from 7 January 2016 as a result of the entering into the
deed of amendment to revise the conversion price which
was approved by the shareholders at a special general
meeting of the Company held on 7 January 2016. On
31 March 2017, the 2015 Convertible Note with principal
amount of HK$86,000,000 remained outstanding. Assuming
full conversion of the 2015 Convertible Note at an adjusted
conversion price of HK$0.33 at 31 March 2017, the 2015
Convertible Note will be convertible into 260,606,060 new
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company.

2015F AT AIRBBIAELIERFAAZE
EUTREBKM.85E T LR E (F
ERBBARLE)  K2015F6A12H 2
2015F A R IR BB %17 B R HR20175F6
R1I2BZHE AR MR LBE
BRAAARZEBRKN - REANERT
BEAfE =18 A 2 (AR5 - LA100% K EE
AeeHERNEERBEERDBRZEMNER
FFIEFIAER015F B EE - A2
A ERED AR TMEEAHN
P00%AEEA S 2 BEREZREIEE
Bl 38 2 R RIS T LABE EI20155 /]
BREE - RIE2015FAJ B EBEAN 2B
AP A 2 SRR - IRANE A R Tl 3
TR EH015F R EIE 2 i
{EH2015F10 H9A R B F[%0.858 TTHAE
EFR1.81E L - H2016F1A7H AR 7
BAZEIBRF KERRIERTE LR
Bz RHBIHRER2016F1 A7ABE
— S HEZFA0.338 T ° 1#2017F3 31
B 20155 RZBNMAEELRRER
86,000,000% 7T ° 2 5% LA & 1%0.3378 7T 2
RAREBE - R2017438318 2@ LI
2015@7%@&%}% P 2015 AT AR R A]
RBBARAZRANGREEE.ONET
2260,606,060% 31 & @A A (7
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e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
EF 20173 A 31 HIFFE

23. CONVERTIBLE NOTES CONTAINING
LIABILITY AND EQUITY COMPONENTS

(continued)

(b) (continued)

(c)

Conversion shares will be allotted and issued upon exercise
of the conversion rights. If the 2015 Convertible Note is not
converted during the conversion period up to the maturity
date, it will be redeemed on the maturity date at par with
outstanding accrued interest. Interest of 2% per annum will
be paid on the settlement date.

The 2015 Convertible Note contains liability component,
equity component, and holder and issuer early redemption
options. As the early redemption options are closely
related to the host contract, they are not treated as
separate derivatives. The equity component is presented
in equity heading “convertible note equity reserve’ The
effective interest rate of the liability component of the 2015
Convertible Note is 11.42% per annum at the date of initial
recognition.

On 27 July 2016, the Company issued 2% convertible
note due 2019 at an aggregate principal amount of
HK$50,000,000 to Able Merchant Limited, an independent
third party (the “2016 Convertible Note”).
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RITE BN SRR RBTERRND
fH2015F I ARRER L AR EE 2
A2 ARE - AIBRIAUEREER
MASXNZEatiRMEEE - FRK2%Z
MERELERXL -

015FMREBDEEERS - BEX
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e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
#Z 2017 F 3 A 31 HILFE

23. CONVERTIBLE NOTES CONTAINING 3. IERREEEEEBERERRD

LIABILITY AND EQUITY COMPONENTS (&)
(continued)
(c) (continued) (c) (&)

The 2016 Convertible Note is denominated in HKD and
entitles the holder to convert it into ordinary shares of the
Company at any time between the date of issue of the
2016 Convertible Note on 27 July 2016 and its settlement
date on 27 July 2019 at a conversion price of HK$0.225
per conversion share (subject to anti-dilutive adjustments).
The holder may redeem the 2016 Convertible Note, at
any time three months after the grant date, at 100% of
the principal amount outstanding together with all interest
accrued thereon up to and including the date of redemption.
The Company may redeem the 2016 Convertible Note on
any business day prior to the maturity date at 100% of
the principal amount outstanding together with all interest
accrued thereon up to and including the date of redemption.
On 11 August 2016, 19 August 2016, 26 August 2016 and
7 November 2016, the conversion rights attaching to the
2016 Convertible Note were exercised for HK$4,500,000,
HK$6,750,000, HK$4,500,000 and HK$34,250,000,
respectively, and a total of 222,222,222 conversion shares
were issued upon conversion. The conversion rights
attached to the 2016 Convertible Note were fully exercised.

Conversion shares shall be allotted and issued upon
exercise of the conversion rights. Interest of 2% per annum
shall be paid semi-annually in arrears up until the settlement
date.

The 2016 Convertible Note contains liability component,
equity component, and holder and issuer early redemption
options. As the early redemption options are closely
related to the host contract, they are not treated as
separate derivatives. The equity component is presented
in equity heading “convertible note equity reserve’ The
effective interest rate of the liability component of the 2016
Convertible Note is 23.73% per annum at the date of initial
recognition.

2016 F AR EBENBTIERBEAE
BUEREBERPD0.225 T2 LIBRE (F
ERBBARLE)  K20165F7H27H 2
2016F A AR BB 1T B R HR201957
A7 HE AR MR LBRE
BARRAZEARBKN - BAEANER
TEEBE =@ 2 EMERE - L100%KE
BALeHERAZLEEERNRSZE
R F B F A E12016F AT IR Z i -
AARAESHAMTMEZBHA - U
100%KEEAC S HERNAEE RREER
B A 2 FE PR FI S F UARE [B120164F 7] 2
I &= 4% - m20165F8 H11H ~ 20165F8 519
H 20168260 &2016F11H7H + 17
EEER 20165 IR R 15 2 KRS Bl &
4,500,00078 7T * 6,750,000 7T * 4,500,000
770 12.34,250,00078 7T WA KRR S H B
17222,222,222% 5 ¥ Bz 17 o B BE7A20165F
AHRREER ABRECEETE

AT R S S RS MBIT R -
FER2%ZMBABFFXMNAHNE -
BEEHEHARL -

20165 IR EEB T AEMRD - Bk
DEBEARBITAREEDE - ANRTF
BORRIESOETHE - WMEELIT
ATARE - a0 JIR [AIRRREE
HEE R 2016F A ARTIEZA
ERDRINAERE CERFERFEERR
23.73% °
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e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
EF 20173 A 31 HIFFE

23. CONVERTIBLE NOTES CONTAINING B THRREECREEREZND
LIABILITY AND EQUITY COMPONENTS (%)
(continued)
The movement of the liability component of the above convertible FRABMREREERS 2 EBHHIMAT

notes is set out below:

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
At beginning of the year REL 87,084 11,153
Issue of the 2015 Convertible Note 172015 F AT A IRE IR = 67,661
Issue of the 2016 Convertible Note BIT2016F [ R R 25,609 =
Effect on change of conversion price RBEEHITE = 1,766
Conversion R (25,609) -
Accretion of interest FEzBREE 11,050 8,290
Interest paid FERX (613) (401)
Interest payable FERTF B (1,720) (1,385)
At end of the year RER 95,801 87,084
Analysed as: DR
Amount due within one year shown under BRARRBAGBZ
current liabilities —FREHeE 81,981 74,705
Amount due after one year shown under BTIRIERBDEEZ
non-current liabilities —FRIHeHE 13,820 12,379
95,801 87,084
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24. SECURED BANK BORROWINGS 24,

Carrying amount repayable as follows (based  fEfSEFIEZBEEENT
on the scheduled repayment dates set out in (REERHENFT

the loan agreements): ZEEAM)
— within one year - —FR
— within a period of more than one year but - ZR—%8

not exceeding two years T BB E AR A
- within a period of more than two years but ~ — ZAMEE

not exceeding five years AT FEEAR
— within a period of more than five years — BT FHEA

Less: Amount due within one year shown under & : WiE8BEE T2
current liabilities —FREHeHE

Amount due after one year shown under non- A —E%5IH 2 £5
current liabilities

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
#Z 2017 F 3 A 31 HILFE

BEERBTEE

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F&T
420,400 4,993
5,523 5,131
286,888 16,255
66,889 73,708
779,700 100,087
(420,400) (4,993)
359,300 95,094

At 31 March 2017, the Group’s secured bank borrowings carry
interest ranging from Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
(“HIBOR”) plus 1.5% to 2.35% (2016: HIBOR plus 2.5%), with
effective interest ranging from 1.96% to 2.81% per annum
(2016: 2.73% to 2.75% per annum). The loans are secured by
investment properties of the Group with an aggregate carrying
amount of HK$785,873,000 (2016: HK$208,196,000) and
properties held for development for sale of the Group with
carrying amount of HK$597,868,000 (2016: nil). The proceeds
were mainly used to finance acquisition of investment properties
and development of properties.

All bank borrowings are denominated in HKD, functional currency
of the relevant group entities, at the end of the reporting period.

R201763A310 - AEB 7 AEARITEES
ENFRARTAERFE ([FERTAZEFE]
M1.5%%2.35% (20164 : HEBITRAERE
m2.5%) - H BB EMEN T, 96%i2 81%
(2016%F : F F| £2.73%%2.75%) » & Z U &
SEEEMERAES £4785,873, ooo,%m
(20164 : 208,196,000/57T) R AL BE#HEHE
B4R ) % B T (597,868,000 7T (20164F : #)
ERER - RETERERBRENERMES
BZRE -

RBERRZAAERTEEONEIEEEER
IJJ ERRATLIE -
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e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
#ZE 2017 F3 A 31 HIEFE

25. DEFERRED TAXATION

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised

and movements thereon during the current and prior years:

At 1 April 2015

Recognition upon issue of
convertible note

Recognition upon change of

conversion price of convertible note

(Charge) credit to profit or loss
for the year
Currency realignment

At 31 March 2016

Recognition upon issue of
convertible note

Release upon conversion of
convertible note

Credit to profit or loss for the year

Currency realignment

At 31 March 2017

20154 A1H
BT R R RRER

R TR
AR ERET
RAE B EER (10)
HA

593

20163 A31H
BT MR B REER

BT RRR R R

RAFEERIEPTA
0 5

201793 A31H

25, EEHRIE
REARBEFEERRBATEZELHBEEE
URHBBNT -

Revaluation Convertible

of properties notes Total
MEER EE-JES wEE
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
F&T F&T FET
(16,642) (1,635) (18,277)
- (3,026) (3,026)

- 291 291
(7,082) 1,073 (6,009)

789 - 789
(22,935) (3,297) (26,232)

- (4,025) (4,025)

- 4,025 4,025

1,966 1,438 3,404

974 - 974

(19,995) (1,859) (21,854)

At 31 March 2017, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$121,391,000 (2016: HK$111,056,000) available for
offset against future profits. The Hong Kong tax losses of
HK$115,557,000 (2016: HK$91,116,000) can be carried forward
indefinitely and the remaining tax losses will expire from 2018
to 2021 (2016: 2017 to 2020). No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the unrecognised tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.
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121,391,000/% 7T (20164 : 111,056,000/ L) JAF
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e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
#Z 2017 F 3 A 31 HILFE

26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. &2
Nominal
value Number of
per share shares Amount
BREE REAHE k]
NOTES HK$ HK$'000
Wi+ BT FET
Authorised: ETE

At 1 April 2015 2015F4A1H 0.01 20,000,000,000 200,000
Consolidation of shares frfn & B (b) (18,000,000,000) =
0.10  2,000,000,000 200,000
Reduction of share capital BRAEI R (b) - (180,000)
0.01 2,000,000,000 20,000
Increase in consolidated shares SR ML (b) 0.01 18,000,000,000 180,000

At 31 March 2016 and 720163318 X
31 March 2017 2017%3A31H 0.01 20,000,000,000 200,000

Issued and fully paid: BEITRERE
At 1 April 2015 R2015%4 A1H 0.01 25,319,951 253
Rights issue of shares AR IR D (a) 0.01 506,399,020 5,064
0.01 531,718,971 5,317
Consolidation of shares and R E 5 R

reduction of share capital reNEl e (b) (478,547,074) (4,785)
0.01 53,171,897 532
Rights issue of shares AR (c) 0.01 1,063,437,940 10,634
At 31 March 2016 7201643 A318 0.01  1,116,609,837 11,166
Conversion of convertible note HBBREE R (d) 0.01 20,000,000 200
Conversion of convertible note HIAnTmAR EiE (e) 0.01 30,000,000 300
Conversion of convertible note RBBRER () 0.01 20,000,000 200
Issue of new shares IR 21T (9) 0.01 223,000,000 2,230
Conversion of convertible note BB RER (h) 0.01 152,222,222 1,522
Issue of new shares MR ETT (i) 0.01 350,000,000 3,500

At 31 March 2017

7201743 A31H

0.01 1,911,832,059 19,118
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
#ZE 2017 F3 A 31 HIEFE

26. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(a)

On 22 April 2015, the Company allotted 506,399,020 rights
shares of HK$0.01 each at a subscription price of HK$0.65
per rights share on the basis of twenty rights shares for
every one then existing ordinary share held. The Company
raised HK$327,209,000 (net of expenses) with the intention
at the time of rights issue to finance potential property
investments and for general corporate purposes.

The Company underwent a capital reorganisation which
involved, among others, consolidation of issued and
unissued shares, reduction of nominal value of paid up
capital of consolidated shares, reduction of nominal value
of all shares in the authorised share capital and increase
of the authorised share capital. The capital reorganisation
became effective on 8 October 2015, as a result of which
(i) every ten issued and unissued then existing shares of
HK$0.01 each were consolidated into one consolidated share
of HK$0.10 each, (ii) par value per share of the Company’s
share capital was reduced from HK$0.10 to HK$0.01; (iii)
the authorised share capital of the Company be reduced
by reducing the par value of all consolidated shares in the
authorised share capital of the Company from HK$0.10 each
to HK$0.01 each, resulting in the reduction of the authorised
share capital of the Company from HK$200,000,000 divided
into 2,000,000,000 consolidated shares to HK$20,000,000
divided into 2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of par value
HK$0.01 each; (iv) the authorised share capital of the
Company be increased from HK$20,000,000 divided into
2,000,000,000 adjusted shares to HK$200,000,000 divided
into 20,000,000,000 adjusted shares; and (v) issued and
fully paid share capital was changed from HK$5,317,000
comprising 531,718,971 shares of HK$0.01 each to
HK$532,000 comprising 53,171,897 shares of HK$0.01 each.

On 3 November 2015, the Company allotted 1,063,437,940
right shares of HK$0.01 each at a subscription price of
HK$0.48 per rights share on the basis of twenty rights
share for every one then existing ordinary share held. The
Company raised HK$507,429,000 (net of expenses) with
the intention at the time of rights issue to purchase the
sale shares and sale loan of a properties group, repay
bank borrowings and interest, finance potential property
investments, finance listed securities investments and loan
financing and as general working capital.
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26. R4 ()

(a)

(b)

(c)

M2015F4H22H + ARFIRERHE—RE
IR A L AR AR (D e — T AR AR AR 19 2 &
. UERERKGB06SET I RERE
fic ££506,399,020/% & §%0.017% 7T 2 {2 B% %
15 o KX 7] 18327,209,000/%8 7T (30 Bk
X&) HREBITEERBENMERE 2/
BERERB—REERR -

RARCEITRAZE  EFRBIEDHT
RARBEITROEN BREBAZEMBRGOE
BEZHIRE - EERAZ BB RS EEZEDR
KA INEE R A o B A E 42 7201510 A
SHAM BB TREFTEAENTE
RO.OIBLERBRERNDEHAE—RER
0108 T 2 A BRI 5 (i) BIRA R BRRA Z
T B E H0.1075 T Bl R £0.018 7T ¢ (iii)
KRB ZEERANZFIBA RG22 EE
f & 1%0.107% 7T Bl & £ & #%0.017%8 7t LA Hl
BARRZEERAE  BRARRZETER
7N #4200,000,000/% T % #42,000,000,000
i & B % 17 I R 420,000,000 7T 5 A&
F% T 15£0.017% 7£2,000,000,0000% % i A% A%
%5 (iv)A A A Z V& TE AR A8 §320,000,000
7 7T 9 £2,000,000,000 5% 4% 8 B A% 17 12 10
%200,000,0007% JT % /420,000,000,000
RACABRD  RVEZETREZHRANH
5,317,000/ JT & 5531,718,971[% & &
0.017% jt 2 I 15 # ¥ £532,0008 T B2 5
53,171,897 & f0.01 B L 2 i 15 °

M2015611A3H + ARFIRERHBE—RE
IR A LR AR (D R — T AR AR AR 1D 2 &
o UFRHRR0.488 TT 2 REE - B
#$1,063,437,9400% & %0.017%8 7T 2 f i% %
1 o KX 7] 18507,429,0007%8 7T (40 Bk 5
T®) HENITEREBA—EDEEER
ZHERG REEER - BERITERRF
B BEMEREZHE  LTHEFRER
BXBERER—REELS -
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26. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(d)

On 11 August 2016, the 2016 Convertible Note with a
principal amount of HK$4,500,000 were converted into
shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company at the conversion
price of HK$0.225 per share. Accordingly, a total of
20,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted
and issued by conversion of the convertible note.

On 19 August 2016, the 2016 Convertible Note with a
principal amount of HK$6,750,000 were converted into
shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company at the conversion
price of HK$0.225 per share. Accordingly, a total of
30,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted
and issued by conversion of the convertible note.

On 26 August 2016, the 2016 Convertible Note with a
principal amount of HK$4,500,000 were converted into
shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company at the conversion
price of HK$0.225 per share. Accordingly, a total of
20,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted
and issued by conversion of the convertible note.

On 22 September 2016, the Company allotted 223,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each by placing to six placees at
a placing price of HK$0.18 per share. The Company raised
HK$39,739,000 (net of expenses) with the intention at the
time of placing to be used towards appropriate acquisition
and investment opportunities of the Group and for the
general working capital of the Group. The new placing shares
were issued pursuant to the general mandate granted to the
directors by a resolution of the shareholders of the Company
passed at the annual general meeting held on 17 August
2016.

On 7 November 2016, the 2016 Convertible Note with a
principal amount of HK$34,250,000 were converted into
shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company at the conversion
price of HK$0.225 per share. Accordingly, a total of
152,222,222 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted
and issued by conversion of the convertible note.

On 27 February 2017, the Company allotted 350,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each by placing to six placees
at a placing price of HK$0.16 per share. The Company
raised HK$55,440,000 (net of expenses) with the intention
at the time of placing to be used to purchase properties
for redevelopment. The new placing shares were issued
pursuant to the specific mandate granted to the directors by
a resolution of the shareholders of the Company passed at
the special general meeting held on 13 February 2017.

All shares issued during both years rank pari passu with the then

existing shares in issue in all respects.

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
#Z 2017 F 3 A 31 HILFE

26. R4 ()

(d)

(e)

)

(9)

(h)

R20164E8 H11H + A& & % %4,500,000/8
JL22016%F Al A AR & LA & §20.2257 7T 2
HE R B AKRAREIR0.01E T 2D -
At - BREBATIRREES RS LT
20,000,0000% & 1%0.0178 7T 2 L BACALD ©

72016485198 * AN & & %86,750,000/8
JL 220165 AI A AR IR LA § 1R0.2257 T 2
HBERBARNREF0.01ET 2D o
At - BB AR EES KR E RET
30,000,0000% & f%0.0178 7T 2 EBATALD ©

H2016F8H26H + & & ¢ #4,500,000/5
JL 220165 AT AR R IR LA G iR0.225/8 T 2
HBERBAKRRFFR0.01BIT 2D o
Eit  BREBITRRERA LR E KT
20,000,000f% & R%0.018 7T 2 L@ i -

R2016F9A22H * AR RIS REESE
0.18% 7T At #223,000,000/% & f%0.013% 7T
ZEBIRKRMD FNEEEEA c KATRESR
39,739,000/8 7T (MK %) ERITH
BEABEKERRERE RIEAASE Y —
BEEES - L ERMD TIIL2016F8717
ARERBFAS EBBZRIRBLTES
2R AERT -

201611 A7H + K& € 534,250,000/
JL 220164 Al AR Z 1% LA & §0.22578 7T 2
HBERBARRQRFR.01ET 2D
Ett - BB R RATRREES RS R #ET
152,222 2225 FA%0.017% 702 T IBAKAR D ©

R201762A278 AR RN SRR EE
0.167% 7t fit £350,000,0000% & A%0.0178 7T
ZEBRRG TARELERA - RATES
55,440,000/ 70 (NBRFAZE) ERITH
BIEREMEEER - R ERHK T91£2017
F2A1BAERIRRAS HBB 2 RERE
BTEBZFRIREET -

FARMEFEARTZIRINE THRERE
BRI ZERSHER -

I
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e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
#ZE 2017 F3 A 31 HIEFE

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 27. UR#O X 2R3

On 29 June 2012, a share option scheme (the “2012 Share
Option Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders of the
Company. Under the terms of the 2012 Share Option Scheme, the
board of directors of the Company may, at its absolute discretion,
offer options to any full-time employee, director or consultant of
any member of the Group (including associated companies) to
subscribe for shares in the Company subject to the terms and
conditions stipulated therein. The 2012 Share Option Scheme is
valid during the period of ten years commencing 29 June 2012,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended.

The purposes of the 2012 Share Option Scheme are to
encourage eligible participants to work towards enhancing
the value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued under the
2012 Share Option Scheme must not (when aggregate with any
shares to be issued under any other share option schemes of
the Company) exceed 10% of the shares in issue at the date of
adoption of the 2012 Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon the exercise of
the share options granted to each eligible participant of the 2012
Share Option Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to
1% of the shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting of the Company with such grantee
and his associate(s) abstaining from voting.

The exercise period of the share options under 2012 Share
Option Scheme is determined by the board of directors of the
Company and shall end on a date which is not later than ten
years from the date of grant of the options. At the time of grant
of the share options, the Company must (a) specify the minimum
period(s), if any, for which a share option must be held before it
can be exercised in whole or in part, and (b) specify the minimum
performance target(s), if any, which must be achieved before the
share options can be exercised in whole or in past. The amount
payable on acceptance of an offer for grant of share options is
HKS$1.
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R2012F6 A29H + AR ERE#t A —EERE
FH &l ([20128 AR AT &1 )) - IBIB20128 R #E A
B2 ARTIERGR  REBHBIERE
WIBZET B FTHATE 2 R R A6 T AN &= B (R AR X
ERA (REBRERT) cEN2BEE £
SERER L TRBEAQBRM 2 BRE - 2012
AR R BIBRIE AR b 5 A A3 (EE] - BRI
20126 A29 A EHOFHHMA—FEEM »

2012 B 5 BB T A BRERER N
BEAARERG 2 BENGAFAARLBRE
2 BRI -

RiZ20128 BIE B R HTT 2 BRBRHEE T
& (ERBEARR EMAMRERETEK T %
T2 ERBHD A HEE) BBRRA20128 i
BB R B RITRINZ10% -

PMEMA12ME A AR - B2012BREHE 2 &R
BRSEETEEMER T BER - 7%
TZREBRNEE - UARFTEBETRNZ1%AE
R EE—SROBBIREZERE AR
BRIAARRRAG LI AT AEE - Mz
BRAREBEARARERSR

RIB2012B MG 8 < B TENRARAE

QRE - BATERRHBRER HEH+F
ZBER - R EBRER - ARBLE(Q)ER
BEERHREOTEZARKE KR (10
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TRk Z RIERBIER (ME) - HEAR L BRE
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27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

The exercise price in respect of any particular option of the
2012 Share Option Scheme may be determined by the board of
directors of the Company in its absolute discretion and notified
to each offeree but may not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on
the date of offer, which must be a business day; (ii) the average
closing price of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii)
the nominal value of the Company’s shares on the date of offer.

Details of share options granted under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme are as follows:

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
#Z 2017 F 3 A 31 HILFE

27. LURB 2R 5 (&)

ARBEZGNRABYUBISE  ET2012%
Bt B2 M ERREZTRE  YHES
RBAOAN  EEBITEEATLIRONENBH
(BEAREFRH) RBXMZBRRERMAIAR
AR X A 2 W B ¢ (N BEREHNBHATR
BERA > RBRA2ERRERMAIIARRR
DR R FHRTIE : R(ii) AR BRNRE
HNBEBZEE AERSERE) -

2012MB A AT B  BBER BN T -

Exercise

price

Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period per share

BHBEH HEH gcd:i BRITEE

HK$

BT

14.10.2016 Nil 14.10.2016-13.10.2019 0.176
13
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e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
EF 20173 A 31 HIFFE

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 27. UBRB X 2Z2X 5 &)

(continued)
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share TREBERE2012EREFEHEERESHS
options held by employees and directors pursuant to the 2012 ARARIZBRERFAZE

Share Option Scheme during the year:

Number of share options

BREHE
Outstanding
at 1.4.2015, Granted Outstanding
Exercise 31.3.2016 during at
Date of grant price  and 1.4.2016 the year 31.3.2017
» 1.4.2015
31.3.2016 &2 731.3.2017
BHBEH IF(E  1.4.2016/ FRKL fef %
HK$
BT
Directors EZE
14.10.2016 0.176 - 33,900,000 = 33,900,000
Employees EE
14.10.2016 0.176 - 79,100,000 = 79,100,000
- 113,000,000 113,000,000
Exercisable at end of the year RERAITE 113,000,000
Weighted average exercise price  fltEF1977{#(E
(HK$) (GEr) - 0.176 0.176
During the year ended 31 March 2017, options were granted RBZE201763A31 B IEFA - 11520128 K18
pursuant to the 2012 Share Option Scheme on 14 October FFEIR2016F10 14T AEHE - RIRHE B
2016. The fair value of the options granted on that date was Wi 2 N F{EA2,083,000/8 T (20164 « £) o

HK$2,083,000 (2016: nil).
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27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

The fair value was calculated using the Black-Scholes model with
Binomial Tree method. The inputs into the model were as follows:

Grant date RHBEH

Share price (HK$) BE (Br)
Exercise price (HK$) 78 (&)
Expected volatility TEEHIRIE
Expected life (years) TR (FH)

Risk-free rate

B [ M 2
Expected dividend yield 2

=
A& R A

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
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27. LRI ¥ 2 R 5 (%)

FEDERM R - HRBRA &= EDAR
d - BARAZBARBEDT

mr>

14.10.2016

0.126
0.176
37.76%
3.0
0.63%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous 3 years.
The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on
management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability,
exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations. Change in
the subjective input may materially affect the fair value estimates.

The Group recognised a share-based payment expense of
HK$2,083,000 (2016: nil) for the year ended 31 March 2017 in
relation to share options granted by the Company.

No share option was exercised under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme in the current year since the grant date on 14 October
2016.

KB RBBEIF 2 AR AIRE 2 E LK
BET ARBACEAERIREERE &
RELE - THRERZTE  TERIRTAE
BMEHAE - TBBABBREURTELZ
EREZEYN-Z X

HZE2017F3A31A L FRAEERREE AL
NRNR 2 B R AR 19 2 155 22,083,000 7T
(20164 : ) o

BB E2016F10 148 ERREF W ER
201288 AR AT BITT R IR AR -
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e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
EF 20173 A 31 HIFFE

28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/ 28. BEATRS BERXS

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(a) During the year, the Group had the following transactions (a) A FEEEXEBERZ2EMNBERFE
with wholly-owned subsidiaries of Easyknit International: P
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Rental expense Hemt 2,496 2,496
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, a director of the Company, is also one AATBEEETRH L+ - R20174E3A31
of the beneficiaries under a family trust holding 36.74% B R A A Kk B 1E36.74% (20164 ¢
(2016: 36.74%) equity interest of Easyknit International at 36.74%) A REEESHAT —-EF
31 March 2017. Ms. Lui Yuk Chu also holds 21.95% (2016: YLt TEB-—HR A EE Y ERAE
21.95%) equity interest of Easyknit International through an Bk E B EE21.95% (20164F : 21.95%)
entity wholly-owned by her. )
(b) Details of the convertible note issued to Easyknit (b) BTFAEEE THRERE Y HEHFIR
International are set out in note 23(a). Bizt23(a) °
(c) Compensation of key management personnel (c) TEEBASZEHH
The remuneration of directors and other members of key EERHMTESEABRENBE
management during the year was as follows: JRNE
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TR
Short-term employee benefits D BREEMNEH S REMEF
Salaries and other benefits 6,803 6,073
Equity-settled share-based payment expense ARz 4E 7 D L5 864 -
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes RIRBRIFT B R 94 92
7,761 6,165

The remuneration of directors and key executives are
determined by the remuneration committee and executive
directors respectively having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.
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28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d) In January 2011, the Company entered into an employment
agreement with Mr. Koon Wing Yee, the spouse of Ms. Lui
Yuk Chu, to act as general manager of the Company. The
employment agreement, which constitutes a connected
transaction, commenced on 21 February 2011 but may be
terminated by either party at any time by three months’ notice.
The monthly salary has been adjusted to HK$150,000 with
effect from 1 April 2013. The remuneration of Mr. Koon Wing Yee
as general manager of the Company during the year ended 31
March 2017 was HK$1,950,000 (2016: HK$1,950,000) and was
included in the “compensation of key management personnel”
in (c) above. Details of share options of the Company granted
to Mr. Koon Wing Yee are set out in (e) below.

e MR RRME
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28.BBEANTRG BEXS

(d) R2011F18 ARBEEFTHR LT BB

BEXERAETLERBZ  EARALA
ABEE  ZEXR-—BHEEXH ZERWG
ZA2011F2 21 AR « B RMEAER
REREM—AHRTF-@ABMMEL-
H2013F4 18 2 #H B £ 5 H150,000/%
T BE2017E3ASA L FAEKERLE
ERARRRIBIE 2 M€ £1,950,0004 7T
(2016%F : 1,950,000/ ;L) & E B 1EHE N
L) B2 TZEEBABZEHM]I N - 5@
ARARRTFEKEAEBREZFBHAIIN
AT (e)E -

(e) Included in the 79,100,000 share options granted by the (e) WMH27THTE  ARBARETAEEES
Company to the Group’s employees (other than directors of the (AEBEEZERIN 279,100,00017 B Iz 1
Company) as disclosed in note 27 are the following grantees BREATARARFAEERIZERREEHRL
who are close relatives of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and Ms. Koon Ho Yan ITREAMZITERIEARA
Candy, directors and substantial shareholders of the Company:

Number of

share options

granted on

14 October 2016

R20165

10F 148 & HZ

Grantee AEA BREHE
HK$

Vi

Mr. Koon Wing Yee, the spouse of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu  EXk&E L4 - EEHR LT 2 AE 11,300,000
Mr. Koon Chun Ting, a son of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu BERELE  BERKTZRF 11,300,000
Mr. Ku Wai Ming, a cousin of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu HRELRE BEURTZER 11,300,000
33,900,000

The attributable equity-settled share-based payment
expense recognised in profit or loss during the year ended
31 March 2017 was HK$648,000 (2016: nil).

BE2017F3A31HILFER  RERER
IR GEE 2 B 55 X 5648,00078 7T
(20164 : &) o

SILEEERAR 2016/17 FH 165



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
EF 20173 A 31 HIFFE

28.

29.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(f) During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group received
rental income totalling HK$648,000 (2016: HK$270,000)
from certain close relatives of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and Ms.
Koon Ho Yan Candy, directors and substantial shareholders
of the Company.

(9) During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group paid

HK$110,000 (2016: nil) to Easyknit Charitable Foundation

Limited, a company controlled by Ms. Luk Yuk Chu and Ms.

Koon Ho Yan Candy, directors and substantial shareholders

of the Company, which is recognised in profit or loss as

“donations”

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts, which
includes convertible notes and secured bank borrowings
disclosed in notes 23 and 24, respectively, net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, accumulated profits and other
reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
regular basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with the capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues and raising or repayment of bank borrowings and
other debts.
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29.

BEALRS BERS @)

() #HZE201743A318LFER » REBKEAK
RAIBEERFERREETURZ I REAM
Ttz EFiRE A £648,0008 T
(20164 : 270,000/ 7T) °

(9) HZE201743A3BLER AEE
110,000/5 70 (2016%F : &) FXBREEE
SE2ERAF  —HAARAEERTER
REERLTREAMZTEHZ AR B
BaERA [1BX] -

EXERER

AEEHRARETER RN EE R TER
TRESELE  ERERARRAGSENS
ETETARRFRESARE - AEE B
BB E TS -

AEEBARBREEHFR  EREENH
I T3 24K B 2 Pl R R B R B BRI R
B TR RERASRBIERTRE 2
AT A R E A R 2 AR Bl A R B A S o

ARAEEE A BERRE - ERRAH—7
N BESEREAKARBERNRBRER - RE
EEnEE AREMERRNKRS - BITHR
FESREERTEEREMES - U FEHRE
BARZHE -



30.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a. Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets
Available-for-sale investments
Fair value through profit or loss
— investments held for trading
— other financial assets
Loans and receivables (including cash and
cash equivalents)
— Trade and other receivables
— Rental deposit
— Loans receivable
— Bank deposits with original maturity of
more than three months
— Bank balances and cash

Financial liabilities
Amortised cost
— Trade and other payables
— Convertible notes
— Secured bank borrowings

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
#Z 2017 F 3 A 31 HILFE

30.&mIE

a. &@WMIAZER

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
AEHERE 158,541 133,034
BATER AEE
—FHEEERE 4,505 5,944
- HihemEE 53,980 =
ERREYGRIE (BERE
RERBFE)
— B 5 REMENRIE 33,172 32,752
—-Heks 424 424
- ERER 264,395 76,000
—HBBE=EATHL
RITER 103,606 =
—RITEBRKEE S 409,884 465,279
1,028,507 713,433
cHas
- B REMENKIE 22,287 11,980
— AR 95,801 87,084
- BEABITEE 779,700 100,087
897,788 199,151
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e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
#ZE 2017 F3 A 31 HIEFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investments, investments held for trading,
other financial assets, trade and other receivables, loans
receivable, bank deposits with original maturity of more than
three months, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables, convertible notes and secured bank borrowings.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure that appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
(i)  Currency risk

Certain subsidiaries of the Group have foreign
currency sales or purchases denominated in currencies
other than their functional currencies, which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk. Approximately 1%
(2016: 73%) of the Group’s sales are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of
the group entities making the sale, whilst almost all

purchases are denominated in the group entities
functional currency.

30.&®MIE

BRERERBEREER

REEZTESHIAARAHESRE -
BIEEERE Eﬁﬂénﬁﬁ@ - BHREAM
FEWIE - EIRE SR - BB ={E AR &
IR ﬁﬂmu%&fﬁi B S REMER
FE - TRBREBERBERRITEE - ZE
SRMIAZHBOBBENHEENER - 25
SR T EP K 2 Bk A R ] fRE % 5 AR
ZHBEREIINT - EHEEREREEZER
B LA RE (R i By S B U R EUE 2 F 56 o

TS E
(i) EEE

HRASBEETIHEAR - LNERE
BN Z SN EITIHE R EE - W
EASEEZIINERER - £91% (2016
F:73%) AKBZHERNEE
ERNEEEUINEEE  £2T
LB RBANEEERB 2 E
BEIE

The carrying amount of the group entities’ foreign RB|ERR - UINESIE 2 EEEER
currency denominated monetary assets and monetary LEBEERGRAGBZEREEN
liabilities at the end of the reporting period is as i
follows:
Liabilities Assets
8% 8E
2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FHET
usb e - - 164,058 84,889
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the currency of USD.

The following table details the group entities’ sensitivity
to a 5% increase and decrease in functional currency
of the relevant group entities against the relevant
foreign currencies. 5% (2016: 5%) represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the year end for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates. A positive number below indicates
a decrease in loss where functional currency of the
relevant group entities weaken 5% against the relevant
foreign currency. For a 5% strengthening of functional
currency of the relevant group entities against the
relevant foreign currency, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit or loss, and the amounts
below would be negative.

Decrease in loss (2016: decrease in loss)

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
#Z 2017 F 3 A 31 HILFE

30.&®MI A »

b. MBEKREEEERBXE (&)

G ERE (&)
() E¥EE (&)
BREDT

B (20164 : BERD)

AREZERRERERERRET °

TRFVEBEEER I MEERR
HEINEFBEREES% BREE -
5% (2016%F : 5%) AEEE L ERD]
ARG HEESIWER
FEUNEAHEZ A FRERIER
WA FRABREIBE R MRE R 5%
g8 IR TEREREEY
e E W AR IMNE B E5% T E TR
BRERD - WEBEBRBINEERR
THEEINEFH{ES% « HE & IR ER A
ERERZEE  mMIHREEE A
B

USD impact
Eyia -7
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET T
6,849 3,544

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy to eliminate the currency exposures.
However, the management monitors the related foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposures should the need
arise.

7 £ B3R By O S 0 b R R DA DB BR
SEER - A EEESERER
MBAZINERBEEZERERTER
REARINE B BAETTEH I -
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
EF 20173 A 31 HIFFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(1)

(i)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk
as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk management

The Group’s primary cash flow interest rate risk relates
to its other financial assets, bank deposits with original
maturity of more than three months, bank balances
and secured bank borrowings. The interest rates and
terms of repayment of the secured bank borrowings
of the Group are disclosed in note 24. The Group is
also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate loans receivable and convertible notes.
The Group has not used any derivative contracts to
hedge its exposure to such interest rate risk, however,
the management monitors interest rate exposure and
will consider other necessary action when significant
interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk on financial
liabilities is detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR
arising from secured bank borrowings.
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BRERERBEEREK (£)

mEEE (%)
() EXmEE (&)
BREN (&)
EEERR  FREIMLIKE

(ii)

BZINELBER - RFRRRTEE
RAEREFR R -

VeI
FZ=ERE R

AKBZEEMERRERS R EAM SR
BE BE-AZBIBITEN
RITERREERRITEE - XEE
FEMRTEEZNEREEHNRE
R E24 T - AEEMARBRE
BRAEFRAERERZ R FER
KRk  AEEWRBEREMITE
ARSI Z A RER - AT - B2
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AMEREBROER TRREMBET
) o
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for
non-derivative instruments as referred to above at the
end of the reporting period and the stipulated change
taking place at the beginning of the financial year and
held constant throughout the reporting period in the
case of instruments that have floating rates. A 50 basis
points increase or decrease is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher or
lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s post-tax loss for the year ended 31 March
2017 would increase/decrease by HK$3,255,000 (2016:
increase/decrease in post-tax loss by HK$418,000).
This is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to
interest rates on its variable rate borrowings.

The bank balances, bank deposits with original
maturity of more than three months and other financial
assets are excluded from the sensitivity analysis as the
management of the Group considers that the interest
rate fluctuation is not significant.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

30.&mIE

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
#Z 2017 F 3 A 31 HILFE

(%)

b. M¥EREERERIE (&)

mEEE (%)

(i)

FEmLE (F)

@
o

HEGRE

AT 2 8RED T THERIA LARR
MEMRRIETETAZ A X RN
REERIGE CAOTERENRFET
ARHEPRERTEMEE - 50
ERFENIHLRANRATIRERE
ABABEFHNEZRABRIAKRERE
FHEM R Z AR REEE) -

i F| = 5 7 8 1K FA5018 & 2 26y By
EHMEZERTE  KXEERE
F2017F3AMBLEFE 2 FBEE
1 1% 10,/ 8 4°3,255,00058 7T (2016
F o FieEEE M H 418,000
L) o AEBEMAS 2 MEREBREE R
5/% 1_11 g °

RITES BB EAHMZRTE
SREMSREETREERRES

FREAEEERERANEL KT
LFEK -

EEERR  ZBREIMAL TR
i“%/aﬁ:ﬂrﬂ .EE ﬁﬁﬁxﬁu
BERREE
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(iii)  Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investments in listed equity securities. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risks. The Group’s
equity price risk is mainly concentrated on equity
instruments quoted in the Stock Exchange of issuers
operating in banking and finance industry sector. In
addition, the Group has appointed a special team to
monitor the price risk and will consider hedging the
risk exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the
reporting date.

If the prices of the listed equity securities classified as
investments held for trading had been 5% (2016: 5%)
higher/lower, post-tax loss for the year ended 31 March
2017 would decrease/increase by HK$188,000 (2016:
decrease/increase in post-tax loss by HK$248,000)
as a result of the changes in fair value of investments
held for trading and financial assets designated as at
FVTPL.

If the prices of the listed equity securities classified
as available-for-sale investments had been 10% (2016:
10%) higher:

. investment revaluation reserve would increase
by HK$15,854,000 (2016: HK$13,304,000) as a
result of the increase in fair value of available-for-
sale investments; and
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(ifi) RAEREE R

BERRENETRAES  AEEK
XEAERER EEEEBRAT
REKRZEEEENEEZRE - K
SEZBEAERAREIEZEEFNER
FBECRATE  HETARER
TRERTE - W AEECER
— R BGOSR ERER TR
R RE %R -

BRENT

AT#BRESNRBREREE B M
AR ZBABRRRET

WO EBIEEEREZ LMBRAE
% 2B LF /T #5% (20164 :
5%) ' HIEBEBERERERFEFA
BHEZEBMEEATEZEDHER
BE2017F3A31IA L FEREEE
B/ # 11188,000/% 7T (20164 :
Bz ERR D /18 n248,000787T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If the prices of the listed equity securities classified
as available-for-sale investments had been 10% (2016:
10%) lower:

. post-tax loss would increase by HK$620,000
(2016: no change in post-tax profit) and
investment revaluation reserve would decrease
by HK$15,234,000 (2016: HK$13,304,000) as a
result of the decrease in fair value of available-
for-sale investments.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations as
at 31 March 2017 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.
In view of the nature of business, the Group targets on
a focused market. As at 31 March 2017, the Group has
concentration of credit risk in the trade receivables balance
amounting to HK$1,788,000 (2016: HK$901,000) derived
from the five largest customers with good credit history in
garment industry and property investment. There was also
concentration risk in respect of the Group’s revenue during
the year ended 31 March 2016 amounting to HK$67,075,000
out of total revenue of HK$103,439,000 which was made
to one single customer. In order to minimise the credit
risk, the management of the Group has reviewed the
financial position, liquidity and recoverable amount of each
individual trade receivable regularly to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
#Z 2017 F 3 A 31 HILFE

30. €M IE (»

MBRBEREERBR (£)

BRED (&)

WHERHHERE 2 FHRARES
BIETH10% (20164 : 10%) :

s BEFBBETHLEREZ
R {E R 2 g In620,00078
(20165 : Bk BB R A

) RI&E E AR E KR D
15,234,000 7T (20164 :
13,304,000/67T) °

EEmRE

M8 REEBITN2017F3A31B AR E
BHReMEEZET  AIAEBHMATZ
EaEERRAREMBMRRERMI 2%
SEECREE REBMEMS A58
N—&dmizRE R - K201743H318 -
AEEERERKKITERDEREG R
EEEBZAMABGARFZE HEKKIE
& #:1,788,0007 7T (20164 : 901,000/
) ZEFEERK - BEAKEEZ2016
FIA31BLEFE 2 2% %¥%8103,439,000
;‘%ﬁﬁ*ﬁ‘%ﬁﬁ*%ﬁz%#!ﬁhﬁﬁ%@
67,075,000 7T - ARV EERR A%
@ZEEEFEEH%WI%JT’Z%MQ%EZ
ISR - REBES NAIRE S5 - AR
BT E S BEIEL RARERE - it
M5 AAREERALEEZEERARE
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group also had concentration of credit risk in relation
to loans receivable from a few borrowers amounting to
HK$264,395,000 at 31 March 2017 (2016: HK$76,000,000)
with 42% (2016: nil) of the balance secured by marketable
securities or properties. The largest borrower of the Group
by itself accounted for approximately 19% (2016: 13%) of
the Group’s loans receivable at 31 March 2017. At 31 March
2017, all loans receivable are neither past due nor impaired
and the borrowers are assessed to have satisfactory
credit quality with reference to financial background
current creditworthiness, collateral and past payment of
each borrower. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management has reviewed the recoverable amounts of
the loans receivable regularly to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group’s credit risk on loans receivable is significantly
reduced.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the credit
risk on liquid funds is limited because majority of the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies and banks with good
reputation.

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations. The management monitors the utilisation of
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group has available
unutilised bank loan facilities of HK$245,000,000 (2016:
HK$415,000,000).
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e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
#Z 2017 F 3 A 31 HILFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30.&@MIE »
b. Financial risk management objectives and policies b. BMBEKREEBERBXE (&)

(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) RBELER ()
The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual TRFIARE ERBELRAE LT H
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been HE - f R IEAEEITHERNR RS
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial IMAzERMBERTRERERENT &
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group REEFNERAERERE °

can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows.

Liquidity tables RBERF
More than
3 months but Total
Effective ~ Lessthan  less than Over undiscounted ~ Carrying
interest rate 3 months 1year 1-2years 2-5years 5years  cash flows amount
E83MEA RARE

ERAE  OMOER BAME  1-2F 2-5F RBSE REAE REE
%  HKSOO0  HK$000  HKSOO0  HKS000  HKSOOO  HK$000  HKSDOO
TAT TRT TAT TAL TEL TAT TAL

2017 017%
Non-derivative financial ~ FEAT4 4R E([E
liabilities
Trade and other payables € 5 R fEf
B - 2,287 - - - - 22,287 22,287
Convertible notes ARER 11.65 87720 - - 20,400 - 108,120 95,801
Secured bank borrowings  EERSES 2.58 6,369 433,168 14,010 296,325 74,024 823,896 779,700
116,376 433,168 14,010 316,725 74,024 954,303 897,788
2016 2165
Non-derivative financial 3742 RER
liabilities
Trade and other payables &5 & ftfEf
HE - 11,980 - - - - 11,980 11,980
Convertible notes RRER 1165 87720 - - 20,400 - 108,120 87,084
Secured bank borrowings  AEAFTEE 275 1916 5748 7664 22,993 85,614 123,935 100,087

101,616 5748 7,664 43,393 85,614 244,035 199,151
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
#ZE 2017 F3 A 31 HIEFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. E@ TR %)
c. Fair value c. A¥{E

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are (i) ZXEERELEZMEERZLFEE
measured at fair value on a recurring basis ZEHEEZAFE
Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured HOREEZ eREERREHARR
at fair value at the end of the reporting period. The REEHE TREMBHNMET
following table gives information about how the fair ZESMEELATE(LERFAZ
values of these financial assets are determined (in EERMN R AZIE)

particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used).

Fair value  Valuation techniques
Fair value at 31 March hierarchy and key inputs

Financial assets SREE AFE AFERE {FEETRFEGAYE
2017 2016
HK$000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Available-for-sale A ERE 158,541 133,034 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market
investments
E18 RERTEMRZ LHE
Investments held for  H{EEEIRE 4,505 5,944 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market
trading
ERF REBMEMG HE
Other financial assets Hih&FEE 53,980 - Level 3 Discounted cash flows — future

cash flows are estimated based
on exchange rate of USD against
HKD and expected yields of the
instruments, discounted at a rate
that reflects the credit risk

F3M FRAERE - BRRERENERET
RABTZAAERTA MR
ARMEERR L EFRIELEE -

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 in B - MR EIRZ IR B
both years. EFEES -
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e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
#Z 2017 F 3 A 31 HILFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. E@ TR %)
c. Fair value (continued) c. AVE#E)
(ii) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities (i) RERBEEMEERZLFEIEZ
that are not measured at fair value on recurring THEERETHERGZ AFE
basis
The fair value of other financial assets and financial HtemEERERARZ A TER
liabilities is determined in accordance with generally EREICEERARBREBIRE®
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash MEDTMERE
flow analysis.
The directors of the Company consider that the ARAREZRRG  NWHERAZHRN
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial REVBREZeREERERAR
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the 2 EREE R E AR 2 A TERL -

consolidated financial statements approximate to their
fair values.
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e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
EF 20173 A 31 HIFFE

31. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES THROUGH ACQUISITION OF
SUBSIDIARIES

(a) On 11 November 2015, the Group completed the acquisition
of 100% equity interest in five subsidiaries from Easyknit
International for a consideration of HK$240,000,000. The
principal assets of these subsidiaries are investment

3L§@Wﬁ%%ﬂﬂ%ﬁﬁ§&ﬁ
=]

(a) R2015F11 8118 AEBTKEKER
BB RRENB AR 2100%Es - BRE
£5240,000,000/8 7T - ZEMBRARIZEE
EERBRENME - WBEERAGBAED

properties. The assets acquired and liabilities assumed T
were as follows:
11 November
2015
201511 A11H
HK$ 000
FET
Investment properties REME 232,814
Trade and other receivables B 5 M EAMEIGIR 186
Bank balances and cash RITEBRERS 8,651
Deposits received and accruals BliRE RTERRIE (1,459)
Tax payable FERIRIIR (192)
Net assets assumed BEAETE 240,000
Net cash outflow on acquisition: Wik 2 3R e H R
Consideration paid XRRE (240,000)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired WERekERBRE 8,651
Set off with issue of rights shares by the Company  EIZK 72 &) 317 {H B % 17 #5 5 209,065
(22,284)
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31. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
EF 20173 A 31 HIFFE

N.EZBWBEHWEARWRBEERE

LIABILITIES THROUGH ACQUISITION OF i 4€:F)

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b) On 1 August 2016, the Group completed the acquisition (b) R201658H1A  AEENR —RBHULE

of 100% equity interest in a subsidiary, Treasure Arts
International Limited, and shareholder loan from an
independent third party for a cash consideration of

=7 JA3E & R 851,982,000/ 7T 75 B Ut B
—BHEAR  E2EREEERAAZ
100%EFELBRRER - ZHBRAAZTE

HK$51,982,000. The principal assets of the subsidiary EEARBELEREDE - WEEERAR
are properties held for development for sale. The assets AEEWT

acquired and liabilities assumed were as follows:

1 August

2016

2016F8H1H

HK$'000

T

Properties held for development for sale RIELERRYE 18,550
Deposits and prepayments for acquisition of WEREHERRME

properties held for development for sale & RENK 33,432

Amount due to the vendor BREHEHE (33,432)

Net assets assumed BEREFSR 18,550

Net cash outflow on acquisition: Wi s Re R EE

Consideration paid TRHKE (51,982)

Settlement of amount due to the vendor BRNERETSR 33,432

(18,550)
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e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
EF 20173 A 31 HIFFE

31. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES THROUGH ACQUISITION OF
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(c) On 13 October 2016, the Group completed the acquisition of
100% equity interest in a subsidiary, Daily Leader Limited,
and shareholder loan from an independent third party for a
cash consideration of HK$64,525,000. The principal assets
of the subsidiary are properties held for development for

N.EZBUWBHBLATIWEBEERSE
=XCF,

(c) M2016%F10A138  AEBK — KB
5 = A3 & K (864,525,000 7T 7T K I
B2 7 - Daily Leader Limitedz
100%EHERBRRER - ZHBRARIZEE
EERFELERRME - WHEEERBE

sale. The assets acquired and liabilities assumed were as AEWT
follows:
13 October
2016
2016107 13H
HK$'000
T
Properties held for development for sale RIELERRYE 15,822
Deposits and prepayments for acquisition of WEREHERRME
properties held for development for sale & RENK 48,703
Amount due to the vendor BREHEHE (48,703)
Net assets assumed BEAETE 15,822
Net cash outflow on acquisition: Wi s Re R EE
Consideration paid TRHKE (64,525)
Settlement of amount due to the vendor BRNERETSR 48,703
(15,822)
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33.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets of the
Group were pledged to a bank to secure credit facilities granted
to the Group:

Investment properties REME
Properties held for development for sale BFELEREDE

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
EF 20173 A 31 HIFFE

2. EEEM

RBEHR - AREEA T EE T —RRITE
RUTAEBRZEEEE

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
785,873 208,196
597,868 -
1,383,741 208,196

In addition, rentals in respect of the above investment properties
and future sale proceeds and rentals in respect of the above
properties held for development for sale were also pledged to
this bank.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group as lessee

Minimum lease payments recognised in profit  FRPIBHRFHER
or loss during the year ZEEREER

o ERREMEEES R R ELEERY
RRRZHERSTANES TMHER TR -

. REHENIRH
FEEEREEA
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
2,543 1,087

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

RIBEHR - ARERATF R 2 A HEH
REBVOZARKERES MR ZAER

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$ 000

FET FET

Within one year —FR 1,084 2,540
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_FEENTF (BREERMSF) - 1,040
1,084 3,580
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e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
EF 20173 A 31 HIFFE

33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 33. MEMNRH »)
(continued)
The Group as lessee (continued) FEBEREBA (£)
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the RERONREAERZETRHRAEME L ER
Group for certain of its office premises. Leases are negotiated for Me MO HEHERA—F (20165F : —FF
lease terms of one year (2016: one year to two years). ML) o
Under the leases entered into by the Group, the lease payments RERAEET Y MY HENRBETE R
are fixed and no arrangements have been entered into for BV S AME TR -

contingent rental payments.

The Group as lessor FEBHERAHEA
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Property rental income earned during the year ERXBEZ W% SHA 29,384 23,786
Less: Outgoings o (754) (727)
Net rental income He WA FE 28,630 23,059
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with RBREBR - AEBEBEF TV U TRRRKER
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments: B
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Within one year —&ER 27,338 27,278
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_EZFRF (BEEEMTF) 44,584 45,561
Over five years HBEhF 9,866 9,981
81,788 82,820
Under the leases entered into by the Group, the lease payments RBEAEEI Y M - BONRBETE R
are fixed and no arrangements have been entered into for BIIVSAMSNRLH - RAVEZEEHNA
contingent rental payments. The properties held have committed FzHEHNAEB—FE2+F (20165 —FFt
tenants for terms of one year to seven years (2016: one year to F)o

seven years).
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35.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
#Z 2017 F 3 A 31 HILFE

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 34. EAREE
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Capital expenditure contracted for but ERTAER RIS BT
not provided in the consolidated financial WEPRECERRX
statements in respect of investment TR A%
properties 9,842 5,241
RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 35. RIKEHGTE
The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident AEBREF BRI DB EEH > RUR

Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employees are required to
contribute 5% of their monthly salaries or up to a maximum of
HK$1,500 and they can choose to make additional contributions.
The employer’s monthly contributions are calculated at 5% of the
employee’s monthly salaries or up to a maximum of HK$1,500
(the “mandatory contributions”). The employees are entitled
to 100% of the employer’s mandatory contributions upon their
retirement at the age of 65, death or total incapacity.

Employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
the state-sponsored pension scheme operated by the PRC
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll to the pension scheme to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
pension scheme is to make the required contributions.

THZEFEAESBKERE ([RELF
g REBESHET  EEEREEAFEH
H5%H &% H1,5008 0 EEWATREFELE
SIMER c BEXBARRAKEECBRT&HE
HHE%HZZ A1,500/8 7T ([RHIMEER]) - 8
BR65HERE - LT R ERERITAEENR
A ZEREERHIEETZ100% -

RAEBEZHBRARZEEATEBRNRILZER
BERAREEEIKE - MBARARFEETE
D FERAREE EHRK - AEEZEEERR
et IR ATRE 23R -
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e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
EF 20173 A 31 HIFFE

35. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 35. RIKEAEE @)
(continued)
There were no forfeited contributions utilised to offset employers’ REFWRBRWHFATRERHEREEET - B
contributions for the year. The employers’ contributions which RiGEBERREMEERERTEEZEEHRK
have been dealt with in the consolidated statement of profit or mr

loss and other comprehensive income were as follows:

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Employers’ contributions recognised RIEBR TR
in profit or loss BEHER 275 387
At the end of the reporting period, there were no forfeited REBEIR - WA R KA BERERREF
contributions available to reduce the contributions payable in the &2 AR

future years.
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e MR RRME

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 March
2017 and 31 March 2016 are as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2017

= 2017 3 A 31 HIFF/Z

36. TEMB LT ZFHE

72017434310 K201643A318 * KA x
EMBLRZFENT -

Nominal value Proportion of
of issued nominal value of
Place of share capital/ issued share capital/
incorporation/ paid-up paid-up registered
establishment and registered capital/ capital held by
Name of subsidiary operations stated capital the Company Principal activities
VNGIESZ ]
& BERITRE ERITRE
Bl BREmBRE HEEMBRAE
o NG RUREE Y BHRAEE HEBDL TEEHR
2017 2016
Directly held:
BERE -
Cherry Sky Investments Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Loan financing
(‘BVI")/Hong Kong LAERIET EX@E
REELES ([HE
RARE])/ B
Fanju Investments Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment in securities
WHRERRRT EBEZHES /BF LTBR1ER EFHINE
Glory Link Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Investment in securities
HEREFRAR 5% T EFHIRE
Land Bloom Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property development
[REZRRBR AR KEBRZES /B LTBARIET MEER
Indirectly held:
EIERFE -
Chancemore Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property investment
EBERES /BE TARIET MERE
City China International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Loan financing
P B A PR A A B8 Tm1ETT EXmE
Clever Wise Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property investment
BRIERARAR] EBRZES/BE TARIET MERE
Daily Leader Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% N/A  Property development
EBEZES /BB TARIET (note) MEER
(Hit)
Easy Garment International Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Trading of garments
KEHKBERERR A &5 TmR1ET KKEE
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e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
#ZE 2017 F3 A 31 HIEFE

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 36. TEMB AR ZFHE @)

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Nominal value Proportion of

of issued nominal value of
Place of share capital/ issued share capital/
incorporation/ paid-up paid-up registered

establishment and registered capital/ capital held by

Name of subsidiary operations stated capital the Company Principal activities
ERAREE
) BRITRAR, BRITRAE,
ERAYL/ SREMBAE SREMBA
WRARAR B RS BHRAEE HEBSL TEER
2017 2016
Easyknit Worldwide Company Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Trading of garments
Limited o kAT KEKEE
Gainever Corporation Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Investment in securities
KEBARAF e Eimik2E T EHRE
Goldchamp International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
S EIFR AR AR o Timk2ETT MERE
Golden Top Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
mIEEEERAR B BT MERE
Grow Well Profits Limited BVI/Singapore Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property investment
EBEZES K TER1ET MERE
Janson Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
REEXERAR B8 Eimik2E T MERE
Main Lucky Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
RatEFRAA B LB MERE
Top Channel Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
mFRERARRAR] o LBR1AT MERE
Total Expect Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property development
HBREZHES/BF TERIET MEERE
Treasure Arts International BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% N/A  Property development
Group Limited RERLHEE /BE TRRIET (note) MEER
BHERERERAT (#1it)
Easyknit Enterprises (Huzhou) PRC Registered 100% 100%  Property investment
_Co,, Ltd. (“Enterprises Huzhou’)* F US$25,544,206 e e
KEEX OBM) BRRA (1M Rl &N
£ 3) 25,544,2063 T
e Enterprises Huzhou is a wholly foreign owned enterprise & HINEEAE—BRFPBEXZZIIERE D

established in the PRC, to be operated for 50 years up to
14 December 2054.

¥ 0 (CEHIA50F - EE2054F 128148 -

Wit o Uk T52017E3 A B IEFEHREZME L

Al o

Note: Acquired during the year ended 31 March 2017.
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36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company, which, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected
the results of the year or constituted a substantial portion of the
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company result in particulars
of excessive length.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. Majority of these
subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong. The principal activities of
these subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

Principal activity
FTEREH FTERERMHY

Investment holding Hong Kong
REER BiE
Inactive Hong Kong
AR o
Inactive PRC
EE i

Principal place of business

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
#Z 2017 F 3 A 31 HILFE

36. TEMB AR ZFHE @)

BEARAEREZER - ERAIIRZARAN
BLF RIBREAFEZRELABARASHE
BETERD -REARANEFZERIILEM
MBARZHIBERIERERBRITE -

CADEHBREMEARER LN
ABATE - hEMBARRBIRER
Al EBEBHEOT

T
=
I
=
HE]
™

Number of subsidiaries

WEARHE

2017 2016
16 12
5 6
2 2
23 20

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at 31
March 2017 or 31 March 2016.

RB M B AR 201743 A31 H 520163 A31
HBEITEAERES
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e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
#ZE 2017 F3 A 31 HIEFE

37. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

The following significant events took place subsequent to 31
March 2017:

(a)

On 1 March 2017, the Group entered into a subscription
agreement with Goodco Development Limited (“Goodco”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of Easyknit International, for
issuing to Goodco 3% convertible note due 2022 at an
aggregate principal amount of HK$16,000,000 (the “2017
Convertible Note”).

Under the subscription agreement, the 2017 Convertible
Note, when issued, will entitle the holder to convert it into
ordinary shares of the Company at any time between the
date of issue of the 2017 Convertible Note and its settlement
date which falls on the fifth anniversary of the issue date
at a conversion price of HK$0.16 per share (subject to
anti-dilutive adjustments). Conversion shares will be allotted
and issued upon exercise of the conversion rights. Interest
of 3% per annum shall be paid semi-annually in arrears up
until the settlement date.

Assuming full conversion of the 2017 Convertible Note at
the initial conversion price of HK$0.16 on 1 March 2017,
date of the subscription agreement, a total of 100,000,000
new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of
the Company will be allotted and issued.

Details of the above are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 1 March 2017 and circular dated 5
April 2017.

The issuance of the 2017 Convertible Note was approved by
the independent shareholders of the Company at a special
general meeting held on 26 April 2017. The 2017 Convertible
Note was subsequently issued to Goodco on 11 May 2017.
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201743 A31 B BELECEARFENT ¢

(a)

R2017F3A18  AEBEEKEFHE —H
2EMBRARIERZERBR AR ([EX]))
FTAL e - AR € #8%816,000,0007% 7T B
TH2022F B Bl 2 3% R = F =
(2017 TR ERE]) -

BRERBHZ  EBT2017FIRRER
B BAATZEUER0.16% T2 KIRE
(FRRBBAENE)  R2017F# K
EEMBITHEARITRERBFZEEA
Rz ERRE  RRAEREAARZER
BRRR 1D o AT K IRER LB RB1T IR
7 o F B E3% 2 F BRI FIF X5 HF
B HEHEBRAL-

R AGR0.16B T 2 RV RE - RRE
e B 82017318 2 @ 4 #2017F 7
BRERE  TRBRARQRERERE.O1
#70,2100,000,0008 37 i 38 A% A% 17 ©

Lz FBEEEINARE B AE201743
A1BZ MR BEA2017F4 A58 2B K
m o

1720175 AR R 1R 2 201744 726
ABRAZARAIRRFRIAS LEBIRE
o © 20174 7] 32 IR 45 BE 12 201745
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37. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD (continued)

(b)

Also on 1 March 2017, the Company entered into the second
deed of amendment with Madian in relation to the proposed
alterations of the terms of the 2015 Convertible Note. It
is proposed (i) to revise the exercise period of the 2015
Convertible Note from 2 years to 7 years (i.e. the settlement
date will be extended to 12 June 2022); (ii) to revise the
conversion price from HK$0.33 per revised conversion share
to HK$0.16 per conversion share; (iii) to revise the annual
interest rate from 2% to 3% and the interest will be payable
semi-yearly in arrears instead of in one lump sum on the
settlement date.

Details of the above are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 1 March 2017 and circular dated 5
April 2017.

Ordinary resolution approving the second deed of
amendment regarding the 2015 Convertible Note was
passed at the special general meeting of the Company held
on 26 April 2017.

At the date of the modification of terms of the 2015
Convertible Note, the difference between the fair value of
the consideration Madian receives on conversion of the
instrument under the revised terms and the fair value of
the consideration Madian would have received under the
original terms shall be recognised in profit or loss. Up to the
date of issuance of the consolidated financial statements,
management is assessing the financial impact.

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
#Z 2017 F 3 A 31 HILFE

37. REHMRAREE ()

(b)

R201743A18 + A2 7 kMadiangi i
ERI2015F A MR ZBEFRFTLE M {E
STERAE o B (1)2015F Al B I Z 18 1715 Hf
H2F R A7TFE (AEE R ERE2022F6 4
228) (iR ABHEHEREET L RRNG
0.338 IR REMR X B 7M0.16/8 7T ;
R (i) F B FAEBH2EB AIERBES
EEPRI N —AMARELEE R — B
fif o

it 7 F#BEEHRARF A A201743A
1BZ AR BEA2017F4A5H B 7 E K
m o

BER2015F N R EE 2 E - HEFTRIE
BER2017F4 268 BF 2 N AR EEH
ARELBBALTERER -

RER015F A MBRREFAY - BE
EETRR KB T ARMadiant Bz RER
T R Z RRAGER A 2 T A% Madiant] i
BZREATEZZEENBRHER - 12
BIEFHEMBYEEERTRAMBERER
H o
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e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
EF 20173 A 31 HIFFE

37. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD (continued)

(©

On 28 March 2017, the Group entered into seventeen sets
of provisional agreements with independent third parties
to acquire properties in Hong Kong for redevelopment for
an aggregate cash consideration of HK$226,053,000. At
31 March 2017, an aggregate sum of initial deposits paid to
the vendors amounted to HK$11,303,000, which is included
in “deposits and prepayments for acquisition of properties
held for development for sale” in the consolidated statement
of financial position. Up to the date of issuance of the
consolidated financial statements, further deposits paid to
the vendors amounted to HK$33,908,000. The transactions
are subject to approval by the shareholders of the Company
in a special general meeting to be held on 5 June 2017.

Details of the above are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 29 March 2017 and circular dated 12
May 2017.
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R201753H28R » REBEBEBIE=F
FutEhBEERE AEXBRERE
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e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
EF 20173 A 31 HIFFE

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 38. AR Az BBk R %
THE COMPANY

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEKEE 2,640 =
Interests in subsidiaries i EENGIL: E5 2,107,822 2,110,933
2,110,462 2,110,933
Current assets TENVEEE
Other receivables H A fE Y B 201 170
Bank balances SRITHE S 164,628 25,550
164,829 25,720
Current liabilities mEEE
Other payables H At fE 3R 3,609 3,561
Convertible notes EIEEEES 81,981 74,705
85,590 78,266
Net current assets (liabilities) RBEE (AF) FE 79,239 (52,546)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTRBDARE 2,189,701 2,058,387
Non-current liabilities ERBARE
Convertible notes EE) L ES 13,820 12,379
Deferred tax liabilities EREHIBAE 1,859 3,297
15,679 15,676
2,174,022 2,042,711
Capital and reserves BERRGER
Share capital AR AR 19,118 11,166
Reserves (note) @ (M) 2,154,904 2,031,545
2,174,022 2,042,711
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e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
EF 20173 A 31 HIFFE

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 38. AR Az BMRRE &)
THE COMPANY (continued)

Note: Movements of the Company’s reserves during the current Wit - BRABZBEREARBEFEZSEM
and prior years are as follows: T
Convertible Share
Share  note equity Capital ~ Contributed options Accumulated
premium reserve reserve surplus reserve losses Total
TAREE
R EE BifE RARE BARE BRERE RitEE 2

HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$:000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET T TET TET

At 1 April 2015 12015 &4 A1 B 1,063,521 7343 53,194 261,126 - (119,514) 1,265,670
Loss and total comprehensive ~ AEEBER

expense for the year 2ARTAE S S = = = (71,688) (71,688)
Issue of new shares B{THRD 823,911 S = = - - 823,91
Transaction costs attributable o E/T# 13 2

issue of new shares RHHA (4,971) - - - - - (4,971)
Reduction of share capital BAERE 2

upon capital reorganisation RARHIE - - S 4,785 = = 4785
Set-off contributed surplus AR

against accumulated losses RE2ER - - - (4,785) - 4,785 -
Recognition of equity BRTERZE

component of convertible note B 5 = 16,573 - - - - 16,573
Deferred tax liability on BRATREREE

recognition of equity BamoZ

component of convertible note ~ EEHEAE 5 (2,735) 5 S = - (2,735)
At 31 March 2016 7 2016537318 1,882,461 21,181 53,194 261,126 - (186,417) 2,031,545
Loss and total comprehensive KEEBER

expense for the year 2ARTAE - S S = = (15,951) (15,951)
Issue of new shares B{THRD 90,410 S = = - - 90,410
Transaction costs attributable o E/T# 13 2

issue of new shares RAHMA (961) = = = = = (961)
Recognition of equity BRTREREE

component of convertible note &K - 24,391 - - - - 24,391
Deferred tax liability on BRTEREE

recognition of equity ERERAZ

component of convertible note  EEFHAEE - (4,025) - - - - (4,025)
Issue of shares on conversion IR EIAREEE

of convertible note BIRh 47778 (24,391) - - - - 23,387
Deferred tax liability released RETBRREER

upon conversion of BRIELHIE

convertible note af = 4,025 S = = - 4,025
Recognition of equity-settled EARERE

share-based payments BirE = S 5 S 2,083 - 2,083
At 31 March 2017 12017437315 2,019,688 21,181 53,194 261,126 2,083 (202,368) 2,154,904
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Financial Summary
M ERBE

RESULTS E3
Year ended 31 March
BZE3AMNBLEE
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FEr FEr FET FET FET
Revenue B 223,756 156,940 192,489 103,439 36,518
(Loss) profit before taxation BRELAT (BE) &F (1,138) (2,752) 35,118 (61,238) (29,592)
Taxation BA 5,833 211 (4,032) (8,030) 2,965
(Loss) profit for the year AR FER A
attributable to owners of FE (&E) & H
the Company 4,695 (2,541) 31,086 (69,268) (26,627)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EENREE
At 31 March
M3A31H
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET
Total assets REE 1,003,979 1,389,502 1,919,181 2,574,086 3,407,650
Total liabilities e (206,100)  (266,408)  (356,536)  (249,642)  (955,497)
Equity attributable to owners AN AR B
of the Company s 797,879 1,123,094 1,562,645 2,324,444 2,452,153
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Summary of Properties
MEBE

At 31 March 2017
" 2017 F3 A 31 A

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES A. REY=
Approximate
gross floor/
Location it 31k Purpose saleable/site area Lease-term
BHeE
J=:F e BR /#EER AOFH
(sq.ft.)
(FAR)

1. Ground Floor EEET Commercial 578 Long
No. 148 Johnston Road Hr3uE [EES R
Wanchai 148551 T
Hong Kong

2. First Floor to Fifth Floor BE RS Commercial 1,836 Long
and Portion of Roof T EHT115% [EES $23:1
No. 11 Matheson Street —BERERRAHBMH R
and Ground Floor to Fifth Floor e 1358
and Portion of Roof WTERERKRE R
No. 13 Matheson Street
Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

3. Ground Floor to Fifth Floor BB REE Commercial/ 1,021 Long
No. 15 Matheson Street b E 155 Residential &H
Causeway Bay WTEAIE GEYEE:

Hong Kong

4, Ground Floor BHEMNERE Commercial 472 Long
No. 6 Cannon Street SR 6 [SES RH
Causeway Bay N
Hong Kong

5. Sixth Floor N Industrial 8,608 Medium
Nos. 650-652 FIE I h H4
Castle Peak Road, and 650 — 6525% * 61 I
No. 18A Wing Hong Street KEEAT18AR
Kowloon

6. Second Floor B Industrial 2,981 Medium
Nos. 790, 792 and 794 Rp&E Ix 5
Cheung Sha Wan Road 79055 + 79257 K 79455
Kowloon 21
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1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Location

Unit B on First Floor

Fung Wah Factory Building

Nos. 646, 648, 648A
Castle Peak Road,
Kowloon

Roof
No. 20 Wing Hong Street
Kowloon

Fifth Floor
No. 20 Wing Hong Street
Kowloon

House 9, Villa Castell
No. 20 Yau King Lane
Tai Po

New Territories

Units 1 and 2 on Seventh Floor
Block D and Car Parking Space
No. 46 on Lower Ground Floor

Shatin Heights

No. 8003 Tai Po Road
Shatin

New Territories

Third Floor

No. 161 Wong Nai Chung Road

Hong Kong

15 Ardmore Park #04-03
Singapore 259959

15 Ardmore Park # 06-04
Singapore 259959

15 Ardmore Park #18-02
Singapore 259959

b 31k

BES1LiB6465 - 6485F
NGABATREET X XE
—1ET$%B

NEEXKEH0HRXE

NBKEH2055 12

HRRFES 2205
GIESNEoEibad

AY BREAKES0035%
Y Bt EDEE-HAE 157
BN RIKE TEM
FE465%

BRERBEI61R =2

15 Ardmore Park #04-03
¥ In%% 259959

15 Ardmore Park #06-04
#1I14259959

15 Ardmore Park #18-02
¥ In%% 259959

Purpose

R#

Industrial

I

Industrial

I¥%

Industrial

Ix

Residential
T=E

Residential
F=

Residential
T=E

Residential

FE

Residential
=

Residential
F=

Summary of Properties

YRR

At 31 March 2017
R2017 3 A 31 H

Approximate
gross floor/
saleable/site area
BHem,/

BR tEEE
(sq.ft.)

(FHR)

1,910

2,910

3,402

1,599

2,086

781

2,885

2,885

2,885

Lease-term

BRFHS

Medium

A

Medium

R

Medium

]

Medium

P

Medium

i

Medium

P

Freehold

%2H

Freehold
Eic

Freehold
%M
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Summary of Properties

E S

At 31 March 2017
" 2017 F3 A 31 A

Location

Two parcels of land
at an industrial site located at

the South of Hengtang Harbour,

the West of Dongliang Road,
Zhili Town, Wuxing District,

Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province
of the People’s Republic of China

with a total of thirteen building

blocks being built and two building

blocks under construction

B. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT

196 Eminence Enterprise Limited

FOR SALE

Location

Nos. 14-20 Inverness Road
Kowloon Tong
Kowloon

Unit A2, B1, B2 and C2 on
Ground Floor, Unit C, D on
First Floor, Unit A, B, C on
Second Floor, Unit A, B, C on
Third Floor, Unit A, B, C, D on
Fourth Floor, Unit B, C, D on
Fifth Floor, Unit A, B, C, D
with Roof on Sixth Floor
Fung Wah Factorial Building
Nos. 646, 648, 648A

Castle Peak Road

Kowloon

Approximate
gross floor/

b3k Purpose saleable/site area Lease-term
BogmE,
J2:kes BR /#EER BOFH
(sq.ft.)
(FHR)
WiIgEAT ¥R i Industrial 1,805,534 Medium
7 B AR BT A M I%¥ A
B[R BRI AT
BIEANE - BB T=1&
BERE  BEN K
MR B 2 BEY)
B. BIEHLEREYE
Approximate Stage of
ik Purpose site area Lease-term completion
A% BABAERE HOEH TR
(sq.ft.)
(FFHR)
BENEE Residential 15,502 Medium Under
JESIE T B14-205% F=E R development
BEREH
NEEFILE646 - Industrial 9,206 Medium Under
648 ' 648A I% H R development
YETERE BEREH
#TA2 - Bl B2&
C2% (i -
—18C ' D&
“I1EA B CEfI-
—1#2A B CEfs
M#A B C DEf
HiEB C DEfI
SNHEA B C DEfI
ERA
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